

Brinker Capital Investments, LLC ("Brinker", "we", "our", or "us") is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an *investment adviser*. The services provided and fees charged by *investment advisory* and *brokerage* firms differ, and it is important that you understand the differences. Free and simple tools are available to research firms and financial professionals at Investor.gov/CRS, which also provides educational materials about investment advisers, broker-dealers and investing.

# What investment services and advice can you provide me?

We provide a variety of investment advisory services to retail investors and other clients. We primarily provide investment management by partnering with unaffiliated investment advisers and working through their financial representatives ("Financial Advisors") to offer investment strategies for clients who wish to utilize our services. We construct investment portfolios that implement the investment strategy you select, based upon your investment objectives and risk tolerance. The process begins when you work with your Financial Advisor to complete a Client Profile or Investment Strategy Questionnaire ("Client Profile") and select your appropriate strategy and investment program. The Client Profile will help you to clarify your financial objectives and goals and establish your tolerance to risk. You can also indicate any special instructions or limitations that you request us to follow in managing your assets.

Brinker is the successor by merger of two firms: Brinker Capital, Inc. ("BCI") and CLS Investments, LLC ("CLS"). We continue to provide the investment programs previously offered by both CLS and BCI, which have differing service and fee structures. Unless invested in our non-discretionary Brinker "Core Select" program (where you must approve our portfolio manager and product recommendations), you give us discretion to provide continuous, discretionary investment advice based on the investment strategy you select, which means we do not need to get your permission before hiring or firing a portfolio manager, reallocating assets, or buying or selling a security in your account. Our investment committee regularly monitors the performance of all portfolio managers and investments and provides you with quarterly performance reports. We utilize various security products including: exchange traded funds ("ETFs"), mutual funds, bonds, equities and/or other securities to implement the investment strategy selected by you. Brinker may utilize the Destinations Funds, for which we serve as adviser, with authority to hire, fire and allocate assets among professional unaffiliated investment managers, ETFs and mutual funds.

The minimum account size starts at \$10,000, but will depend upon which strategy you select. More detailed information regarding our services and the clients we serve is provided in the relevant program brochure, called an ADV, Part 2A Brochure ("Brochure"), which are available at www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com and www.clsinvest.com/inquiries/.

"Given my financial situation, should I choose an investment advisory service? Why or why not?"

"How will you choose investments to recommend to me?"

"What is your relevant experience, including your licenses, education and other qualifications? What do these qualifications mean?"

#### What fees will I pay?

For our services, we charge an advisory fee based on a percentage of the value of your assets managed by us. If invested in any Brinker Programs that invest directly in ETFs, stocks or bonds you will be charged a "wrap fee" that includes investment advice and costs of trade executions (unless you select a per trade ticket charge option). This means that we pay the trading costs out of the fee that we receive from you. Our "wrap fee" also includes fees for investment advice, portfolio managers, and custody and clearing services. Our fee may also include a fee we pay to Financial Advisors or solicitors who act as the liaison between you and Brinker.

We bill our advisory fee either in advance or in arrears, on a monthly or quarterly basis, as specified in your Investment Advisory Agreement. Advisory fees billed in advance are based on the market value of all your assets under management on the last trading day of each advisory fee period, unless otherwise specified. If your advisory fees are billed in advance, you may also be billed for additional monies added to your account during the advisory fee period. No adjustments to your advisory fee will be made for monies withdrawn during the advisory fee period. Upon termination, we will issue you a prorated refund of all unearned advisory fees that you paid in advance. Advisory fees billed in arrears will generally be determined based on your account balance on a daily basis unless otherwise specified. Please refer to your Investment Advisory Agreement, including attached addendums and schedules, to determine how your advisory fees will be calculated and billed. In any partial advisory fee cycle, your advisory fee will be pro-rated based on the number of days your assets are under management for the applicable period.

Our fees are negotiable, but generally range from 0.00% - 2.30%. This amount includes the fee paid to a Financial Advisor or solicitor. Because our wrap fee includes most brokerage costs, our fee is higher than a typical asset-based advisory fee or the fee we charge for our non-wrap fee program, which does not include these costs. You will pay our fee whether you make or lose money on your investments. Fees and costs will reduce any amount of money you make on your investments over time. Please make sure you understand what fees and costs you are paying. Because we charge an asset-based fee, the total fees you pay us will increase with the size of your account. This creates an incentive for us to recommend that you increase the assets

in your account.

Our advisory fee is separate and distinct from fees and expenses charged by mutual funds or ETFs, which are described in the fund's prospectus. All advisory fees we receive from Destinations Funds are credited, dollar for dollar, against the fee charged under your investment advisory agreement with us.

More detailed information regarding fees and costs can be found in your agreement with us and in Item 5 of the Brinker Brochure, which are available at www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com and www.clsinvest.com/inquiries/.

"Help me understand how these fees and costs might affect my investments. If I give you \$10,000 to invest, how much will go to fees and costs, and how much will be invested for me?"

What are your legal obligations to me when acting as my investment adviser? How else does your firm make money and what conflicts of interest do you have?

When we act as your investment adviser, we have to act in your best interest and not put our interest ahead of yours. At the same time, the way we make money creates certain conflicts with your interests. You should understand and ask us about these conflicts because they can affect the investment advice we provide you. Here are some examples to help you understand what this means:

**Proprietary Products.** We receive advisory fees based on the amount of assets in the Destinations Funds, which creates an incentive for us to use these funds in client accounts.

Constellation Trust Company. We do not serve as the custodian for your managed assets; however, we do have an affiliated custodian, Constellation Trust Company ("CTC"). We have an incentive for you to custody your accounts at CTC because they are more operationally efficient for us to manage and because CTC earns revenue from accounts for which it provides custodial services.

More detailed information about our conflicts of interest can be found in the Brinker Brochure, which are available at <a href="https://www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com">www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com</a> and www.clsinvest.com/inquiries/.

"How might your conflicts of interest affect me, and how will you address them?"

# How do your financial professionals make money?

Our portfolio managers' compensation includes an annual base salary and a discretionary bonus, which may be based on various factors including performance metrics and firm profitability. Our sales personnel receive compensation based on new assets brought under management. Certain professionals have an equity interest in Orion Advisor Solutions, Brinker's parent company. These compensation structures create an incentive for our financial professionals to recommend that you increase the size of your account with us.

# Do you or your financial professionals have legal or disciplinary history?

Yes, one of our portfolio managers settled an outstanding student loan debt in 2014 with a creditor. For a free and simple search tool to research us and our financial professionals, please go to <u>investor.gov/CRS</u>.

"As a financial professional, do you have any disciplinary history? For what type of conduct?"

#### Additional Information

You can obtain additional information regarding our firm on our website www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com and www.clsinvest.com/inquiries/. If you have any questions about the contents of this CRS or would like a current copy, please contact us at (610) 407-5500.

"Who is my primary contact person?"

"Is he or she a representative of an investment adviser or a broker-dealer?"

"Who can I talk to if I have concerns about how this person is treating me?"

# **Brinker Capital Investments, LLC**

# **BROCHURE**

1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250
Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
(610) 407-5500
www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com
www.clsinvest.com

This Brochure provides information about the qualifications and business practices of Brinker Capital Investments, LLC ("Brinker. If you have any questions about the contents of this Brochure, please contact us at (610) 407-5500.

The information in this Brochure has not been approved or verified by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") or by any state securities authority.

Brinker is a registered investment adviser. Investment adviser registration does not imply a certain level of skill or training. Additional information about Brinker is available on the SEC's website at www.adviserinfo.sec.gov. The SEC's website also provides information about those individuals who are registered as investment adviser representatives of Brinker.

October 18, 2022

# **Item 2 – Material Changes**

This Brochure is dated October 18, 2022. Our last annual filing was on March 31, 2022. Since our last annual filing, the following updates were made:

- Update Item 4 to reflect the name change of Tax Managed Solutions and Direct Indexing to Orion Custom Indexing and Disciplined Equity.
- Update Items 5 and 14 to reflect the fee schedule for Disciplined Equity and Orion Custom Indexing.
- Addition of Item 10 of new affiliate: Townsquare Capital LLC and name changes to BasisCode Compliance and HiddenLevers to Orion Compliance and Orion Risk Intelligence.

# **Item 3 – Table of Contents**

# **Contents**

Item 1 – Cover Page	1
Item 2 – Material Changes	2
Item 3 – Table of Contents	
Item 4 – Advisory Business	4
Item 5 – Fees and Compensation	16
Item 6 – Performance-Based Fees and Side-By-Side Management	24
Item 7 – Types of Clients	25
Item 8 – Methods of Analysis, Investment Strategies and Risk of Loss	
Item 9 – Disciplinary Information	
Item 10 – Other Financial Industry Activities and Affiliations	
Item 11 – Code of Ethics, Participation or Interest in Client Transactions and Personal Trading	34
Item 12 – Brokerage Practices	
Item 13 – Review of Accounts	41
Item 14 – Client Referrals and Other Compensation	42
Item 15 – Custody	44
Item 16 – Investment Discretion	45
Item 17 – Voting Client Securities	
Item 18 – Financial Information	49
APPENDIX I	

# **Item 4 – Advisory Business**

# **Description of Brinker and Principal Owners**

Brinker Capital Investments, LLC, ("Brinker"), a Nebraska limited liability company, was founded as CLS Investments, LLC ("CLS") in Omaha, Nebraska in 1989. Prior to September 24, 2020, CLS was a subsidiary of Orion Advisor Solutions, LLC ("OAS"), CLS and its OAS affiliates were majority owned by an investment entity controlled and managed by TA Associates Management, L.P and its affiliates ("TA Associates"). On September 24, 2020, CLS (and its OAS affiliates) and Brinker Capital, Inc. ("BCI") were acquired by Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc. ("Orion"), a newly formed company controlled by funds affiliated with Genstar Capital Partners LLC and TA Associates (the "Change of Control Transaction"). BCI was an unaffiliated registered investment adviser, wholly-owned by Brinker Capital Holdings, Inc., whose principal owner was Irwin Charles Widger.

Immediately following the Change of Control Transaction, BCI merged into CLS, and the combined entity changed its name to Brinker Capital Investments, LLC, a Nebraska limited liability company.

Brinker furnishes or arranges for investment management and supervisory services to meet the individual needs of its clients. A more detailed description of the services Brinker provides to its clients in the Brinker Programs can be found under the heading "**Types of Advisory Services**" below.

## **Types of Advisory Services**

Brinker furnishes or arranges for investment management and supervisory services to meet the individual needs of its clients. We provide investment advice to individuals, pension, retirement, educational savings, profit sharing plans, endowments, other pooled investment vehicles, trusts, estates, charitable organizations, corporations or other business entities, and state or municipal government entities. Our investment management services are available directly at Brinker through accounts maintained at a qualified custodian ("Direct Client"), through employer sponsored retirement plans, and on select platforms. We also serve as an investment adviser to mutual funds.

The client's investment objectives will be determined based on answers to an investment strategy questionnaire as discussed in more detail in Item 8 of this Brochure. Brinker offers a variety of services to its clients in order to meet those needs. These services include:

- <u>Core Asset Manager Program</u> a separately managed account platform, which may also include privately placed or publicly traded pooled investment vehicles (such as hedge funds, mutual funds, exchange traded funds, real estate investment trusts and master limited partnerships). In its Core Asset Manager program, Brinker provides both discretionary management (branded as "*Core Guided*") and non-discretionary management services (branded as "*Core Select*"). Discretionary clients authorize Brinker to hire and fire investment managers and make asset allocation changes. Nondiscretionary clients must approve Brinker's portfolio manager and product recommendations. The discretionary offerings within the *Core Guided* program include:
  - Core Guided Portfolios various discretionary Brinker-managed asset allocation models for both taxable and nontaxable accounts that utilize separate account managers, mutual funds and exchange traded funds to implement different risk tolerance-based portfolios. The minimum for Core Guided Strategy is \$500,000; and
  - Focused Strategies Brinker-managed model portfolios targeting specific asset classes

     domestic equity, international equity, fixed income, global credit, real assets and alternative investments available as a component of their overall asset allocation or as a complementary investment allocation. The minimum for a Focused Strategy is

- ETF and Mutual Fund Portfolio Programs
  - <u>Destinations Program</u> a discretionary Brinker-managed asset allocation program that uses mutual funds, including Brinker's Destinations Funds (described below), and/or exchange-traded funds (ETFs) to implement a variety of investment strategies with different risk and reward characteristics. In its Destinations program, Brinker offers a variety of asset allocation strategies, each targeting a specific investment objective, for both taxable and tax-exempt accounts. The strategies provide different balances of risk and reward depending on a client's risk tolerance and time horizon, and are designed to offer consistent, competitive performance while seeking to achieve attractive risk-adjusted returns over the long term. Brinker monitors the performance of each underlying investment manager (either a sub-adviser within the Destinations Funds or a third-party fund) and replaces or reallocates assets among the funds or underlying managers used to implement these strategies based on factors it deems appropriate. These factors can include Brinker's evaluation of historical performance, market conditions and Brinker's investment outlook. Brinker's Destinations program is offered through different series of asset allocation models, the primary difference in each series being the type of investment vehicles utilized. Currently, "Destinations", its mutual fund asset allocation models, and "Destinations ETFh," the ETF-based asset allocation models (comprised of ETFs and unaffiliated third-party mutual funds) are available directly from Brinker and through third party platforms. The Destinations Fund program has a \$10,000 minimum and the Destinations ETFh program has a \$25,000 minimum.
  - Destinations Hybrid Portfolios Program a discretionary Brinker-managed account program that is offered utilizing a combination of Affiliated Funds and other investment options. Under this strategy you may select an initial allocation of thirty percent (30%), fifty percent (50%), or seventy-five percent (75%) of the assets in your account to be invested in Destinations Funds with the remaining balance invested among other investment options. Your account will be rebalanced if your allocation to Destinations Funds exceeds the target by 5% (i.e., 35%, 55% and 80%, respectively). You may at any time instruct us in writing not to place any of your managed assets in Destinations Funds; however, in such event you will be required to select a different Brinker strategy. For more information about the Destinations Funds and any management fees received by us from the Destinations Funds, please see Item 5 and the applicable Destinations Funds prospectus. The program has a \$10,000 minimum.
  - Personal Benchmark Program a discretionary Brinker-managed account program for clients that allocates across multiple Destinations investment strategies based upon a client's risk tolerance. Personal Benchmark segregates assets into "buckets" to align with unique client goals (e.g., accumulation, safety) to make clearer how progress toward those goals is occurring. The underlying investment strategies in Personal Benchmark use Brinker's Destinations Funds. The Personal Benchmark program has a \$100,000 minimum.
  - American Funds Strategy Program a discretionary Brinker-managed account program solely comprised of American Funds class F shares in a diversified, risk budgeted framework, according to client objectives. The program has a \$25,000 minimum.

- American Hybrid Strategy Program a discretionary Brinker-managed account program and is offered utilizing a combination of Destinations Funds and American Funds class F shares. An initial allocation of thirty percent (30%) of the assets in this strategy will be invested in Destinations Funds with the remaining balance invested among American Funds. Account will be rebalanced if your allocation to Destinations Funds exceeds the target by 5%. The program has a \$25,000 minimum.
- Core Plus ETF Strategy Program a discretionary Brinker-managed account program that diversifies client portfolios primarily among ETFs according to your objectives. The strategy is focused on total return and seeks allocation to core asset class ETFs, as well as some targeted satellite ETF positions. The program has a \$25,000 minimum.
- Brinker Capital ESG Portfolios a discretionary Brinker-managed account program that uses in accordance with your objectives, mutual funds, ETFs, and/or other securities that are deemed to be environmental, social, and governance (ESG) companies. ESG investing focuses on inclusion of companies which benefit the natural environment, maintain healthy relationships with employees and communities, and have strong support for shareholder rights. The program has a \$25,000 minimum.
- Active Income Strategy Program The Active Income Strategy is designed for clients who prefer an active strategy that seeks a specific percentage yield by investing in income producing asset classes. When selecting the strategy, you will select the percentage yield you would like Brinker to target for your account. The strategy invests in ETFs and CEFs that specialize in income-producing assets. In addition to traditional dividend-oriented equities and investment grade bonds, the strategy generates income using non-traditional asset classes, such as master limited partnerships, real estate, convertibles, senior bank loans, high-yield bonds, and international debt. The program has a \$25,000 minimum.
- Managed Income Strategy Program The ETF Managed Income Strategy uses Risk Budgeting to manage an account for clients seeking income from a diversified portfolio of income-producing assets. The strategy seeks to help clients with a desire for regular income meet their short and long-term income needs by dividing the account into up to three separate investment portfolios: immediate, short-term, and long-term. If you enroll in this strategy, you can designate a specific amount of assets needed to satisfy your short-term income needs. These assets will be invested in a low-risk reserve portfolio that will seek to generate returns in excess of the average money market fund with risk less than or equal to low duration investment bonds. Brinker recommends one to two years' worth of withdrawals; however, the strategy allows for you to specify your desired amount. If you elect systematic withdrawals on your account, assets will also be set aside in a low-risk cash account for those immediate, systematic withdrawals. The remainder of your account will be set aside in a long- term portfolio invested primarily in income or interest-generating investments. The long-term portfolio will be invested primarily in ETFs. Assets designated for this portfolio will seek to provide long-term growth and a steady stream of income. The program has a \$25,000 minimum.
- Digital Assets Portfolio Program Brinker offers a Digital Asset Strategy that invests in exchange traded products to provide flexible and balanced exposure to the

promising growth of the digital asset ecosystem. The program has a \$25,000 minimum.

Disciplined Equity/Orion Custom Indexing Program - Brinker offers Disciplined Equity (formerly Direct Indexing) Solutions which are models managed through an optimization tool that helps Brinker select a portfolio of individual stocks that target the performance of a particular equity index while customizing the portfolio for each account. With the assistance of the optimization tool, we seek to track the risk and returns of the designated index. A client may elect Orion Custom Indexing (formerly Tax Managed Solutions) to provide further customization to client tax preferences such as capital gains budgets and tax transition services. Destinations Funds may be held in the Custom Indexing product as clients tax preferences are being implemented. During the time Brinker will continue to collect its fee as adviser to the Destinations Funds.

## • High Net Worth Programs

- <u>Wealth Advisory Program</u> a customized service and dedicated support to meet the needs of high-net worth and ultra-high net worth investors, family offices, institutions and endowments with \$1 million or more in investable assets. Wealth Advisory is designed for Brinker to manage the overall investment process, including asset and investment style allocation decisions, portfolio manager selection and review, and comprehensive monitoring of the client's portfolio. A dedicated Brinker client account manager is assigned to the client relationship and is available for regular communications concerning the activity and status of their account.
  - In the Wealth Advisory program, portfolios are generally allocated among different portfolio managers, mutual funds and/or ETFs. Where deemed appropriate, based on the client's objectives, assets, risk tolerance and investment experience as well as to obtain greater asset and style diversification, Brinker may recommend to clients that a portion of the client's portfolio be invested in one or more other investments in lieu of allocating assets separately to a portfolio manager or a Brinker-managed strategy. These other investments may include an investment in REITs, Private Funds, ETNs or other pooled investment vehicles. Special fee arrangements may apply with respect to Private Fund investments.
  - In the Wealth Advisory program, Brinker offers both discretionary and nondiscretionary investment management services. Where granted discretionary authority, the client authorizes Brinker to hire and fire portfolio managers and to rebalance the account without further approval from the client.
  - Wealth Advisory services include (but are not limited to) comprehensive portfolio analysis of a client's existing assets to help identify inefficiencies and address investment needs, tax transition management to assist a client in transferring highly-appreciated stock and move toward a more diversified portfolio over time, development of a personalize investment solution based upon the client's goals, tax preferences, risk tolerance and financial plan, and access to a dedicated Brinker client account manager to assist with portfolio reviews, reallocations, investment updates and educational needs.
  - As part of the services offered to clients in its Wealth Advisory program, Brinker has approved certain third party companies to provide specialized services. Currently, these providers and services are:
    - Philanthropic Services: Fidelity Charitable, an independent, section 501(c)(3) public charity that administers donor-advised funds. Through the Charitable Investment Advisor Program at Fidelity Charitable, Brinker will actively manage the Fidelity Charitable assets contributed by its clients. Fidelity Charitable charges a fee

- for these services and Brinker does not receive any direct or indirect revenue from Fidelity Charitable.
- Securities backed line of credit: Brinker uses Orion Cash and Credit
  or TriState Capital to provide loans secured by eligible securities.
  Using these loan facilities, clients can pledge their investment
  account(s) as collateral to meet many of their financing needs, with
  the exception of purchasing securities. TriState Capital charges a
  fee for these services and Brinker does not receive any direct or
  indirect revenue from TriState Capital.
- Trust Services: First State Trust Company and Comerica Bank and Trust N.A. ("Comerica") offer trust services, including but not limited to Personal, Revocable, Irrevocable, Charitable, & Special Needs Trusts. Both First State Trust Company and Comerica charge a fee for these services and Brinker does not receive any direct or indirect revenue from either firm.
- Business Valuation: BizEquity LLC provides business valuation analysis for Brinker's business owner clients. BizEquity charges Brinker a licensing fee for use of its online business valuation application and Brinker includes the cost of this service within the fee it charges its client. Brinker does not receive any direct or indirect revenue from BizEquity.
- Master Manager uses Risk Budgeting to determine the proper allocation of your portfolio among various investment ETFs, bonds, individual securities and/or mutual funds with us acting as the asset allocation overlay manager. Based on your individual investment objectives, we may honor special requests regarding available mutual funds, ETFs and/or other securities to be utilized as well as investment research and sub-advisers. This strategy will primarily utilize ETFs, individual taxable or non-taxable bonds and/or equities and may be sub-advised by third parties selected by us as indicated in your Investment Advisory Agreement or managed utilizing investment research and portfolio models provided by third parties. A portion of the advisory fee you pay to us may be used by us to compensate these third-party providers. Your portfolio allocation will be based on your individual characteristics. This strategy may be best suited for clients wishing to have greater control over portfolio transactions, cash flow streams and/or greater visibility to the actual holdings of the portfolio. The minimum account balance for Master Manager strategies is \$500,000, at this time we are not accepting new business into Master Manager.
  - The Master Manager Managed Income Strategy uses Risk Budgeting to manage an account for clients seeking consistent income from a diversified portfolio of income-producing assets. The strategy seeks to help clients with a desire for regular income to meet their short and long-term income needs by dividing the account into up to three separate investment portfolios: immediate, short-term, and long-term.
  - The Master Manager Tax-Managed Strategy uses Risk Budgeting to determine the proper allocation of your portfolio among various investment ETFs, bonds, individual securities and/or mutual funds with us acting as the asset allocation overlay manager. The primary emphasis of this strategy is performance, followed by diligence to tax liability. Tax consequences are taken into consideration for each transaction and generally, short-term gains are avoided, unless a portfolio transaction makes sense to avoid excessive loss in the security. Based on your individual investment objectives, we may honor special requests regarding available mutual

funds, ETFs and/or other securities to be utilized as well as investment research and sub-advisers.

- VA Managed Strategy The VA Managed Strategy uses Risk Budgeting to diversify your portfolio according to your Risk Budget solely within the variable annuities specified by you, according to your objectives. The strategy provides investment management of available sub-accounts in a diversified, Risk Budgeted framework through multiple variable annuity providers to produce a Risk Budgeted portfolio. The investment options ordinarily available to Brinker in managing your account pursuant to this strategy may be limited if your variable annuity is subject to riders or other restrictions from the variable annuity provider. The program has a \$10,000 minimum.
- Individualized Account Management The Individualized Account Management Strategy uses Risk Budgeting to diversify your portfolio among several different asset classes utilizing the mutual fund families available on your platform or through your custodian, according to your objectives. The program has a \$20,000 minimum.

<u>The strategy and program minimums listed above may vary by custodian.</u> Exceptions to the minimum account sizes set forth above may be made on a case-by-case basis.

Retirement Plan Services – Retirement plan advisory services utilizing Brinker's Destinations investment strategies for tax-exempt accounts, as well as mutual fund and ETF evaluation and selection to sponsors of retirement plans covered by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA") and other qualified and non-qualified deferred compensation plans. Brinker's Retirement Plan Services is available to plans with at least \$250,000 of investable assets. The Retirement Plan Services Program is provided in conjunction with a recordkeeping service provider, who may also provide Plan administration (the "recordkeeper") and generally a broker-dealer or investment advisory firm.

In the Retirement Plan Services Program, the Plan sponsor enters into both (i) an investment advisory agreement with Brinker, and (ii) a separate administrative and recordkeeping services agreement with the recordkeeper. A solicitor and, in some cases, one of the solicitor's investment advisory representatives, may also be a party to the investment advisory agreement. Pursuant to the investment advisory agreement, Brinker provides to the Plan sponsor, and assists the Plan sponsor in selecting a group of investment strategies, which may include the Destinations Funds, which the Plan sponsor then makes available to Plan participants as investment options under the Plan. Brinker also provides the Plan sponsor with a participant questionnaire, which the Plan sponsor makes available to Plan participants to assist each Plan participant in determining his or her investment goals and objectives and risk tolerance and in selecting a suitable investment strategy for the participant's Plan account.

Brinker implements certain investment strategies (listed above) selected by the Plan sponsor and made available to Plan participants. From time to time, Brinker may develop additional models or customized investment strategies for a plan sponsor.

Brinker has full discretion in selecting the funds to be included in the asset allocation models used to implement the investment strategies. Brinker reviews the models on a periodic basis and updates and rebalances the models from time to time in accordance with the related investment strategy, taking into account the performance of the funds, market conditions and other factors it deems appropriate, and electronically transmits changes to the models to the recordkeeper. The recordkeeper is responsible for executing trades in the Plan participants' accounts to reflect changes in the models provided by Brinker.

Brinker also offers evaluation and selection services to identify a limited number of unaffiliated mutual funds and/or ETFs in which Plan participants may invest their Plan accounts. Plan sponsors who elect this additional service authorize Brinker to select additional funds. If a Plan sponsor elects the additional fund evaluation service, Brinker is authorized to select, add, remove and/or replace funds available for purchase by Plan participants consistent with any written investment policy approved by the Plan sponsor and provided to Brinker and with any requirements under ERISA, based upon Brinker's evaluation of each fund's performance, market conditions and other factors it deems appropriate. Plan sponsors can, however, specify securities which cannot be purchased. If Brinker adds a new fund or replaces a fund on the additional fund list, Brinker will notify the Plan sponsor sufficiently in advance of such action to enable the Plan sponsor to provide any notice to Plan participants required under ERISA. The Plan sponsor is responsible for delivering to Plan participants any change notice required under ERISA informing such Plan participants how their accounts will be invested as of the change if the Plan participant fails to provide affirmative investment directions.

Brinker is responsible for monitoring the relevant data on the performance of each mutual fund, ETF and Destinations model and provides periodic reporting on the performance of each fund and Destinations model.

When a party to the Brinker investment advisory agreement with the Plan sponsor, a solicitor has a number of responsibilities, including, without limitation:

- conducting participant enrollment meetings and providing ongoing participant education services;
- assisting employees in completing the participant questionnaire and the forms or documents necessary for Plan participation, collecting enrollment forms, investment selection forms and copies of beneficiary designation forms and transmitting them to the recordkeeper;
- collecting census information and enrollment elections from the Plan sponsor and delivering these materials to the recordkeeper;
- providing all investment communications to employees and participants and responding to inquiries from employees and participants regarding investment profiles, available investments and investment elections, including available investment strategies and asset allocation models;
- assisting in obtaining Plan financial data for monitoring ERISA Section 404(c) compliance;
   and
- at least annually, reviewing the Plan's investment options with the Plan sponsor to determine whether the Plan sponsor wishes to make any changes in the investment strategies and asset allocation models available to Plan participants. These responsibilities are performed or overseen by the solicitor's investment advisory representative. A Plan sponsor may elect to contract separately with a third-party provider for these services.

#### **Other Management Services**

Brinker offers certain of its investment strategies and programs (primarily as a model manager) on platforms of unaffiliated managers or sponsors. Brinker may also provide manager due diligence and other operational related services to third-party platforms. Certain model portfolios and strategies are available through a wrap fee program sponsored by the investment platform provider. Brinker also provides recommendations and investment advice regarding investment strategies to educational savings plans and to individual clients through brokerage platforms, model portfolio holdings and/or weighting and other information regarding the construction and maintenance of portfolios, and advice concerning the submission of trades on behalf of certain client portfolios pursuant to written agreements with other investment management firms, clients, or others.

From time to time, Brinker develops a customized investment strategy for a client in its Wealth Advisory Program. Fees for such services are negotiated on a case-by-case basis. Brinker also develops new investment management strategies on a test basis with funds provided by Brinker, Brinker employees, their family members and a limited number of clients before such management strategies are made available generally. Brinker may or may not charge a fee for its management of such accounts.

Brinker's services are generally provided to the client pursuant to an investment advisory agreement between Brinker and the client. However, Brinker may also enter into a tri-party investment advisory agreement with the client and another investment advisory firm that assumes fiduciary responsibility for recommending and/or selecting the investment strategy for the client, including, in the case of an account invested in the Core Asset Manager program, a suitable asset allocation and selection of investment managers and other investments.

Brinker has entered into an agreement with MML Investor Services, LLC ("MMLIS"), to provide its Wealth Advisory, Core Asset Manager and Destinations programs to MMLIS advisory clients, pursuant to a tri-party agreement among Brinker, MMLIS and the client (the "MMLIS Brinker co-advisory program"). MMLIS is the introducing broker and National Financial Services LLC serves as the clearing firm and custodian for the MMLIS Brinker co-advisory program. The fees charged, the minimum account size and each firm's roles and responsibilities are described in the MMLIS Brochure for the MMLIS Brinker co-advisory program.

#### **CLIENT DISCRETION**

The scope of Brinker's authority is set forth in the client's investment advisory agreement and is limited by the investment objectives of any account. Brinker has full investment discretion for accounts invested in its Destinations and Personal Benchmark programs. Brinker offers both discretionary investment management and non-discretionary investment advisory services in its Core Asset Manager and Wealth Advisory programs. Clients with non-discretionary accounts ("Core Select") approve the portfolio manager selection and individual investment vehicles in which the account is invested, although Brinker may use a "negative consent" process to replace an existing manager, consistent with the client's goals and objectives, based upon Brinker's evaluation of such portfolio manager's performance. Portfolio managers on Brinker's separate account platform have discretionary authority to buy and sell securities, consistent with their investment style and strategy.

A client may impose reasonable restrictions on the management of the client's account, including the designation of specific securities or a specific category of securities that should not be purchased for the account or that should be sold if held in the account, and may reasonably modify such restrictions from time to time. Any restrictions placed on the management of a client's account or particular requirements of an account may cause Brinker or a portfolio manager to deviate from investment decisions it would otherwise make in recommending an investment strategy or managing the account. When a client restricts a category of securities that may be purchased for the account, Brinker or the portfolio manager will determine, in its sole discretion, the specific securities in that category. Any client-imposed restrictions on individual securities that may be purchased for the account shall apply only to individual stocks within separately managed portfolios.

# **DESTINATIONS FUNDS**

Brinker serves as the investment adviser for each series of the Brinker Capital Destinations Trust, a registered investment company currently comprising ten separate mutual funds, which became available to Brinker clients on April 1, 2017: "Destinations Large Cap Equity Fund," "Destinations Multi Strategy Alternatives Fund," "Destinations Small-Mid Cap Equity Fund," "Destinations International Equity Fund," "Destinations Equity Income Fund," "Destinations Real Assets Fund," "Destinations Core Fixed Income Fund," "Destinations Global Fixed Income Opportunities

Fund", "Destinations Municipal Fixed Income Fund", and "Destinations Shelter Fund" (each, a "Destinations Fund" and collectively, the "Destinations Funds"). Each Destinations Fund employs a manager-of-managers structure, whereby Brinker selects and oversees professional third-party investment managers (each, a "sub-adviser"), who are responsible for investing the assets allocated to them. Brinker may also allocate a portion of a Destinations Fund's assets to ETF and mutual fund investment strategies. Each Destinations Fund is offered by its prospectus only. The prospectus for each Destinations Fund includes investment objectives, risks, fees, expenses, and other information that prospective investors should read and consider carefully before investing.

The Destinations Funds have two share classes: Class I and Class Z. The expense ratio for Class I shares is approximately 15 basis points (0.15%) higher than the expense ratio for Class Z shares. The 15 basis point difference represents sub-transfer agent fees the Destinations Fund pays to its custodian with respect to Class I Shares for administrative services provided to the Brinker accounts. The Class Z shares do not pay a sub-transfer agent fee to the fund custodian, and the broker-dealer or financial advisor for the client's account assumes responsibility for these services and their related expenses. Accordingly, the operating expenses allocated to, and borne by, the Class Z shares are less than those allocated to, and borne by, the Class I shares, making the Class Z shares a lower cost alternative (based solely on fund expenses). However, if Brinker invested client accounts in Class Z shares, its custodian would charge the client a separate custody and clearing fee. Generally, that fee is more than 15 basis points, depending on account size, and includes a minimum fee, which significantly increases the effective rate for smaller accounts. Consequently, Brinker determined that the overall cost to Brinker clients (direct custodian fees and indirect costs imposed at the fund level) would be greater than the cost associated with an investment in Class I shares. For these reasons, Brinker invests assets on the Brinker platform in Class I shares of the Destinations Funds, which are the overall lower cost alternative.

Brinker offers its Destinations investment strategies on the platforms of unaffiliated broker-dealers and sponsors. The custodians for such third party platforms often impose separate custody and clearing fees, which may be more or less than the 15 basis point sub-transfer agency fee charged by the Destinations Fund's custodian with respect to the Class I shares. Each broker-dealer or financial adviser who holds accounts outside the Brinker platform will determine the appropriate share class for its clients based on an analysis of costs to both client and their firm and the services provided to each share class.

Brinker utilizes only its Destinations Funds in its Destinations models. Destinations Funds may have higher ongoing operating expenses (and thus higher expense ratios) than unaffiliated funds available in other investment programs. Accordingly, the Destinations program, which uses Destinations Funds exclusively, may be more costly than other mutual fund allocation programs that utilize funds with lower expense ratios.

Destinations Funds shares available to participants in Brinker's advisory programs are Institutional share classes that do not pay Rule 12b-1 fees or other similar distribution or transaction expenses. With respect to any third party funds included in its Third Party Fund Destinations models, Brinker purchases the available mutual fund share class with the lowest internal expense ratio (generally the "Institutional" class). However, these third party funds may impose transaction fees in connection with the purchase or sale of shares.

#### WRAP FEE PROGRAM, TRANSACTION FEES, AND OTHER EXPENSES

Brinker's programs that utilize ETFs, stocks, and/or bonds are structured as wrap fee programs. Under the wrap fee programs, investment advice and costs of trade executions are provided to clients for an all-inclusive wrap fee. This means that under wrap fee programs, we pay the trading costs out of the advisory fee that we receive from you. The wrap fee program is limited to specific strategies and is only available at select custodians. Please consult your investment advisory agreement to determine whether the strategies you selected are part of Brinker's wrap fee program.

ETF shares incur transaction expenses, which are paid to the custodian either as separate transaction charge or through an asset-based fee (*i.e.*, a percentage of assets in the account). With respect to any mutual funds included in the Destinations ETFh strategies, Brinker purchases the available mutual fund share class with the lowest internal expense ratio (generally the "Institutional" class), which share class may impose transaction fees. The Brinker fee for the Destinations ETFh program includes an asset-based fee paid to the custodian to cover transaction costs (see Item 5 of this Brochure under the heading "**Destination Program Fees**"). This enables Brinker to make investment decisions for Destinations ETFh accounts without regard to transaction costs. This is particularly valuable for clients who make regular contributions or withdrawals from their accounts.

Trading activity is influenced by the frequency of rebalances, contributions and withdrawals. The more infrequent the trading activity (determined by fund changes and rebalances and client additions and withdrawals) and the larger the size of the account, the more likely that an asset-based fee will be more costly than a separate transaction charge. Since trading activity is dictated by multiple factors, including changes in funds in a client's Destinations ETFh portfolio (e.g., because of Brinker's performance evaluations, changes in managers, funds closing to new investment, etc.), and the frequency of deposits and distributions (which are client driven), it may be difficult to predict the level of trading activity in any year (and thus, whether the asset-based fee would be more or less costly than a separate transaction charge.).

Brinker's fee is in addition to the operating expenses of the funds included in the client's account, which are expressed as the fund's "expense ratio". A fund expense ratio represents the percentage of the fund's assets used to operate the fund and reflect the fund's investment management fee, administrative costs, brokerage costs, distribution fees and other operating expenses. Although these expenses are paid by the fund, clients indirectly bear their pro rata share of such costs. Potential clients should consider both Brinker's fee and the internal expense ratios of the funds included in the program (which are set forth in the prospectus for each fund) when deciding whether the Destinations program may be more or less costly than another investment program. Where Brinker allocates a client's account to a mutual fund for which Brinker or a Brinker affiliate serves as the investment adviser (such as the Destinations Funds), any advisory fees paid to Brinker or its affiliate with respect to the client's investment in such fund are credited to, or offset and reduce, dollar-for-dollar the advisory fee otherwise payable to Brinker under the client's investment advisory agreement.

#### **OTHER SERVICES**

#### **Dollar Value Averaging**

Brinker offers clients in certain models in its Destinations program a "dollar value averaging" option that allows the client to systematically increase the account's market exposure on a monthly basis using a formula based upon a predetermined period (not exceeding 12 months). The client's invested account balance increases by a percentage based upon the number of calendar months in the investment period. In periods when the market declines, the dollar amount invested will increase; and when the market rises in value, the amount invested will decline. If there are funds remaining at the end of the specified investment period (which could occur in a continuous "up" market), Brinker will continue to run the formula until the account is fully invested. The client can discontinue the systematic investment plan and fully invest the account in the market at any time.

Dollar value averaging differs from dollar cost averaging, which involves investing a fixed dollar amount on a regular schedule. Using dollar-cost averaging, more shares are purchased when prices are low and fewer shares are bought when prices are high. Brinker does <u>not</u> offer clients a dollar cost averaging service, in which the periodic investment is executed automatically. However, a client may invest using the dollar-cost averaging technique by placing a portion of the client's assets in a money market account and sending Brinker separate instruction letters directing Brinker to invest the amount specified in such letter. Brinker

does not implement an investment schedule and it is the sole responsibility of the client to send Brinker an instruction letter each time the client wants funds invested.

Dollar value averaging provides a disciplined approach to investing in a volatile market and may outperform traditional "dollar-cost averaging" where the market is volatile over the investment period. However, dollar value averaging may underperform relative to a "buy and hold" or "dollar-cost averaging" strategy if the market generally rises during the investment period, as the account will have lower exposure to positive market returns. Dollar value averaging may underperform "dollar-cost averaging" if the market consistently declines during the investment period as assets will be deployed more quickly into the market, creating greater exposure to negative market returns. Neither dollar value averaging nor dollar cost averaging protects against loss, insures profit or a higher return than lump sum investing.

# **Personalized Distribution Strategy**

Brinker also offers the Personalized Distribution Strategy ("PDS") with its Destinations and Destinations ETFh programs. Minimum assets will vary by investment product offering. The PDS consists of two elements: a liquid cash reserve (a money market fund or other short-term investment vehicle) and an investment portfolio based upon the client's approved investment strategy and program (i.e., a portfolio of mutual funds for the Destinations program or a portfolio comprised of ETFs and unaffiliated third party mutual funds for the Destinations ETFh program).

The client determines the amount of each periodic distribution. The initial cash reserve will equal 24 months of distributions for new clients in the Destinations and Destinations ETFh. Accordingly, the amount in the cash reserve will vary depending upon the client's distribution pattern. All interest and dividends on the investment portfolio will be swept into the cash reserve.

As the cash reserve is depleted by distributions, Brinker will liquidate the investment portfolio and replenish the cash reserve. The timing of such liquidations will be based upon Brinker's analysis of positive technical trends in the market, with a view to avoiding significant liquidations in a "down" market. There can be no assurance that Brinker's methodology will avoid liquidation of the client's investment account during "down" market cycles or that such liquidations will occur at the most optimal time.

Brinker will provide each PDS client with quarterly reports which detail:

- Withdrawal information
- Distribution Stability the estimated number of years which the current level of stable assets would support given the current annual distribution
- Probability of the client's account being depleted over various time horizons, taking into consideration the current distribution rate and current market value, and a comparison to the original projection

Brinker provides each PDS client with an estimate for the number of years their portfolio is likely to last with their requested distribution rate based on a Monte Carlo simulation using both a 50% and a 90% confidence level. For Destinations and Destinations ETFh, the return and risk information used in the projection approximates the asset allocation of the client's account. There can be no assurance that the account will achieve the projected returns or that a client's assets will be sufficient to fund distributions for the projected period. The larger the percentage of the account allocated to equities, the greater the volatility in account performance, which will impact the duration of the account assets. An account utilizing the PDS feature will likely underperform relative to a full investment strategy if the market generally rises during the projected distribution period as the account will have lower exposure to positive market returns. The client may start, stop or modify a scheduled distribution or take additional ad hoc distributions at any time, upon written request to Brinker. Such requests will not terminate the PDS feature. The client may elect to terminate the PDS feature at any time with 5 days' written notice to Brinker.

# **Assets Under Management**

As of December 31, 2021, Brinker managed \$33,225,918,162 of client assets on a discretionary basis and \$8,753,433,150 of client assets on a non-discretionary basis.

# **Item 5 – Fees and Compensation**

#### **GENERAL**

Brinker charges an advisory fee based on a percentage of the value of clients' assets managed by Brinker. Brinker's fee is billed either in advance or in arrears, typically on a monthly or quarterly basis, as specified in the Investment Advisory Agreement. The majority of Brinker's investment strategies are classified as either a wrap fee strategy or a non-wrap fee strategy. Clients in wrap fee strategies pay an "all-inclusive" investment advisory fee (wrap fee), which covers the investment advisory services provided by Brinker and the portfolio manager(s), all custodial services and brokerage commissions (unless a client chooses a per trade ticket charge option on certain municipal securities, mutual fund and ETF trades as described below). Brinker may also pay a portion of the investment advisory fee to solicitors who act as the liaison between the client and Brinker. The investment advisory fee does not cover any fees charged by the SEC or U.S. or foreign stock exchanges based on the sale of a security, any special account fees imposed by the custodian (such as IRA maintenance fees), wire transfer fees, costs associated with temporary investment of client funds in a money market account, transfers of assets upon termination of the account or any internal management or operating fees (including potential redemption fees) or expenses imposed or incurred by a mutual fund or ETF in which the client's account may be invested or any special requests by the client.

When billing in advance, the initial fee is based on the market value of the client's account assets when the account is opened and prorated for the number of days remaining in the calendar quarter. Thereafter, the quarterly fee is due on the first business day of each quarter and is based on the market value of the client's account assets on the last business day of the immediately preceding quarter. Generally, Brinker's fee is either paid through redemption of mutual fund shares or deducted from the client's separately managed accounts, based on the weighted average of the managed account market values. However, upon request of the client, Brinker will bill the client separately instead of deducting the fees. See "**Retirement Plan Services Program Fees**" below for a discussion of fees for the RPS program.

Fees may be discounted or negotiated at Brinker's discretion. Furthermore, from time to time Brinker offers program-wide fee discounts and reduced account minimums as part of its marketing and promotional programs. Such programs may be initiated or discontinued at Brinker's discretion.

Account liquidations are done at no additional charge by Brinker. A termination charge may be imposed by the custodian. The client will be entitled to a prorated refund of any pre-paid quarterly fee based upon the number of days remaining in the quarter after the termination date.

In addition to fees paid to Brinker, clients may be responsible for other types of fees and expenses such as mutual fund expenses. If securities trades are effected by brokers other than the custodian for the client's account, the client may incur brokerage or other transaction costs. For more information on brokerage practices, see the response to Item 12 – **Brokerage Practices**.

Fees for customized investment strategies developed for a client are negotiated on a case-by-case basis. Brinker may or may not charge a fee for management of accounts established by Brinker employees, family members and a limited number of clients to invest in new investment management strategies under development by Brinker. Such fees are disclosed and agreed upon with the client at the time the account is established.

Clients may be able to find comparable services from other sources for fees lower or higher than those charged by Brinker. In particular, if the account has relatively low turnover rates, the wrap or all-inclusive fee may be more costly for the client. Brinker uses Destinations Funds exclusively in its Destinations program. Destinations Funds may have higher ongoing expenses than unaffiliated mutual funds. In evaluating the overall cost of the Destinations program as compared to other investment programs, investors should note that advisory fees paid to Brinker by a Destinations Fund with respect to a client's

investment in such Destinations Fund are credited to, or offset and reduce, dollar-for-dollar the Brinker Fee Component otherwise payable to Brinker under the client's investment advisory agreement. See "FEE SCHEDULES FOR NON-RPS ACCOUNTS – Brinker Fee Component – Brinker Fund Fee Offset" below. Brinker's fee for its Destinations ETFh program includes an asset-based fee to cover transaction costs, which may be more costly for larger accounts with relatively low trading activity than a program that imposes a separate charge on each share transaction.

In the event the client enters into a tri-party investment advisory agreement with Brinker and another investment advisory firm responsible for recommending and/or selecting the investment strategy, the fee paid to the investment advisory firm is in addition to Brinker's fee, but Brinker's fee does not include a solicitor's fee. The investment advisory firm's fee is established by the investment advisory firm, not Brinker. The investment advisory firm's role and its fees are described in that firm's Form ADV, Part 2A.

Certain existing clients may be billed under fee schedules that are not described in this Brochure. The applicable fee schedule is set forth in the client's investment advisory agreement with Brinker and may be changed by Brinker on 30 days' prior notice. Brinker may modify its fee schedule at any time, either generally for a class of accounts or on a case-by case basis.

#### FEE SCHEDULES FOR NON-RPS ACCOUNTS

The client's total fee is based upon the combined fees for each of the following service components: (i) a fee for Brinker's management or advisory services (the "Brinker Fee Component"); (ii) the fees paid by Brinker to any portfolio managers with respect to a client's account (the "Manager Fee Component"); (iii) the custodian's charges for custody and clearing services (the "Custody and Clearing Component"); and, (iv) if the client has been referred to Brinker by a soliciting firm (as described in Item 14 under the heading — CLIENT REFERRALS AND OTHER COMPENSATION — Client Referrals"), the fee paid to a solicitor (the "Solicitor Fee Component"), determined in accordance with Brinker's annual fee schedule as the same may be amended from time to time. Brinker may amend its fee schedule including, without limitation, the Brinker Fee Component, upon at least 30 days' prior written notice. Because the other costs associated with a client's account will be passed through to the client, the client's total fee will vary based upon the allocation of an account among portfolio managers, specific portfolio manager selection and the number of portfolio managers versus funds included in an account. Brinker posts fee schedules for portfolio managers (which determine the Manager Fee Component) and for the Custody and Clearing Fee Component, as they may be amended from time to time, on its website (www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com). The current annual fee schedule for each component is set forth below.

## **Brinker Fee Component**

**Brinker's Standard Fee Schedule.** The annual fee schedule for the Brinker Fee Component (other than Wealth Advisory clients) is "tiered", meaning that the portion of the account assets within each asset tier is charged the fee indicated for such asset tier. The Brinker Fee Component will not change based upon the allocation of assets in the account among portfolio managers and/or funds.

Asset Tier	Brinker Fee
Up to \$100,000	0.64%
\$100,000 to \$1 million	0.50%
Next \$1 million	0.45%
Next \$1 million	0.40%
Next \$2 million	0.35%
Over \$5 million	Negotiable

Because Brinker's standard fee schedule is "tiered", the actual Brinker Fee Component will vary based upon changes in the total value of the client's account (resulting from appreciation, depreciation, liquidations or additional contributions).

**Wealth Advisory Fee Schedule.** The annual Brinker Fee Component for Wealth Advisory accounts is a maximum of 0.65% of account value, provided that the fee may vary on a case-by-case basis, based on the account value and services provided.

**Brinker Fund Fee Offset**: Advisory fees paid to Brinker or a Brinker affiliate by any fund advised by Brinker or a Brinker affiliate, including any Destinations Fund, with respect to a client's investment in such fund are credited to, or offset and reduce, dollar-for-dollar the Brinker Fee Component otherwise payable to Brinker. The Brinker Fee in the above table is gross of such offset. Currently, the Brinker Fund Fee Offset for assets invested in Destinations Funds is 0.39%. The advisory fee paid by Destinations Funds may change in the future and, accordingly, the amount of such offset may increase or decrease. If the fee offset exceeds the Brinker Fee Component calculated under the foregoing fee schedule, Brinker will reduce the total fee by such excess amount.

Fees on existing Destinations accounts may differ from the current fee schedule for new accounts. However, as assets are reallocated to Destinations Funds, the above fee schedule (including the Brinker Fund Fee Offset) will generally apply to the portion of the account invested in Destinations Funds.

Disciplined Equity/Custom Indexing: The annual Brinker Fee Component for Disciplined Equity and Custom Indexing accounts is a maximum of 0.35% of account value a portion of which may be paid to client's investment advisor. See Item 14 for additional information.

## **Manager Fee Component**

Portfolio manager fees generally range from 0.20% to 0.50% of account value for portfolio managers providing individual separate account management, depending on the portfolio manager selected (with certain managers potentially charging a higher fee). The specific manager and manager fee will be set forth on a schedule to the client's investment advisory agreement. Changes to the total fee due to changes in the Manager Fee Component are effective immediately. Portfolio manager fee schedules, as in effect from time to time, are available on Brinker's website (www.brinkercapital.com). A client's quarterly custodial account statement includes the total fee charged on the account for the quarter.

Assets in an account may be allocated to funds as well as portfolio managers. Because Brinker does not pay a management fee with respect to assets invested in funds, the Manager Fee Component will be less if the account has a higher allocation to funds. However, funds in which the account is invested incur management fees and other operating fees and expenses as disclosed in the prospectus for each such

fund, which fees and expenses are in addition to the total fee. There is no Management Fee Component for the Destinations program (or for Personal Benchmark accounts invested in Destinations strategies).

For all of its investment programs other than its non-discretionary Core Asset Manager and Wealth Advisory programs, Brinker has discretion to select portfolio managers and funds for a client's account and to determine the allocation of assets in an account among portfolio managers and funds. The Manager Fee Component of the total fee is determined by the fees Brinker pays to unaffiliated portfolio managers of a client's account and the percentage of the account that is invested in funds. The fees of portfolio managers may vary based upon such portfolio manager's investment style and asset class. Accordingly, the amount of the Manager Fee Component (and thus the total fee) will increase or decrease based upon the allocation among portfolio managers and funds and the specific portfolio managers selected for the account. For example, the Manager Fee Component (and thus the total fee) would increase if the allocation to portfolio managers (versus funds) increases, whether due to superior performance of one or more portfolio managers or because Brinker increases the overall allocation to portfolio managers or allocates assets to a portfolio manager who charges a higher fee. Conversely, if the allocation to funds or to portfolio managers with lower fees increases, the Manager Fee Component (and thus the total fee) would decrease.

# **Custody and Clearing Fee Component**

The Custody and Clearing Fee Component is "tiered," meaning that the portion of the account assets within each asset tier is charged the fee indicated for such asset tier. There is no Custody and Clearing Fee Component for Destinations or Personal Benchmark accounts. Below is the Clearing and Custody Fee Schedule in effect as of the date of this Brochure.

Program / Style	Wealth Advisory Single Account and Core Guided	Core Equity SMA	Core Fixed Income SMA	Core Guided Completion Strategies	Destinations ETFh
First \$250,000	0.10%	0.19%	0.09%	0.09%	0.10%
Next \$250,000	0.09%	0.10%	0.07%	0.07%	0.06%
Next \$500,000	0.08%	0.06%	0.05%	0.05%	0.03%
Next \$1,000,000	0.05%	0.03%	0.03%	0.03%	0.02%
Next \$3,000,000	0.05%	0.03%	0.03%	0.03%	0.02%
Remainder	0.03%	0.03%	0.03%	0.03%	0.02%

The following Asset Class Strategies (ACS), which are no longer marketed, utilize the same Custody and Clearing Fee schedule as Core Equity SMAs: ACS Domestic Equity Enhanced Passive, ACS International, and ACS International Equity Enhanced Passive. ACS Fixed Income Qualified utilizes the same clearing schedule as Core Fixed Income SMA. The *Core Guided Completion Strategies* clearing schedule applies to ACS International ETF accounts. A per ticket clearing schedule is used by ACS Fixed Income Qualified Enhanced Passive. The current ticket charge is \$30.00 per trade, which may be changed from time to time.

Brinker offers two Custody and Clearing fee structures for actively managed municipal securities portfolios. Clients may elect to be charged a separate ticket charge on each trade in the account or an asset-based fee. The current ticket charge is \$30.00 per trade for fixed income and mutual funds and \$8 per trade for equities and ETF's, which may be changed from time to time. No separate ticket charge is imposed on transactions when the client has selected the asset-based fee, which utilizes the Core Fixed Income custody and clearing fee schedule.

Brinker offers two Custody and Clearing fee structures for individual ETF or mutual fund holdings in Core Asset Manager accounts. Clients may elect to be charged a separate ticket charge on each trade in the account or an asset-based fee. The current ticket charge is \$8 per trade for ETFs and \$30 per trade for mutual fund holdings (other than trades of non-transaction fee (NTF) mutual fund shares). The ETF and mutual fund per trade ticket charge may be changed from time to time. No separate ticket charge is imposed on transactions when the client has selected the asset-based custody and clearing schedule, which utilizes the Core Equity custody and clearing fee schedule.

Whether the per trade or the asset based option is more suitable for a client invested in actively managed municipal securities portfolios or individual ETFs or mutual funds will depend on the size of the account and the level of actual trading in the account. The per ticket charge will generally be more suitable for larger accounts without regular distribution programs, where the added ticket charge will usually be less than the additional management fee, while the asset based fee will generally be more suitable for smaller accounts or accounts that have above average transaction volume due to frequent additions or liquidations.

The Clearing and Custody Fee Schedule in effect from time to time is available to clients on Brinker's website (www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com).

#### **Solicitor Fee Component**

The solicitor fee is equal to a percentage of the net asset value of the client's account, as determined by the solicitor and disclosed to the client. Although the solicitor determines the amount of the solicitor fee, it generally ranges from 0.20% to 1.50% of the account net asset value, but the fee could be more or less. The client pays a single fee to Brinker and Brinker pays the solicitor's fee to the solicitor.

In the event the client enters into a tri-party investment advisory agreement with Brinker and another investment advisory firm responsible for recommending and/or selecting the investment strategy, the fee paid to the investment advisory firm is in addition to Brinker's fee, but Brinker's fee does not include a Solicitor Fee Component. The investment advisory firm's fee is established by the investment advisory firm, not Brinker. The investment advisory firm's role and its fees are described in that firm's Form ADV, Part 2A.

#### Advisory Fees for Direct Clients

#### A. Investment Management

The majority of Brinker's investment strategies are classified as either a wrap fee strategy or a non-wrap fee strategy. Wrap fee strategies are included as part of our wrap fee program and primarily utilize ETFs. Under the wrap fee programs, investment advice and costs of trade executions are provided to you for an all-inclusive wrap fee. At certain custodians, the ETFs we utilize may participate in the custodian's non-transaction fee program, and as a result, Brinker will not pay a fee for purchasing these ETFs. We took these programs into account when setting the fee for our wrap fee schedule. Non-wrap fee strategies primarily utilize mutual funds. Since these strategies are not included as part of Brinker's wrap fee program, you are responsible for costs of trade execution in addition to the fee you pay to Brinker. However, to the extent available, Brinker utilizes mutual funds that do not charge trade execution fees. In certain instances, we utilize mutual fund share classes that are slightly more expensive than the cheapest available share class, in order to utilize funds that do not charge you trade execution fees. We only do this when we believe it is cheaper for you to invest in a more expensive share class and not pay transaction fees. For additional information about which strategies are included as part of our wrap fee program, please see **Item 8** of this Brochure.

**Variable Annuities.** For variable annuities managed by Brinker utilizing our VA Managed strategy, you will be charged the following annual fee based upon the total amount of assets enrolled in the strategy:

Assets	Total Advisory Fee	Brinker Retained	Financial Advisor Retained Portion
Less than \$250,000	2.30%	1.15%	1.15%
\$250,000 but less than \$500,000	2.05%	1.025%	1.025%
\$500,000 but less than \$750,000	1.80%	0.90%	0.90%
\$750,000 but less than \$1,000,000	1.55%	0.775%	0.775%
\$1,000,000 or more	1.30%	0.65%	0.65%

Brinker's investment management of the assets contained within a variable annuity are separate and distinct services from the purchase of a variable annuity. As an investment adviser, Brinker does not receive a fee from the sale of an annuity product. If the advisory fee charged by Brinker is withdrawn directly from your annuity, it may impact any riders under your variable annuity contract. Please contact your variable annuity provider to determine the impact Brinker's advisory fees will have on your variable annuity.

#### **BILLING METHOD**

Advisory fees are typically deducted directly from your account, or in some circumstances, you may be billed directly for such fees. Advisory fees billed in advance are based on the market value of all your assets under management on the last trading day of each advisory fee period, unless otherwise specified. If your advisory fees are billed in advance, you may also be billed for additional monies added to your account during the advisory fee period. No adjustments to your advisory fee will be made for monies withdrawn during the advisory fee period. Upon termination, Brinker will issue you a prorated refund of all unearned advisory fees that were paid in advance.

Advisory fees billed in arrears will generally be determined based on your account balance on a daily basis unless otherwise specified. Please refer to your Investment Advisory Agreement, including attached addendums and schedules, to determine the manner your advisory fees will be calculated and billed. In any partial advisory fee cycle, your advisory fee will be pro-rated based on the number of days your assets are under management for the applicable period.

The advisory fees paid to us represent fees for management of your account and are separate from any other fees and expenses charged by other parties, including brokerage, custodian, and other transaction costs; therefore, the advisory fees shown in this Form ADV represent only the fees paid to us and do not reflect operating expenses and other costs charged by the mutual funds, variable annuities or other products you will be invested in and it is important you understand that these expenses and costs are ultimately borne by you, as the shareholder. A complete description of all fees and expenses of the securities in which you are invested are contained in the relevant prospectuses. We also advise you to carefully review your custody agreement with your custodian as there may be custodial fees, transaction fees and other service fees charged to you by your custodian.

The advisory fee schedules listed above are our standard rates. Actual fees, and/or the portion of the advisory fee retained by Brinker and your Financial Advisor, may vary. Please refer to your Investment Advisory Agreement, including attached addendums and schedules, to determine your advisory fee. The standard fee schedules listed above and minimum account sizes for our strategies

described in more detail in Item 4. Fees may be discounted or negotiated at Brinker's discretion and fees for customized investment strategies developed for a client are negotiated on a case by case basis. Furthermore, from time to time Brinker offers program-wide fee discounts and reduced account minimums as part of its marketing and promotional programs. Such programs may be initiated or discontinued at Brinker's discretion. Based on this certain Financial Advisor we offer some or all of their clients discounted fees based on the amount of assets an individual client or the Financial Advisor has with Brinker, the efficiencies gained by managing multiple clients for the same Financial Advisor, and our relationship with the Financial Advisor. As a result, clients with similar assets may have differing fee schedules and pay different fees. You can request that related accounts be combined in order to meet fee break points and reduce the advisory fee charged. We reserve the right to waive or reduce the advisory fee for certain accounts such as employee accounts and personal accounts of Financial Advisors who refer business to us. Clients who negotiate a flat fee schedule may or may not pay a higher fee than those who pay under a tiered schedule, depending on asset levels. Accounts that fall under a legacy fee schedule are grandfathered into our prior billing arrangements but can be transitioned to our current standard fee schedule at any time by contacting Brinker to transition your account to the bill structure described above. Additionally, upon our discontinuing the strategy you are invested in or a significant decrease in your account size and your inability to meet our account minimum for your current strategy, we reserve the right to re-assign your account, upon notice to you, to a more suitable Brinker strategy provided that your account is still managed pursuant to your financial objectives, goals and risktolerance.

The same or similar investment advisory services may be available from other investment advisers for a lower fee.

#### RETIREMENT PLAN SERVICES PROGRAM FEES

Clients participating in Brinker's RPS program typically pay a fee equal to the sum of the Brinker Fee Component and the solicitor's fee. The solicitor's fee is equal to a percentage of the net asset value of the Plan account, as determined by the solicitor and set forth in the investment advisory agreement. The client also pays a separate fee to the recordkeeper for recordkeeping and administrative services. Mutual funds and ETFs incur management fees and other operating fees and expenses, which are in addition to the fees paid by the client to Brinker, the solicitor and the recordkeeper.

The Brinker Fee Component (*excluding* the solicitor's fee) is determined in accordance with the following schedule:

Total Plan Account Value*	Brinker Fee Component
Up to \$2,500,000	0.35%
>\$2,500,000 to \$5,000,000	0.30%
>\$5,000,000 to \$7,000,000	0.25%
Over \$7,000,000	0.20%

<sup>\*</sup> **Note**: Total Plan Account Value represents the portion of the Plan assets managed by or through Brinker's RPS program. The fee schedule is not tiered. The applicable percentage is based on the Plan's total account value as of the last business day of each calendar quarter. Brinker may amend the fee schedule upon at least 90 days prior written notice to Plan Sponsor.

**Brinker Fund Fee Offset**: Advisory fees paid to Brinker or a Brinker affiliate by any fund advised by Brinker or a Brinker affiliate, including any Destinations Fund, with respect to a Plan's investment in such fund are credited to, or offset and reduce, dollar-for-dollar the Brinker Fee Component otherwise payable

to Brinker. The Brinker Fee Component in the above table is gross of such offset. Currently, the Brinker Fund Fee Offset for assets invested in Destinations Funds is 0.39%. If the Brinker Fund Fee Offset exceeds the Brinker Fee Component calculated under the foregoing fee schedule, Brinker will reduce the Plan's total fee by such excess amount. If the fee offset exceeds the total fee payable to Brinker (including the solicitor's fee), such excess will be paid to the Plan. The amount of the Brinker Fund Fee Offset may change based on changes to the advisory fees paid to Brinker or a Brinker affiliate by fund(s) advised by Brinker or a Brinker affiliate.

Accounts above \$10 million are priced separately. Brinker also may negotiate a lower fee on a case-by-case basis.

Fees for Brinker's RPS program can be paid in advance or arrears. When paid in arrears the fee is based on the Plan's account value, as of the last business day of each calendar quarter and are due the following business day. Fees are prorated for the balance of the calendar quarter in which the Plan's account is initially opened. In the event of termination of the account, the fees will be adjusted, on a pro rata basis, to reflect the portion of the final quarter in which termination occurs.

#### **UNSUPERVISED ASSET FEE**

As an accommodation to a client, Brinker may permit a client to deposit cash or other securities ("Unsupervised Assets") in the client's account or, alternatively, at the client's discretion, in a separate account established with the custodian, for which Brinker does <u>not</u> provide asset allocation, portfolio management or performance monitoring services. For custody of Unsupervised Assets, Brinker charges an additional annual fee, payable in four equal installments with the quarterly fee payments. The current fee for custody and administration of Unsupervised Assets is \$275, which may be changed upon thirty (30) day's prior written notice to the client. The client will also be charged any clearing fees or transaction charges imposed by the custodian or brokerage firm in accordance with its fee schedule in effect from time to time, which fees and charges will be deducted from the client's account at the time of the transaction giving rise to the charge.

#### TERMINATION OF ADVISORY AGREEMENT

We can terminate our Investment Advisory Agreement with you at any time by providing you with written notice. Likewise, you can terminate the Investment Advisory Agreement at any time by providing us with written notice. If your Investment Advisory Agreement is terminated within (5) five business days from the date of inception, all fees paid by you in advance will be promptly refunded to you and you will not be charged a termination fee. Should your Investment Advisory Agreement be terminated at any other time, you will receive a pro-rata refund of any prepaid fees. To cover administrative costs associated with terminating an account, Brinker, may imposes an administrative fee of \$75 at the time of termination. The termination fee will be deducted from any advisory fee refunds owed by Brinker to you. If your refund is less than \$75, Brinker will deduct the remaining portion of the termination fee from your account. Brinker reserves the right to waive the administrative fee, or any portion thereof, at its discretion. If you are billed in arrears for our services, any outstanding amounts owed to us for the period of time your assets were under our management shall become immediately due and payable upon termination. As of the effective date of termination of our investment management services, we will have no obligation or authority to recommend or take any action with regard to your previously managed assets. You will bear the sole responsibility to work with your custodian for proper liquidation and/or management of your assets upon termination. Upon termination, we advise you to immediately contact your custodian to ensure your account is allocated according to your wishes.

## Item 6 - Performance-Based Fees and Side-By-Side Management

Brinker charges certain institutional endowment clients a performance fee, which is based upon a share of capital gains or capital appreciation of the assets of such client. Performance-based fees will only be charged in accordance with the provisions of Rule 205-3 of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 ("Advisers Act") and/or applicable state regulations. In addition, it is Brinker's policy not to retain any performance-based fees charged and to pass through any collected performance-based fees to third parties that provide investment research and/or advisory services to Brinker in connection with our management of a client's account, as directed by the client. In order for Brinker to be eligible for a performance-based fee, the account's performance must exceed a designated benchmark. If the account outperforms the designated benchmark, Brinker receives a performance fee of up to 20% of the return in excess of the benchmark. The complete terms of Brinker's advisory fee are disclosed in the Investment Advisory Agreement between you and Brinker. The performance fees charged by Brinker may be higher than the performance fees charged by other investment advisers for the same or similar services.

Brinker's portfolio managers are responsible for managing performance-based fee accounts and accounts that are charged another type of fee. There are potential conflicts of interest Brinker faces by managing performance based accounts at the same time as managing asset based, non-performance based accounts. For example, the nature of a performance fee poses an opportunity for Brinker to earn more compensation than under a stand-alone asset based fee. Consequently, Brinker may favor performance fee accounts over those accounts where we receive only an asset based fee. One way Brinker may favor performance fee accounts is that we could devote more time and attention to performance fee accounts than to accounts under an asset based fee arrangement. Additionally, performance-based fees create an incentive for an adviser such as Brinker to recommend investments that may be riskier or more speculative than those that would be recommended under a different fee arrangement.

Since we endeavor at all times to put the interests of our clients first as part of our fiduciary duty as a registered investment adviser, we take the following steps to address these conflicts:

- 1. We disclose to investors and prospective clients the existence of material conflicts of interest, including the potential for our firm and its employees to earn more compensation from some clients than others.
- 2. We have implemented written policies and procedures for fair and consistent allocation of investment opportunities among all clients.
- 3. We periodically compare holdings and performance of all accounts with similar strategies to identify significant performance disparities indicative of possible favorable treatment.
- 4. We educate our employees regarding the responsibilities of a fiduciary, including the equitable treatment of all clients, regardless of the fee arrangement.
- 5. Only clients that are able to assume additional risk are solicited to engage in a performance fee arrangement.

# **Item 7 – Types of Clients**

Brinker generally provides investment advice to individuals, banks or thrift institutions, pension, retirement, 529 educational savings and profit sharing plans (other than plan participants), endowments, other pooled investment vehicles, trusts, estates, charitable institutions, corporations and other business entities, and state or municipal government entities. All Programs (other than RPS) are available to these different types of investors, subject to certain minimum investment amounts.

# Item 8 – Methods of Analysis, Investment Strategies and Risk of Loss

In addition to the information below, see the response to Item 4 under the heading "**Types of Advisory Services**" for the methods of analysis, investment strategies and risk involved in each of the services offered by Brinker. Investing in securities involves risk of loss that clients should be prepared to bear.

#### **INVESTMENT STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT**

Critical to the success of any investment plan is a sharply focused, well-defined strategy that accounts for risk tolerances, time horizons, rate of return targets and liquidity needs. Brinker uses an investment strategy questionnaire to assist in developing a recommended or suggested investment strategy for each client. Brinker also utilizes Risk Budgeting for certain investment strategies. Risk Budgeting is the spending allowance with regard to risk that we allow for your portfolio. The risk associated with each investment is carefully considered before it is added to your portfolio. Under Risk Budgeting, you are assigned a Risk Budget and each security (fund) is assigned a risk value primarily based on volatility. The Risk Budget is expressed as a percentage of the risk relative to a diversified equity portfolio benchmark. For example, a Risk Budget of 100 would represent a portfolio with a risk similar to 100% of the risk of a diversified equity portfolio and a portfolio with a Risk Budget of 60 would represent a portfolio with a risk similar to 60% of the risk of a diversified equity portfolio. Within the constraints of the Risk Budget you select, we actively seek to identify attractive market opportunities. Brinker's Risk Budgeting Methodology is flexible enough to be applied to a broad variety of client risk comfort levels, from aggressive to conservative.

#### **Investment Strategy Questionnaire**

Each Brinker client completes an investment strategy questionnaire which identifies the client's objectives, assets, risk tolerance, personal situation and investment experience. Brinker utilizes its proprietary computerized software program to analyze the investment strategy questionnaire and recommends an appropriate investment strategy based on the result of such analysis. Brinker's investment team is responsible for maintaining the logic, which includes maintaining the investment strategy questionnaire. If a client requires a more custom analysis, the investment strategy questionnaire will be reviewed by an appropriate member of Brinker's investment team. When creating an investment strategy profile, Brinker considers various factors, including, but not limited to, the client's risk aversion, investment time horizon, liquidity needs, tax bracket and account type. Brinker also considers the client's level of investable assets and desired level of investment discretion in recommending programs.

In the RPS program, Brinker provides an investment strategy questionnaire which the Plan sponsor can make available to Plan participants to assist them in selecting an investment strategy. Brinker does not provide a recommendation to the Plan participants.

#### **Asset Allocation Process**

Once Brinker has created an investment strategy profile, it creates an asset allocation that aligns the client's objectives with investment strategies using investment disciplines that are suitable for achieving the client's stated goals. Brinker's Asset Allocation Committee meets regularly to determine forward-looking portfolio positioning and key investment themes. Each member of Brinker's investment team is responsible for ensuring that the decisions of the Asset Allocation Committee are executed in their respective portfolios. In following its asset allocation process, Brinker strives to (i) achieve the client's return objectives given the client's risk tolerance and (ii) establish permissible concentration levels for assets in specific asset classes. For discretionary portfolios, each program will be managed within the stated ranges for each major asset class. With respect to any investment recommendation, none of Brinker and/or the Asset Allocation Committee or Investment Committee members, favors one client or group of clients at the expense of other clients.

#### **Investment Strategy Due Diligence Procedures**

Brinker's Investment Due Diligence Committee oversees the portfolio manager due diligence, selection and monitoring processes across all Brinker strategies. The Investment Due Diligence Committee reviews manager performance and addresses potential concerns, collaborates on new manager searches, and discusses recent and future onsite manager meetings. New investment strategies, including, but not limited to, separate accounts managed by unaffiliated portfolio managers, and funds, may be evaluated and selected based upon several factors, such as style analysis, performance, information obtained through a meeting with appropriate manager personnel and investment strategy questionnaire responses. The Investment Due Diligence Committee makes determinations with respect to any new investment strategies using their professional judgment and experience while taking these factors into consideration.

#### **Individual Securities**

Brinker does not review investment decisions regarding individual securities made by unaffiliated portfolio managers. While Brinker is responsible for implementing a portfolio manager's instructions with respect to client accounts invested in a model, Brinker does not review or make any independent determination with respect to the merits of such investment instructions. Investment decisions relating to fund shares for strategies managed directly by Brinker are made by Brinker's investment team. The selection process can generally be defined as eclectic in nature, with no specific constraints based on size, liquidity, style, geography, sector or other predetermined criteria. Brinker's investment team may consider a broad array of factors in determining the purchase or sale of a security, including but not limited to, the upside potential, downside risk, valuation metrics, technical outlook, future catalyst event, diversification benefit and/or other information.

# **Unaffiliated Portfolio Managers**

The Investment Due Diligence Committee utilize various evaluation factors to determine whether an unaffiliated portfolio manager should be terminated. Such determinations are documented and communicated to appropriate parties within Brinker. In the event a decision is made to terminate an unaffiliated portfolio manager, the Brinker investment team will determine an appropriate replacement unaffiliated portfolio manager.

#### **Conflict of Interest**

From time to time, the Brinker investment team and/or Investment Committee members may have a conflict of interest when making an investment recommendation, including any benefits such individuals or Brinker, receives from a third party. When a particular investment recommendation creates a conflict of interest, a Brinker investment team member or an Investment Committee member will (i) ensure the nature and extent of his or her interest is fully disclosed prior to the transaction, including disclosure of any direct or indirect compensation the investment team member, Investment Committee member or Brinker receives in connection with the transaction and (ii) make the recommendation only if he or she has a reasonable belief that the transaction is in the client's best interest.

Under its current fee schedule, the Brinker Fee Component does not change based upon the allocation of assets in the account among portfolio managers and/or funds, which Brinker believes eliminates any incentive or conflict with respect to the allocation of assets in a client's account. Brinker's Investment Committee reviews the recommended allocations on a quarterly basis to ensure that the selection of Destinations or another Brinker-managed strategy is in the client's best interest.

Brinker utilizes only its Destinations Funds in its Destinations models, for which Brinker serves as the adviser and receives an advisory fee from the Destinations Funds. This creates a potential conflict of interest, which Brinker seeks to mitigate in a number of ways. In addition, Brinker credits all advisory fees received by it on the Destinations Fund shares held in a client's account against the advisory fee payable to Brinker under the client's investment advisory agreement with Brinker, so that Brinker's net compensation does not increase as a result of allocations to Destination Funds. See also Item 10 of this Brochure under the heading "Other Financial Industry Activities and Affiliations — Material Conflicts of Interest."

Alternative investment mutual funds are speculative and involve substantial risks. It is possible that investors may lose some or all of their investment. Please review the mutual fund prospectus for the risks associated with each alternative mutual fund that you are considering for investment in a Strategist Model.

#### **RISKS**

All Brinker programs may be subject to the general risks associated with investment in securities, including:

Loss of Capital: All Brinker programs are subject to general market risk. Any investment in the securities market is subject to risk of loss of capital. The value of the portfolio will fluctuate based upon changes in value of the underlying securities. Investments are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

*Interest Rate Risk*: Portfolios may change in response to the movement of interest rates. The price of a fixed income security will generally fall when interest rates rise.

*Manager Risk*: Performance may deviate from overall market returns if Brinker or any unaffiliated manager is either more defensive or more aggressive when the market is rising or falling, respectively.

Credit Risk: The value of a client's investment in the portfolio may change in response to changes in the credit ratings of the portfolio's securities. Generally, investment risk and price volatility increase as a security's credit rating declines.

*Derivatives Risk*: Derivatives, such as options, futures and swaps, can be volatile, and a small investment in a derivative can have a large impact on the performance of the portfolio. Other risks of investments in derivatives include imperfect correlation between the value of these instruments and the underlying assets; risks of default by the other party to the derivative transactions; risks that the transactions may result in losses that partially or completely offset gains in portfolio positions; and risks that the derivative transactions may not be liquid.

Foreign Risk: Foreign investments are subject to the same risks as domestic investments and additional risks, including international trade, currency, political, regulatory and diplomatic risks, which may affect their value. Also, foreign securities are subject to the risk that their market price may not reflect the issuer's condition because there is not sufficient publicly available information about the issuer.

Leverage Risk: Certain transactions, such as reverse repurchase agreements, dollar rolls, loans of portfolio securities, and the use of when-issued, delayed delivery or forward commitment transactions, may give rise to leverage, causing a portfolio to be more volatile than if it had not been leveraged.

*Liquidity Risk*: Certain securities eligible for investment by the portfolio may be deemed to be illiquid under applicable law. During periods of market turbulence or unusually low trading activity, in order to meet redemptions, it may be necessary for the portfolio to sell such securities at prices that could impact portfolio value.

Execution Delay Risk. In Brinker's Retirement Plan Services program, Brinker provides instructions regarding mutual funds and ETFs included in the asset allocation models for the RPS program and the weightings thereof. Changes to those models result in the purchase and sale of mutual funds and ETFs for participant accounts. However, the recordkeeper is responsible for implementing mutual fund and ETF sales and purchases and there may be a delay in the execution of Brinker's instructions by the recordkeeper and/or the custodian. Any such delay could be significant and could adversely affect the investment performance of the participant's account.

The level of exposure to any of the foregoing risks will depend on the extent to which Brinker or any thirdparty or fund manager invests in specific securities or utilizes specific investment strategies that pose such risks.

# **Item 9 – Disciplinary Information**

Registered investment advisers are required to disclose all material facts regarding any legal or disciplinary events that would be material to client's evaluation of Brinker or the integrity of Brinker's management. Brinker has no information applicable to this Item 9.

# **Item 10 – Other Financial Industry Activities and Affiliations**

# **Broker-Dealer Registrations**

Brinker Capital Securities, LLC. is a registered broker-dealer and an affiliate of Brinker. Brinker Capital Securities, LLC. acts as introducing broker under a clearing agreement with National Financial Services, LLC ("NFS") for all accounts in Brinker Programs that are custodied at NFS other than those introduced by Fidelity Brokerage Services, LLC, an NFS affiliated broker-dealer, or clients in the MMLIS Brinker co-advisory program for whom MMLIS serves as the introducing broker.

#### **Other Registrations**

Neither Brinker nor any of its management persons are registered or have applications pending to register, as a futures commission merchant, commodity pool operator, a commodity trading advisor or an associated person of the foregoing entities.

#### **Relationships with Related Persons**

As stated above, Brinker Capital Securities, LLC. acts as introducing broker under a clearing agreement with NFS for all accounts in the Brinker Programs custodied at NFS other than those introduced by Fidelity Brokerage Services, LLC. Brinker Capital Securities, LLC. receives no commissions in connection with securities transactions in wrap fee accounts for which it acts as introducing broker.

# **Material Conflicts of Interest**

As noted above, Brinker Capital Securities, LLC. receives no commissions in connection with securities transactions for which it acts as introducing broker.

In the Core Asset Manager, Destinations ETFh and Wealth Advisory programs, Brinker has the choice of using either non-transaction fee ("NTF") funds or transaction fee funds. While transaction fee funds generally have a lower expense ratio to the client than an NTF fund, the clearing and custody costs paid by Brinker are higher for transaction fee funds than for NTF funds. For clients with fee schedules in effect prior to April 1, 2017, this may create a conflict by giving Brinker the incentive to select NTF funds in order to reduce the clearing and custody fees for its clients' accounts, instead of selecting transaction fee funds that may have a lower expense ratio to the client. In order to address this potential conflict, Brinker pays the custodian an asset-based fee for clearing and custody, which Brinker took into account when establishing its prior fee schedule(s) for these programs.

Brinker invests accounts in the Destinations program in Destinations Funds, for which Brinker serves as the investment adviser and receives an advisory fee, which presents a potential conflict of interest. Brinker does not employ the same due diligence procedures that it applies to other fund managers and portfolio managers in evaluating itself. However, Brinker's decisions with respect to the selection, allocation of assets and termination of a sub-advisers to the Destinations Funds are subject to the oversight and approval of the Board of Trustees of the Destinations Funds (a majority of which are unaffiliated with Brinker). In addition, advisory fees paid to Brinker by the Destinations Funds with respect to a client's investment in a Destinations Fund are credited to, or offset and reduce, dollar-for-dollar the Brinker Fee Component otherwise payable to Brinker. If the fee offset exceeds the Brinker Fee Component calculated under the Brinker fee schedule, Brinker will credit the client's account by such excess amount.

Brinker organizes educational seminars for solicitors and advisors that may be sponsored or co-sponsored by various money managers and mutual fund managers that participate in the Brinker Capital Partners program. Portfolio managers who participate in this program pay a fee which is used to defray expenses associated with such events. A portfolio manager's participation in the program is voluntary. Brinker does

not consider a portfolio manager's participation in the Brinker Capital Partners program in making manager recommendations to clients.

For a discussion of the potential conflict of interest that could arise from the economic benefits Brinker receives from NFS and Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. ("Schwab") in the form of the support products and services these firms make available to Brinker see Item 12 of this Brochure under the heading "**Products and Services Available to Brinker from NFS and Schwab**".

Brinker has adopted and implemented policies and procedures it believes are reasonably designed to manage these conflicts of interest and to prevent violations of applicable law.

#### **Transactions with Orion Affiliates**

As discussed above, Brinker is a subsidiary of Orion. The following direct and indirect subsidiaries of Orion are affiliates of Brinker: Advizr, Inc., Orion Advisor Technology, LLC ("OAT"), Orion Portfolio Solutions, LLC ("OPS"), Constellation Trust Company ("CTC"), Destinations Funds Trust ("Destinations Funds), Brinker Capital Securities, LLC. ("BCS"), Townsquare Capital, LLC., Orion Risk Intelligence (formerly HiddenLevers), Orion Compliance (formerly BasisCode Compliance LLC), and Townsquare Capital LLC. Certain of our executive officers also serve as officers and directors of these affiliates

- Orion Advisor Technology, LLC ("OAT"), Advizr Inc., and Orion Risk Intelligence. Brinker utilizes the back-office system provided by OAT for trade processing, account management, and performance reporting for certain Programs. Brinker also makes available to its clients financial planning tools from Advizr and risk analytics tolls from Orion Risk Intelligence. Brinker believes that the utilization of OAT, Advizr and Orion Risk Intelligence do not create a conflict of interest.
- Orion Portfolio Solutions, LLC ("OPS"). OPS is an investment adviser registered with the SEC. OPS provides a fee-based investment platform that allows investment advisors the ability to develop their own model portfolios or utilize models provided by institutional portfolio strategists. Brinker makes certain strategies and model portfolios available through OPS. Additionally, certain operational services, such as trading and fee billing, for client accounts are performed by employees of OPS.

A portion of the advisory fee Brinker charges clients investing in Brinker's Programs is used to compensate OPS for these services; the client is not charged a separate fee by OPS. OPS services are described in its own Form ADV, Part 2A, which can be obtained on the OPS website: www.orionportfoliosolutions.com.

• Constellation Trust Company ("CTC"). CTC is a Nebraska chartered trust company and a subsidiary of Brinker. Some of Orion's executive officers also serve as officers and directors of CTC. CTC's custodial services facilitate certain Program clients who desire a third-party investment adviser such as us to manage their account(s). Orion and its affiliates may recommend CTC, among other custodians, to our clients. CTC has established electronic interfaces and capabilities necessary to maintain and aggregate custodial records and reporting for clients invested across various investment platforms. We have entered into an arrangement with CTC to waive the annual custodial fee for our these Program clients. All other custodial fees and charges of CTC are set forth in the CTC custodial agreement. Trades for these Program client accounts custodied at CTC are effected via the National Securities Clearing Corporation through arrangements with third parties, including Matrix Settlement and Clearance Services, LLC ("Matrix") and TD Ameritrade, Inc. The Destinations Funds (for which Brinker serves as investment adviser) and other mutual funds held by Brinker Legacy Program clients with assets custodied at CTC pay shareholder servicing or sub-TA fees to CTC for distribution and/or shareholder servicing related assistance associated with making a client's investments in such funds. Brinker's policies and practices with respect to selecting share classes for accounts invested in programs that are held at CTC or any other custodian, are described in this brochure.

- Townsquare Capital, LLC. Townsquare is an investment adviser registered with the SEC. Townsquare provides a fee-based investment platform that allows investment advisors the ability to enhance their current investment program or utilize models provided by institutional portfolio strategists.
- Orion Compliance is an end-to-end compliance management solution owned by Orion, built upon an always audit-ready reporting infrastructure. The cloud-based software platform provides core compliance functions and personal trading and insider trading solutions for firms with mobile accessibility. Orion Compliance combines the core data available through Orion with the analytics available through Orion Compliance and Orion Risk Intelligence, to help new tools for the advisor communities.
- Focus Orion Solutions, LLC is a joint venture between OAT and Focus Financial Partners Inc., which offers an array of cash and credit solutions and related services developed by Focus Client Solutions ("FCS") through the OAT WealthTech platform. OAT will receive a fee for referring clients to FCS. Financial advisors that utilize Brinker have access to FCS's financial institution partners that offer the lending- and deposit-related products listed below (collectively, the "Financial Products"). In each case, access to the Financial Products is made available to a financial advisor so that the financial advisor may identify one or more selected banking institutions that can offer to financial advisor's clients certain Financial Products desired by those clients. Such Financial Products currently consist of the following:
- a. **Mortgage Loans**—Loans relating to residential purchases, refinancing, HELOC, and construction loans;
- b. **Working Capital**—Corporate, commercial, and business working capital, expansion and acquisition lines of credit and loans;
- c. **Commercial Real Estate**—Commercial real estate, multifamily and other owned occupied properties;
- d. **Securities Backed Lines of Credit (SBLOC)**—Automated and highly competitively priced non-purpose securities backed lines along with lines secured by selective private and alternative investments:
- e. **Specialty Lending**—Premium financing, fund call and operating lines of credit, along with others;
- f. **Watercraft and Aircraft Lending**—New and used watercraft and/or aircraft purchases and refinancing; and
- g. **FDIC Insured Deposit Program**—In-portfolio cash balances, held away debit/transactional cash and outside client cash savings with \$2 to \$100 million of insurance per tax ID.

# Item 11 – Code of Ethics, Participation or Interest in Client Transactions and Personal Trading

Brinker has adopted a Code of Ethics (the "Code") which meets the requirements of Rule 204A-1 promulgated under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. The Code sets forth a standard of business conduct required of all of its employees (which includes all of Brinker's officers, directors and employees as well as any other person who provides advice on behalf of Brinker and is subject to Brinker's supervision and control). Brinker effectively treats each employee (and thus, each employee) as an "access person" (as defined in Rule 204A-1). Brinker's employees do not include employees of unaffiliated investment managers, each of whom is required to adopt its own code of ethics applicable to these individuals.

The Code is based, in part, upon the principle that employees owe a fiduciary duty to Brinker's clients. Each employee must act in a manner as to avoid (1) serving his/her own personal interests ahead of Brinker's clients; (ii) taking inappropriate advantage of his/her position with Brinker; and (iii) any actual or potential conflicts of interest or any abuse of his/her position of trust and responsibility.

The Code provides that employees and members of their households may not:

- trade in any security while in possession of material nonpublic information about the issuer of a security;
- communicate material nonpublic information about any publicly traded issuer of any securities to anyone else except in the ordinary course of his/her employment-related duties;
- disclose to other persons the securities activities engaged in or contemplated for Brinker's client portfolios; or
- disclose the holdings in a client's portfolios (except, in the case of any employee of Brinker or any
  of its affiliates, as required to carry out his or her employment-related duties to Brinker's clients or
  as required by applicable securities laws).

In addition, each employee must:

- conduct all of his/her business activities in accordance with the requirements of the Code and consistent with Brinker's fiduciary duties to its clients;
- comply with all applicable federal securities laws;
- promptly report any violations of the Code to Brinker's Chief Compliance Officer or Compliance Manager; and
- annually certify that he/she has received, read and understands the Code, has complied with all requirements of the Code and disclosed all personal securities transactions required pursuant to the Code.

Each employee has already furnished to the Compliance Department a list of all securities required to be reported under the Rule in which either such employee or members of his/her household own a beneficial interest ("Reportable Securities"), which list must be updated annually. In addition, by the thirtieth day following each calendar quarter, each employee must provide the Compliance Department with reports of all Reportable Securities transactions during such quarter

Brinker has no direct or indirect control over the investment decision-making process of unaffiliated portfolio managers. Accordingly, since Brinker's employees are generally not aware of investment decisions of

unaffiliated managers, Brinker's employees may buy or sell for their personal accounts securities which are recommended by portfolio managers for client accounts. However, if Brinker receives confidential information regarding an issuer from a portfolio manager, it may establish a restricted list for such securities. Employees are prohibited from personally, or on behalf of a household member, purchasing any securities on a restricted list. In the event that an employee owns a security that was purchased prior to being placed on the restricted list, the employee must obtain approval (pre-clearance) from the Chief Compliance Officer prior to entering any securities transaction in their personal accounts for the sale of that security.

In addition, each employee must receive prior approval from Brinker's Chief Compliance Officer or their designee for (i) any purchase of securities in an initial public offering or a limited offering for the benefit of such employee or member of his/her household or (ii) serving on the boards of directors of any public corporation.

Employees are also subject to restrictions on giving gifts to, or receiving gifts from, certain persons and in dollar amounts that exceed a certain *de minimis* amount.

A copy of the Code is available, upon request, by contacting Brinker's Chief Compliance Officer at 610-407-5500 ext. 1127.

#### PARTICIPATION OR INTEREST IN CLIENT TRANSACTIONS

If you select a Destinations Funds strategy, we will utilize Destinations Funds, which are our affiliated mutual funds, in the management of your account. You are advised of the use of Destinations Funds in your agreement with us and in the applicable strategy descriptions, and have the right, at any time, to prohibit us from investing any of your managed assets in Destinations Funds. We and our employees occasionally buy or sell securities identical to those recommended to you. It is our express policy that any person employed by us is prohibited from profiting at the expense of our clients and from competing with our clients.

## **Item 12 – Brokerage Practices**

Each client is responsible for selecting the custodian of their accounts. As discussed above, CTC is an affiliate of Brinker, but you are under no obligation to select CTC as your custodian and you are free to select any of the custodians Brinker is able to work with. Trades resulting from our management are submitted either directly to your selected custodian or in coordination with your selected custodian. In limited situations, Brinker establishes accounts with various nonaffiliated third-party broker-dealers as requested by the client through the strategy selected. In these situations, Brinker will only establish accounts that provide timely service and a fair price. Brinker will attempt to find the lowest cost where possible. Establishment of an account with a third-party broker-dealer will not increase the advisory fees payable; however, clients will be responsible for any fees and/or expenses, including transaction costs, for the establishment and use of the account.

If the client directs Brinker to manage assets with a specific broker-dealer or custodian, including broker-dealers and custodians that have been pre-approved by Brinker, the client has the sole responsibility for negotiating commission rates and other transaction costs. If the client selects a specific broker, Brinker will not be required to affect any transaction through the specified broker if Brinker reasonably believe that to do so would result in a breach of our fiduciary duties. Clients are advised that by instructing Brinker to execute all transactions on behalf of their account through the specified broker, a disparity may exist between the commissions borne by their account and the commissions borne by other clients that do not direct Brinker to use a specified broker. Clients may also not necessarily obtain commission rates and execution as favorable as those that would be obtained if Brinker was able to place transactions with other broker-dealers. Clients also may forego benefits that Brinker may be able to obtain for other clients through negotiating volume discounts or block trades.

#### **Research and Other Soft Dollar Benefits**

Brinker, as a matter of policy and practice, does not utilize research or other products or services other than execution from broker-dealers or third parties in connection with client securities transactions and does not receive so-called "soft dollar" benefits from brokers.

## **Brokerage for Client Referrals**

Neither Brinker nor any related person receives client referrals from broker-dealers or third parties in exchange for selecting or recommending a broker-dealer.

## **Directed Brokerage**

Generally, the Core Asset Manager and Wealth Advisory programs on Brinker's custodian platform *require* the client to designate either NFS or Schwab, each of which is a FINRA-registered broker-dealer, as the client's custodian and clearing broker and authorize Brinker to effect all equity trades through the designated custodian unless Brinker or the portfolio manager (as applicable) determine that better execution may be obtained through an alternative broker. All fixed income transactions are executed through brokers other than the designated custodian (unless Brinker or a portfolio manager determines the custodian can provide best execution) and Brinker and other managers have authority to select brokers to effect such trades.

In evaluating which broker or dealer other than the designated custodian will provide best execution, Brinker or the portfolio manager (as applicable) will consider the full range and quality of a broker's or dealer's services including, among other things, the value of research provided, execution capability, commission rate, financial responsibility, market making capabilities and responsiveness. Although Brinker currently does not receive any soft dollar benefits, Brinker may in the future select broker-dealers that

provide research or other transaction-related services and may cause the account to pay such broker-dealer commissions for effecting transactions in excess of commissions other broker-dealers may have charged. In such event Brinker will revise this Brochure to discuss any soft dollar benefits it receives. Such research and other services may be used for Brinker's own and for other client and affiliate client accounts to the extent permitted by law.

Both NFS' and Schwab's execution procedures are designed to make every attempt to obtain the best execution possible, although there can be no assurance that it can be obtained. Clients should consider whether or not the appointment of NFS or Schwab, as applicable, as the sole broker for equity trades may or may not result in certain costs or disadvantages to the client as a possible result of less favorable executions. Execution through a broker other than the designated custodian will increase costs to the client because Brinker's fee does not include brokerage fees or commissions associated with trades executed through a broker-dealer other than the designated custodian and does not include markups and markdowns. Because of this, in order to minimize a client's trading costs, most trades for client accounts are executed through the designated custodian.

Inasmuch as the investment advisory agreement for the Core Asset Manager and Wealth Advisory programs designates NFS or Schwab as the client's custodian and clearing broker, portfolio managers generally lack authority to select broker-dealers to execute trades in equity securities in the client's account. Accordingly, portfolio managers are not authorized to negotiate commissions and the client's account may not be able to participate in block trades effected by a portfolio manager for its other accounts. As a result, from time to time, a client's accounts may not obtain best execution on a particular trade. However, on a case by case basis, Brinker will authorize a portfolio manager for a Wealth Advisory or Core Asset Manager account to effect trades of equity securities through another broker-dealer, if it determines that the designated custodian cannot provide best execution. However, the client will be charged any brokerage commissions or fees arising in connection with trades that are not effected through the designated custodian for the client's account.

While Brinker requires its clients to use NFS or Schwab as their custodian and broker, Brinker's clients will decide whether to do so and open an account with NFS or Schwab (as applicable) by entering into an account agreement directly with such firm. Brinker does not open the account for the client. Generally, if a prospective client does not wish to place the client's assets with NFS or Schwab, then Brinker cannot manage the client's account. (From time to time, very large accounts participating in the Core Asset Manager program may use a firm other than NFS or Schwab as their custodian.) Not all advisers require their clients to use a particular broker-dealer or other custodian selected by the adviser. Even though client accounts are maintained at NFS or Schwab, Brinker and portfolio managers retained by Brinker to manage client accounts can still use other brokers to execute trades for the client's account, as described in the preceding paragraphs.

## **How Brinker Selects Brokers/Custodians**

In selecting a custodian and clearing broker Brinker seeks to obtain custody and brokerage services on terms that are overall most advantageous when compared to other available providers and their services. Brinker considers a wide range of factors, including, among others, the following:

- combination of transaction execution services and asset custody services;
- capability to execute, clear and settle trades (buy and sell securities for client accounts);
- capability to facilitate transfers and payments to and from accounts (wire transfers, check requests, bill payment, etc.);
- breadth of investment products made available (stocks, bonds, mutual funds, ETFs, etc.);
- overall quality of services;
- competitiveness of the price of those services (which impacts what Brinker charges its clients):
- reputation, financial strength and stability of the provider; and

• availability of other products and services that benefit Brinker, its clients and solicitor firms.

#### **Custody and Brokerage Costs**

Brinker pays custodians for their custody and clearing services and these firms do not charge clients separately for these services. Brinker's "all-inclusive" fee covers the cost of executing and clearing equity trades for the client's account that are effected through the client's designated custodian and clearing broker

As discussed above under "Directed Brokerage,", third-party portfolio managers participating in Brinker Programs have the authority to effect transactions through broker-dealers other than the custodian for the account, when the portfolio manager reasonably believes that another broker-dealer may effect such transactions at a price, including any commissions or dealer mark-up or mark-down, that is more favorable to the account than would be the case if transacted through the custodian. In addition, even if the price is not more favorable, for the selection of such broker-dealer, the portfolio manager may consider all relevant factors, including execution capabilities, speed, efficiency, confidentiality, familiarity with potential purchasers or sellers, or any other relevant matters. Brinker refers to trades in which the custodian is not the executing broker as "step-out trade(s)." If a client's portfolio manager trades with another firm, the account may be assessed other trading related costs (mark-ups, mark-downs and commissions) by the other broker-dealer. In addition, Schwab (but not NFS) charges the client a flat dollar amount as a "prime broker" or "trade away" fee for each trade that Brinker or a portfolio manager has executed by a different broker-dealer but where the securities bought or the funds from the securities sold are deposited (settled) into the client's Brinker account. These fees are in addition to the commissions or other compensation the client pays the executing broker-dealer. The costs of the executing broker and any trade away fees imposed by the custodian are in addition to the Program fees charged by Brinker. For this reason, a portfolio manager may find that placing trades with the custodian is often the most favorable trading option for a client.

For Brinker Programs utilizing third-party portfolio managers, we expect that most transactions will be traded through the custodian. However, all fixed income transactions in Brinker Programs are placed with other broker-dealers (unless the portfolio manager determines the custodian can provide best execution) and certain portfolio managers have historically directed most, if not all, their trades to outside broker-dealers. Since the fees paid to the custodian for their clearing and custody services only cover transactions effected through the custodian, transactions through any other broker-dealer would normally include an add-on cost of the commission or the dealer mark-up or mark-down and these additional trading costs may increase a client's overall costs. Brinker supplies step out trade information by third party investment managers on its website, www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com.

Brinker takes into account the fact that transaction costs on trades effected through brokers other than the designated custodian are not included in Brinker's fee in evaluating whether the designated custodian is providing best execution. The fees charged by Brinker will not necessarily be as favorable as those which might be obtained through another investment adviser that authorizes a portfolio manager to select brokerage firms and that bills the client separately for execution, clearing and custody services and investment advisory services.

#### **Products and Services Available to Brinker from NFS and Schwab**

NFS and Schwab provide Brinker and Brinker clients with access to their institutional brokerage – trading, custody, reporting and related services – many of which are not typically available to their retail customers. These firms also make available various support services. Some of those services help Brinker manage or administer client accounts while others help Brinker manage and grow its business. These support services generally are available on an unsolicited basis (Brinker does not have to request them) and at no additional charge to Brinker.

The NFS and Schwab institutional brokerage services include access to a broad range of investment products, execution of securities transactions, and custody of client assets. The investment products available through these firms include some to which Brinker might not otherwise have access or that would require a significantly higher minimum initial investment by Brinker clients. The services generally benefit Brinker clients.

NFS and Schwab also make available to Brinker other products and services that benefit Brinker but may not directly benefit Brinker's clients. These products and services assist Brinker in managing and administering client accounts and include software and other technology that:

- provide access to client account data (such as duplicate trade confirmations and account statements);
- facilitate trade execution and allocate aggregated trade orders for multiple client accounts;
- facilitate payment of Brinker's fees from client accounts; and
- assist with back-office functions, recordkeeping and client reporting.

NFS and Schwab also offer other services intended to help Brinker manage and further develop its business. These services include:

- educational conferences and events;
- technology, compliance, legal, and business consulting; and
- publications and conferences on practice management and business succession.

The availability of these services from NFS and Schwab benefits Brinker because Brinker does not have to produce or purchase them. This may create an incentive to require clients to maintain their accounts with NFS or Schwab based on the benefits Brinker receives rather than the client's interest in receiving the most favorable execution of transactions, which is a potential conflict of interest. Brinker believes, however, that the selection of these firms as custodian and broker is in the best interest of its clients. It is primarily supported by the scope, quality and price of their services (based upon the factors discussed above) and not on those services that benefit only Brinker.

# **Aggregation**

With respect to those client accounts which Brinker directly selects and manages investments, most trade orders will be aggregated when Brinker is purchasing or selling the same security for multiple clients in Brinker Programs. The portfolio specialist or other authorized person will determine when orders should be aggregated.

While the goal of aggregation is to achieve equitable allocation of investment opportunities and trades, each client cannot be treated exactly alike, and all allocations cannot be done on the basis of a predetermined formula. There are differences in each client's needs, investment criteria, investment objectives, and size and fee levels. To the extent more than one client seeks to acquire the same security at the same time, it may not be possible to acquire a sufficiently large quantity of the same security, or Brinker may have to pay a higher price or obtain a lower yield for the security. Similarly, clients may not be able to obtain as high a price for, or as large an execution of, an order to sell (including short sales) a particular security when Brinker is acting for more than one client at the same time. It also may not be feasible to make every limited investment opportunity available to all clients.

With respect to those client accounts which are managed by an unaffiliated portfolio manager, aggregation of trade orders, if any, are allocated to client accounts in accordance with the unaffiliated portfolio manager's procedures for aggregation. Brinker requires all portfolio managers in the programs to have policies and procedures to assure equitable allocation of trades among all of the portfolio manager's client accounts, including Brinker clients.

#### **BEST EXECUTION**

We have an Investment Committee that meets on a quarterly basis and handles our best execution review through their oversight of our trade execution practices and to evaluate the full range and quality of broker-dealers used to execute transactions in order to ensure our trading practices are appropriate. The Investment Committee is responsible for monitoring Brinker's trading practices, gathering relevant information, periodically reviewing and evaluating the services provided by broker-dealers, the quality of executions, research, commission rates, and overall brokerage relationships, among other things. The committee is comprised of representatives from portfolio management, trading, and compliance.

## **Trade Error Policy**

We have internal controls for the prevention of trade or model portfolio allocation errors, however, on occasion, errors may occur. We recommend that you regularly review your custodial statements. In the event you identify an error, you have 45 days from your statement date to notify us of its existence. Upon notification, we will perform an analysis of the reported discrepancy. If Brinker is responsible for the error, we will seek to correct the error in a way that returns your account to where it would have been had the error not occurred. In the event an error results in a gain, Brinker or your custodian will retain such gains. If you notify us of a potential error more than 45 days after your statement date and Brinker is responsible for the error, Brinker will reimburse you for any damage caused to your account from the date of the error through 45 days after your statement date.

We maintain a record of identified errors, including details of the original transaction and the corrective actions.

## **Item 13 – Review of Accounts**

Based on information provided by the client to Brinker on Brinker's investment strategy questionnaire concerning the client's objectives, assets, risk tolerance, time horizon, personal situation and investment experience, Brinker will recommend an asset allocation involving various asset classifications and investment styles and will identify for the client suitable portfolio managers or other investments to implement the investment disciplines included in the agreed upon investment strategy. Thereafter, Brinker monitors the performance of each investment discipline. Each client has a Financial Advisor in place that has agreed to make periodic contact with clients, at least annually. Together, the client and their financial advisor determine whether a change in a client's objectives warrants a change in the criteria used to manage their assets. If any information changes, the client is responsible for promptly advising us of any changes. If the information is current, no further action is required. Brinker provides the client with written quarterly performance reports on the performance of the client's total account compared to standard industry indices.

Brinker does not review specific investments made by unaffiliated portfolio managers of separate accounts or funds. Brinker does not rebalance or change the asset allocation in a client's non-discretionary Core Asset Manager or Wealth Advisory account unless the client requests Brinker to review the agreed upon investment strategy. Brinker does rebalance and actively change the asset allocation of certain discretionary investment strategies in Section 4, and other discretionary accounts within the Wealth Advisory program as warranted. Brinker does not change the investment strategy for an account unless the client requests Brinker to review the agreed upon investment strategy.

Before Brinker includes a portfolio manager's investment strategy, mutual fund or other pooled investment vehicle in one of the Programs, Brinker conducts a review of the investment management firm as well as the specific investment strategy or fund. Investment management firms and specific investment disciplines and funds are reviewed and selected based on such criteria as their proven investment management expertise, the soundness of their investment process, the quality of their professionals, and the consistency of their performance. Portfolio managers' investment disciplines for separately managed accounts, mutual funds and Private Funds are reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure that they continue to meet Brinker's requirements. These reviews may include reviews of performance, style, consistency, due diligence questionnaires, as well as personal meetings with portfolio managers and other representatives from investment management firms.

Brinker's Investment Committee meets quarterly to review all investment programs and ensure that accounts are managed in accordance with the applicable investment strategy's stated investment objectives.

You also have access to your account information at all times via our websites at <a href="https://www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com">www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com</a> and www.clsinvest.com where you can view your investment objectives, investment policy statement and other important information regarding the management of your account.

# **Item 14 – Client Referrals and Other Compensation**

#### **Economic Benefits**

Brinker receives economic benefits from NFS and Schwab in the form of the support products and services these firms make available to Brinker and other independent investment advisers that have their clients maintain accounts at these broker-dealer firms. These products and services, how they benefit Brinker, and the related conflicts of interest are described in Item 12 of this Brochure under the heading "**Products and Services Available to Brinker from NFS and Schwab**". The availability to Brinker of these products and services is not based on Brinker giving particular investment advice, such as buying particular securities for Brinker clients.

Brinker organizes educational seminars for solicitors and other advisors who recommend Brinker investment programs to their clients that may be sponsored or co-sponsored by various portfolio managers and mutual fund managers that participate in the Brinker Capital Partners program. Portfolio managers who participate in this program pay a fee which is used to defray expenses associated with such events. A portfolio manager's participation in the program is voluntary. Brinker does not consider a portfolio manager's participation in the Brinker Capital Partners program in making manager recommendations to clients.

At the client's request Brinker may facilitate lending arrangements between the client and a bank using the securities in the client's account as collateral. Brinker does not provide advice in connection with such lending arrangements.

#### **Client Referrals**

Brinker remits a portion of the fee it receives to solicitors, which include broker-dealers and investment advisory firms and to the registered representatives of such firms and to other individuals or entities which may provide services to Brinker in connection with the development of potential clients. Brinker's referral agreement is in compliance with the federal regulations as set forth in 17 CFR Section 275.206 (4)-3. Each client is made aware of the referral agreement prior to or at the time of entering into an advisory contract and signs a written acknowledgement of receipt of Brinker's current Form ADV, Part 2A as required by 17 CFR Section 275.204-3 and the solicitor's written disclosure document required by 17 CFR Section 275.206(4)-3(b).

Brinker's management fee is increased by the fee paid to the solicitor by Brinker. Accordingly, Brinker's fee for accounts with respect to which it pays such solicitation fees are higher than those accounts for which no such arrangements or different arrangements exist or as to which all or a portion of a solicitation fee has been waived. The amount of the solicitor's fee is determined by the solicitor and differs, depending on the size of the account and the type (equity versus fixed income) of the account. The solicitor may be able to charge a higher fee than what it might receive for referring clients to another investment management program, which may create a financial incentive to refer clients to Brinker.

Brinker may also pay certain broker-dealer/investment advisers an administrative or marketing fee (either a percentage of the referred clients' assets under management or a fixed annual fee) to compensate the soliciting firm for certain administrative and marketing services and/or to support or participate in educational conferences and events and training programs sponsored or co-sponsored by such firms. Such compensation arrangements may be ongoing or in connection with limited promotional programs and are disclosed as required under 17 CFR Section 275.206(4)-3(b). From time to time, Brinker may also participate as a sponsor of conferences and educational and promotional events organized by solicitor firms. Fees paid by Brinker for such sponsorship opportunities help defray expenses associated with such events. Disciplined Equity/Custom Indexing: The annual Brinker Fee Component for Disciplined Equity and Custom Indexing accounts is a maximum of 0.35% of account value a portion of which may be paid

to client's investment advisor. Brinker has discretion to lower fees at any time based on the account value and/or services provided.

Such administrative or marketing fees or sponsorships are paid by Brinker from its own assets and do not result in any differential in the management fee charged by Brinker for accounts with respect to which Brinker pays such fees and those with respect to which it does not pay such fees. Since the compensation paid to the client's solicitor, particularly during any promotional programs, may be more than what the solicitor would receive if the client participated in investment programs sponsored by other investment advisers, the solicitor may have a financial incentive to recommend the Brinker programs over other programs or services.

#### Item 15 - Custody

Brinker does not maintain custody of client assets (although Brinker may be deemed to have custody of client assets if the client gives Brinker authority to withdraw assets from the client's account). While Brinker does not maintain custody of funds or securities, CTC, Brinker's affiliated custodian, does maintain custody of client funds and securities. As a Nebraska chartered trust company, CTC is subject to an annual surprise exam conducted by an independent, third-party public accountant that is registered with and subject to regular inspection by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB).

Client assets must be maintained in an account at a "qualified custodian," generally a broker-dealer or bank. As discussed in Item 12 of this Brochure under the heading "Directed Brokerage," clients participating in the Core Asset Manager, Personal Benchmark and Wealth Advisory programs may select either NFS (directly or through Fidelity for accounts other than those participating in Core Asset Manager or Wealth Advisory) or Schwab to maintain actual custody of their assets. Clients participating in the Destinations program on Brinker's platform may select either Fidelity or NFS to maintain custody of their account. Clients who invest in Destinations through third-party platforms will generally be required to maintain their accounts with a qualified custodian selected by the sponsor of such program.

Clients will receive monthly or quarterly statements for their accounts directly from the custodian. For managed accounts that have monthly activity, clients will receive monthly statements. For conduit accounts (i.e., accounts which hold funds awaiting investment or dispersal and which generally do not have monthly activity), clients will receive quarterly statements. In addition, clients will receive confirmation of all security transactions from the clearing firm either on a trade-by-trade basis, quarterly by mail or through Brinker's website. Quarterly online access or delivery by mail is available to clients who submit a written request (which may be by email or through the Brinker website) in advance of such delivery. Brinker urges you to carefully review such statements and compare such official custodial records to the account statements that we may provide to you. Our statements may vary from custodial statements based on accounting procedures, reporting dates, or valuation methodologies of certain securities.

In addition to your statements, you have access to your account information at all times via our web sites at <a href="https://www.clsinvest.com/">https://www.clsinvest.com/</a> and <a href="www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com">www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com</a> where you can view your investment objectives, investment policy statement and other important information regarding the management of your account. You are advised to periodically review all your account information to ensure it remains accurate in our records.

We will generally communicate with you via letters, market up-dates and other literature. Under circumstances where you have expressly consented, correspondence and notifications will be sent via electronic means (such as e-mail), or posted to a secure web site for your access.

#### **Item 16 – Investment Discretion**

For our discretionary advisory services, by selecting these services you are authorizing us to buy or sell securities, as well as specify the amount of securities to invest, without first obtaining your specific consent. Asset allocation strategies are selected for the individual client based on the client's individual investment needs, based upon an individual client investment strategy questionnaire. funds will be purchased and sold on behalf of the client based on the asset allocation strategy established by Brinker and approved by the client. Brinker, at its own discretion, may allow clients below the program minimums. You are responsible for any transaction costs associated with the management of your assets unless otherwise agreed to by us as part of our wrap fee program. In cases where we determine the broker or dealer to be used, we will seek to obtain the best execution possible under the circumstances. You have the right to impose reasonable restrictions on Brinker's management of your account. For example, you may instruct us not to purchase specific securities or types of securities. If we are unable to accommodate your request for any reason, we will notify you immediately.

Upon termination of our investment management services, we will have no obligation or authority to recommend or take any action with regard to your account.

Brinker does not make individual securities selections for separate accounts managed by unaffiliated portfolio managers in its Core Asset Manager and Wealth Advisory programs. For non-discretionary accounts, Brinker has authority, to be exercised consistent with the client's goals and objectives, to substitute a portfolio manager based upon Brinker's evaluation of such portfolio manager's performance. Brinker will notify a client of a non-discretionary account at least 15 days prior to making any such substitution. Wealth Advisory and Core Asset Manager clients who have given Brinker investment discretion and clients who are invested in a *Core Guided* portfolio authorize Brinker to hire and fire portfolio managers and execute rebalances without any further client approval.

Portfolio managers may provide management of a client's account by maintaining with Brinker a model that contains the portfolio manager's instructions or recommendations as to the securities to be purchase, held or sold for the client's account and the position weightings thereof, which are implemented by Brinker, subject to any reasonable investment restrictions or limitations imposed by the client and communicated in writing to Brinker. While Brinker is responsible for implementing the portfolio manager's instructions with respect to client accounts invested in the model, Brinker does not review or make any independent determination with respect to the merits of such investment instructions. The discretionary authority of each portfolio manager providing a model is limited to making decisions with respect to the specific securities and portfolio weightings of such securities held in the portfolio manager's model portfolio. The portfolio manager is not responsible for determining the suitability of the model for any client or implementing any client-specific restrictions or limitations.

Brinker's authority is limited by the terms of the investment advisory agreement and the investment objectives of any account. A client may impose reasonable restrictions on the management of the client's account, including the designation of specific securities or a specific category of securities that should not be purchased for the account or that should be sold if held in the account, and may reasonably modify such restrictions from time to time. Any restrictions placed on the management of a client's account or particular requirements of an account may cause Brinker or a portfolio manager to deviate from investment decisions it would otherwise make in recommending an investment strategy or managing the account. When a client restricts a category of securities that may be purchased for the account, Brinker or the manager will determine at its sole discretion the specific securities in that category. Any client-imposed restrictions on individual securities that may be purchased for the account shall apply only to the non-fund portion of the account.

For a discussion regarding Brinker's discretion in connection with the selection of custodians, see Item 10 of this Brochure under the heading "**Directed Brokerage**."

# **Item 17 – Voting Client Securities**

#### **SUMMARY OF PROXY VOTING**

We vote proxies for certain client accounts. Please refer to your Investment Advisory Agreement for details regarding proxy authority. For clients that grant Brinker proxy voting authority, the client authorizes Brinker to appoint the various portfolio managers who have discretionary trading authority, to vote proxies for securities held in the client's account with such manager. Brinker will vote proxies in accordance with the instructions of the portfolio manager(s) for securities held in the client's account with the manager, provided that the instructions are timely received by Brinker. If the portfolio manager's instructions are not timely received, Brinker shall vote the proxies for these securities, as well as proxies for any other securities held in the client's account, in accordance with the recommendations provided by an independent proxy voting advisory service (a "Proxy Voter"). For portfolio managers that provide a model to Brinker in which Brinker has discretionary trading authority, Brinker shall vote the proxies of the securities in accordance with the recommendations provided by a Proxy Voter.

Brinker retains the right to vote proxies for mutual fund shares and ETF shares. Generally, Brinker votes such proxies in accordance with recommendations provided by a Proxy Voter. However, Brinker retains the right to vote the proxies without a recommendation from a Proxy Voter if Brinker client accounts own in the aggregate one percent (1%) or more of the outstanding shares of the issuer as of the record date, provided that all such decisions are made in accordance with Brinker's Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures (the "Voting Policy"). In the event Brinker is voting such proxies without a recommendation from a Proxy Voter, the guiding principle by which Brinker votes on all matters submitted to security holders is the maximization of the ultimate economic value of Brinker's clients' holdings (the "Guidelines"). Brinker is mindful that for ERISA and other covered person benefit plans, the focus on the realization of economic value is solely for the benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries.

In the Destinations program proxy ballots are sent directly to the client. However, where a client directs on the custodial account application form that Brinker is to vote proxies on the client's behalf, the client's account is included in a rolled up ballot which is voted by Brinker in accordance with recommendations from a Proxy Voter.

The Investment Committee has the responsibility to monitor proxy voting decisions for any conflicts of interests, regardless of whether they are actual or perceived. If at any time any supervised person becomes aware of any potential, actual or perceived conflict of interest, the supervised person is required to contact the Chair of the Investment Committee or the Chief Compliance Officer immediately and prior to the vote being cast, if possible.

The Investment Committee may cause any of the following actions to be taken in that regard:

- Vote the proxy in accordance with the vote indicated by the Guidelines;
- Vote the relevant proxy contrary to the vote that would be indicated by the Guidelines, provided that the reasons behind the voting decision are in the best interest of the client, are reasonably documented and are approved by the Chief Compliance Officer; or
- Direct the Proxy Voter to vote in accordance with its independent assessment of the matter.

If any potential conflict is either determined not to exist, or is resolved, the relevant portfolio manager, will determine the appropriate vote. The portfolio manager will retain all documents prepared by him/her (or at his/her direction) that were material to making a decision on how to vote or that memorializes the basis for the decision.

Brinker and all portfolio managers retained by Brinker have adopted and implemented written policies and procedures. Brinker will provide these policies and procedures to each client using their investment

management services in compliance with current regulations. A copy of Brinker's Voting Policy is available, upon request, by contacting Brinker's Chief Compliance Officer at 610-407-5500 ext. 1127.

Absent any legal or regulatory requirement to the contrary, it is generally Brinker's policy to maintain the confidentiality of the particular votes that it casts on behalf of its clients; however, Brinker will obtain and make available to the client the voting record of each portfolio manager with respect to the client's account upon receipt of a written request from such client. Any client may obtain details of how Brinker voted the securities in its account by contacting a Brinker Client Services representative at 800-333-4573 or at clientservice@brinkercapital.com. The Proxy Voter posts information regarding that vote on its secure web site.

## Item 18 - Financial Information

## **Audited Balance Sheet**

The requirement to provide an audited balance sheet is not applicable to Brinker as it does not require clients to prepay fees six months or more in advance.

## **Financial Condition Disclosures**

Registered investment advisers are required in this Item to provide you with certain financial information or disclosures about Brinker's financial condition. Brinker has no financial commitment that impairs its ability to meet contractual and fiduciary commitments to clients, and has not been the subject of a bankruptcy proceeding.

# APPENDIX I To Part 2A of Form ADV

# Wrap Fee Program Brochure

(see attached)

# APPENDIX I to Part 2A of Form ADV:

# **Wrap Fee Program Brochure**

Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250
Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
(610) 407-5500
www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com
www.clsinvestsment.com

October 18, 2022

# **Description of Wrap Fee Brochure**

This Appendix I to Part 2A of Form ADV (hereinafter referred to as the "Wrap Fee Brochure") provides information about Brinker Capital Investments, LLC relating to the wrap fee ("Brinker") Programs. If you have any questions about the contents of this Wrap Fee Brochure, please contact us at (610) 407-5500.

The information in this Wrap Fee Brochure has not been approved or verified by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") or by any state securities authority.

Brinker is a registered investment adviser. Registration of an investment adviser does not imply a certain level of skill or training. Additional information about Brinker is available on the SEC's website at www.adviserinfo.sec.gov. The SEC's website also provides information about those individuals who are registered as investment adviser representatives of Brinker.

# **Item 2 – Material Changes**

On March 31, 2021, Brinker (formerly known as CLS Investments, LLC) filed its last annual update to its Form ADV, Part 2A (the "Brochure"), which provided information related solely to investment programs and services offered by Brinker. This summary of material changes is designed to make clients aware of information that has changed since the Brinker Brochure's last annual update and that may be important to them.

## Additional material changes:

Update Item 4 to reflect the name change from Tax Managed Solutions to Orion Custom Indexing Update Item 9 to reflect name changes of BasisCode and HiddenLevers to Orion Compliance and Orion Risk Intelligence.

# Item 3 – Table of Contents

Item 2 – Material Changes	2
Item 3 – Table of Contents	3
Item 4 – Services, Fees and Compensation	4
Item 5 – Account Requirements and Types of Clients	17
Item 6 – Portfolio Manager Selection and Evaluation	18
Item 7 – Client Information Provided to Portfolio Managers	23
Item 8 – Client Contact with Portfolio Managers	24
Item 9 – Additional Information	25

#### Item 4 - Services, Fees and Compensation

#### **GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES**

Brinker is an independent registered investment advisory firm that furnishes or arranges for investment management and supervisory services to meet the individual needs of its clients. We provide investment advice to individuals, pension, retirement, educational savings, profit sharing plans, endowments, other pooled investment vehicles, trusts, estates, charitable organizations, corporations or other business entities, and state or municipal government entities. Our investment management services are available directly at Brinker through accounts maintained at a qualified custodian ("Direct Client"), through employer sponsored retirement plans, and on select platforms. We also serve as an investment adviser to mutual funds.

- Core Asset Manager Program a separately managed account platform, which may also include privately placed or publicly traded pooled investment vehicles (such as hedge funds, mutual funds, exchange traded funds, real estate investment trusts and master limited partnerships). In its Core Asset Manager program, Brinker provides both discretionary management (branded as "Core Guided") and non-discretionary management services (branded as "Core Select"). Discretionary clients authorize Brinker to hire and fire investment managers and make asset allocation changes. Nondiscretionary clients must approve Brinker's portfolio manager and product recommendations. The Core Asset Manager program has a \$500,000 minimum. The discretionary offerings within the Core Guided program include:
  - Core Guided Portfolios various discretionary Brinker-managed asset allocation models for both taxable and nontaxable accounts that utilize separate account managers, mutual funds and exchange traded funds to implement different risk tolerance-based portfolios; and
  - Focused Strategies Brinker-managed model portfolios targeting specific asset classes – domestic equity, international equity, global credit, real assets and absolute return – available as a component of their overall asset allocation or as a complementary investment allocation. The minimum for a Core Guided Completion Strategy is\$100,000.

#### High Net Worth Programs

- Wealth Advisory Program a customized service and dedicated support to meet the needs of high-net worth and ultra-high net worth investors, family offices, institutions and endowments with \$1 million or more in investable assets. Wealth Advisory is designed for Brinker to manage the overall investment process, including asset and investment style allocation decisions, portfolio manager selection and review, and comprehensive monitoring of the client's portfolio. A dedicated Brinker client account manager is assigned to the client relationship and is available for regular communications concerning the activity and status of their account.
  - •In the Wealth Advisory program, portfolios are generally allocated among different portfolio managers, mutual funds and/or ETFs. Where deemed appropriate, based on the client's objectives, assets, risk tolerance and investment experience as well as to obtain greater asset and style diversification, Brinker may recommend to clients that a portion of the client's portfolio be invested in one or more other investments in lieu of allocating assets separately to a portfolio manager or a Brinker-managed strategy. These other investments may include an investment in REITs, Private Funds, ETNs or other pooled investment vehicles. Special fee arrangements may apply with respect to Private Fund investments.
  - •In the Wealth Advisory program, Brinker offers both discretionary and nondiscretionary investment management services. Where granted discretionary

- authority, the client authorizes Brinker to hire and fire portfolio managers and to rebalance the account without further approval from the client.
- •Wealth Advisory services include (but are not limited to) comprehensive portfolio analysis of a client's existing assets to help identify inefficiencies and address investment needs, tax transition management to assist a client in transferring highly-appreciated stock and move toward a more diversified portfolio over time, development of a personalize investment solution based upon the client's goals, tax preferences, risk tolerance and financial plan, and access to a dedicated Brinker client account manager to assist with portfolio reviews, reallocations, investment updates and educational.
- Master Manager uses Risk Budgeting to determine the proper allocation of your portfolio among various investment ETFs, bonds, individual securities and/or mutual funds with us acting as the asset allocation overlay manager. Based on your individual investment objectives, we may honor special requests regarding available mutual funds, ETFs and/or other securities to be utilized as well as investment research and sub-advisers. This strategy will primarily utilize ETFs, individual taxable or non-taxable bonds and/or equities and may be sub-advised by third parties selected by us as indicated in your Investment Advisory Agreement or managed utilizing investment research and portfolio models provided by third parties. A portion of the advisory fee you pay to us may be used by us to compensate these third-party providers. Your portfolio allocation will be based on your individual characteristics. This strategy may be best suited for clients wishing to have greater control over portfolio transactions, cash flow streams and/or greater visibility to the actual holdings of the portfolio. The minimum account balance for Master Manager strategies is \$500,000.
  - •The Master Manager Managed Income Strategy uses Risk Budgeting to manage an account for clients seeking consistent income from a diversified portfolio of income-producing assets. The strategy seeks to help clients with a desire for regular income to meet their short and long-term income needs by dividing the account into up to three separate investment portfolios: immediate, short-term, and long-term.
  - •The Master Manager Orion Custom Indexing uses Risk Budgeting to determine the proper allocation of your portfolio among various investment ETFs, bonds, individual securities and/or mutual funds with us acting as the asset allocation overlay manager. The primary emphasis of this strategy is performance, followed by diligence to tax liability. Tax consequences are taken into consideration for each transaction and generally, short-term gains are avoided, unless a portfolio transaction makes sense to avoid excessive loss in the security. Based on your individual investment objectives, we may honor special requests regarding available mutual funds, ETFs and/or other securities to be utilized as well as investment research and sub-advisers.

#### ETF Programs

<u>Core Plus ETF Strategy Program</u> – a discretionary Brinker-managed account program that diversifies client portfolios primarily among ETFs according to your objectives. The strategy is focused on total return and seeks allocation to core asset class ETFs, as well as some targeted satellite ETF positions. The program has a \$25,000 minimum.

Active Income Strategy Program - The Active Income Strategy is designed for clients who prefer an active strategy that seeks a specific percentage yield by investing in income producing asset classes. When selecting the strategy, you will select the percentage yield you would like Brinker to target for your account. The strategy invests in ETFs and CEFs that specialize in income-producing assets. In addition to traditional dividend-oriented equities and investment grade bonds, the strategy generates income using non-traditional

asset classes, such as master limited partnerships, real estate, convertibles, senior bank loans, high-yield bonds, and international debt. The program has a \$25,000 minimum.

Exceptions to the minimum account sizes set forth above may be made on a case-by-case basis.

All programs provide a variety of client services which include: portfolio analysis, development of investment policy, asset allocation modeling and analysis, investment management selection and quarterly performance reporting and monitoring, all to ensure a high level of quality money management and the independent, objective expertise designed to meet the client's investment objectives.

From time to time, Brinker develops a customized investment strategy for a client. Fees for such services are negotiated on a case-by-case basis. Brinker also develops new investment management strategies on a test basis with funds provided by Brinker, Brinker employees, their family members and a limited number of clients before such management strategies are made available generally. Brinker may or may not charge a fee for its management of such accounts.

Brinker's services are generally provided to the client pursuant to an investment advisory agreement between Brinker and the client. However, Brinker may also enter into a tri-party investment advisory agreement with the client and another investment advisory firm that assumes fiduciary responsibility for recommending and/or selecting the investment strategy for the client, including, in the case of an account invested in the Core Asset Manager program, a suitable asset allocation and selection of investment managers and other investments.

Brinker serves as the investment adviser for ten mutual funds (the "**Destinations Funds**"), each of which employs a multi-manager, sub-advised structure, whereby Brinker selects and oversees professional third-party investment managers who are responsible for investing the assets allocated to them. Brinker may utilize the Destinations Funds in the programs described in this Wrap Fee Brochure. The prospectus for each Destinations Fund includes investment objectives, risks, fees, expenses, and other information that prospective investors should read and consider carefully before investing.

Brinker's programs (other than Destinations mutual fund and ETFh allocation programs and Personal Benchmark, which exclusively utilizes Destinations Funds) are structured as wrap fee programs since they allow allocations to separate account managers. At any given time, *Core Guided Completion Strategies* portfolios may be allocated only among mutual funds and ETFs and, in that instance, would not be considered "wrap fee" programs. However, because Brinker has discretion to allocate assets invested in these programs to separate account managers, Brinker considers accounts invested in these programs to be "wrap fee" accounts.

#### **CLIENT DISCRETION**

The scope of Brinker's authority is set forth in the client's investment advisory agreement and is limited by the investment objectives of any account Brinker offers both discretionary investment management and non-discretionary investment advisory services in its Core Asset Manager and Wealth Advisory programs. Brinker has full discretion for its *Core Guided* and *Core Guided Completion Strategies* portfolios. Clients with non-discretionary accounts ("Core Select") approve the portfolio manager selection and individual investment vehicles in which the account is invested, although Brinker may use a "negative consent" process to replace an existing manager, consistent with the client's goals and objectives, based upon Brinker's evaluation of such portfolio manager's performance. Portfolio managers on Brinker's separate account platform have discretionary authority to buy and sell securities, consistent with their investment style and strategy.

A client may impose reasonable restrictions on the management of the client's account, including the designation of specific securities or a specific category of securities that should not be purchased for the account or that should be sold if held in the account, and may reasonably modify such restrictions from time to time. Any restrictions placed on the management of a client's account or particular requirements of an

account may cause Brinker or a portfolio manager to deviate from investment decisions it would otherwise make in recommending an investment strategy or managing the account. When a client restricts a category of securities that may be purchased for the account, Brinker or the portfolio manager will determine, in its sole discretion, the specific securities in that category. Any client-imposed restrictions on individual securities that may be purchased for the account shall apply only to individual stocks within separately managed portfolios.

#### **CORE ASSET MANAGER PROGRAM**

Brinker's Core Asset Manager Program matches an investor's objectives with one or more portfolio managers who are either SEC-registered investment advisers or exempt from SEC registration. Where deemed appropriate, based on the client's objectives, assets, risk tolerance and investment experience as well as to obtain greater asset and style diversification, a portion of the client's portfolio be invested in one or more other investments in lieu of allocating assets separately to a portfolio manager. These other investments may include an investment in real estate investment trusts ("REITs"), publicly traded mutual funds, ETFs, exchange traded notes (ETNs) or other pooled investment vehicles ("Public Funds") and privately placed hedge funds and private equity funds (collectively, "Private Funds" and, together with Public Funds, "funds"). Special fee arrangements may apply with respect to Private Fund investments.

In Brinker's nondiscretionary offering, called *Core Select*, Brinker selects a number of portfolio managers with varying styles and investment strategies (including option trading strategies), and recommends various managers to its clients based on each client's individual needs and objectives. Brinker's recommendations may also include Private Funds and/or Public Funds, as well as one or more of Brinker's *Core Guided Completion Strategies*. In *Core Select*, Brinker does not have discretionary authority to reallocate or rebalance the account, but, on prior notice to the client, may replace a separate account manager based upon Brinker's evaluation of such portfolio manager's performance.

Portfolio managers may provide management of a client's account by maintaining with Brinker a model that contains the portfolio manager's instructions or recommendations as to the securities to be purchased, held or sold for the client's account and the position weightings thereof, which are implemented by Brinker, subject to any reasonable investment restrictions or limitations imposed by the client and communicated in writing to Brinker. While Brinker is responsible for implementing the portfolio manager's instructions with respect to client accounts invested in the model, Brinker does not review or make any independent determination with respect to the merits of such investment instructions. The discretionary authority of each portfolio manager providing a model is limited to making decisions with respect to the specific securities and portfolio weightings of such securities held in the manager's model portfolio. The portfolio manager is not responsible for determining the suitability of the model for any client or implementing any client-specific restrictions or limitations.

In Brinker's discretionary offering, called *Core Guided*, Brinker offers various asset allocation models for both taxable and nontaxable accounts managed by Brinker on a discretionary basis that utilize portfolio managers, mutual funds and ETFs. In this program, Brinker has full discretionary authority to select and replace portfolio managers, mutual funds and ETFs and to allocate assets among them without further approval from the client.

Brinker may also recommend allocating a portion of a client's account to one or more of Brinker's *Core Guided Completion Strategies*, which Brinker manages on a discretionary basis. *Core Guided Completion Strategies* are also available as complementary investment allocations for clients who have other assets that are not managed through Brinker. Brinker currently offers the following *Core Guided Completion Strategies*: *Absolute Return, Domestic Equity, Global Credit, International Equity* and *Real Assets*.

Once the client has selected one or more of the recommended portfolio managers or Brinker discretionary investment strategies, Brinker monitors the performance of the portfolio manager, the Brinker managed portfolios and any fund investments and prepares and provides the client with quarterly reports on performance.

Brinker's fee is in addition to the operating expenses of any funds included in the client's account, which, in the case of mutual funds and ETFs are expressed as the fund's "expense ratio". A fund expense ratio represents the percentage of the fund's assets used to operate the fund and reflect the fund's investment management fee, administrative costs, brokerage costs, distribution fees and other operating expenses. Although these expenses are paid by the fund, clients indirectly bear their pro rata share of such costs. Potential clients should consider both Brinker's fee and the internal expense ratios of the funds included in the program (which are set forth in the prospectus for each fund) when deciding whether the Brinker program may be more or less costly than another investment program. Where Brinker allocates a client's account to a mutual fund for which Brinker or a Brinker affiliate serves as the investment adviser, any advisory fees paid to Brinker or its affiliate with respect to the client's investment in such fund are credited to, or offset and reduce, dollar-for-dollar the advisory fee otherwise payable to Brinker underthe client's investment advisory agreement. Brinker receives an advisory fee from the Destinations Funds.

However, advisory fees paid to Brinker with respect to a client's investment in Destinations Funds offset and reduce, dollar-for-dollar, the Brinker Fee Component otherwise payable to Brinker by a client.

#### WEALTH ADVISORY SERVICES

Brinker offers a customized service and dedicated support to meet the needs of high-net worth and ultrahigh net worth investors, family offices, institutions and endowments with \$1 million or more in investable assets. Wealth Advisory is designed for Brinker to manage the overall investment process, including asset and investment style allocation decisions, portfolio manager selection and review, and comprehensive monitoring of the client's portfolio. A dedicated Brinker client account manager is assigned to the client relationship and is available for regular communications concerning the activity and status of their account.

In the Wealth Advisory program, portfolios are generally allocated among different portfolio managers, mutual funds and/or ETFs. Where deemed appropriate, based on the client's objectives, assets, risk tolerance and investment experience as well as to obtain greater asset and style diversification, Brinker may recommend to clients that a portion of the client's portfolio be invested in one or more other investments in lieu of allocating assets separately to a portfolio manager or a Brinker-managed strategy. These other investments may include an investment in REITs, Private Funds, ETNs or other pooled investment vehicles. Special fee arrangements may apply with respect to Private Fund investments.

In the Wealth Advisory program, Brinker offers both discretionary and non-discretionary investment management services. Where granted discretionary authority, the client authorizes Brinker to hire and fire portfolio managers and to rebalance the account without further approval from the client.

Wealth Advisory services include (but are not limited to) comprehensive portfolio analysis of a client's existing assets to help identify inefficiencies and address investment needs, tax transition management to assist a client in transferring highly-appreciated stock and move toward a more diversified portfolio over time, development of a personalize investment solution based upon the client's goals, tax preferences, risk tolerance and financial plan, and access to a dedicated client account manager to assist with portfolio reviews, reallocations, investment updates and educational needs.

As part of the services offered to clients in its Wealth Advisory program, Brinker has approved certain third party companies to provide specialized services. Currently, these providers and services are:

- Philanthropic Services: Fidelity Charitable, an independent, section 501(c)(3) public charity that
  administers donor-advised funds. Through the Charitable Investment Advisor Program at Fidelity
  Charitable, Brinker will actively manage the Fidelity Charitable assets contributed by its clients.
  Fidelity Charitable charges a fee for these services and Brinker does not receive any direct or
  indirect revenue from Fidelity Charitable.
- Securities backed line of credit: TriState Capital provides loans secured by eligible securities.

  Using these loan facilities, clients can pledge their investment account(s) as collateral to meet

many of their financing needs, with the exception of purchasing securities. TriState Capital charges a fee for these services and Brinker does not receive any direct or indirect revenue from TriState Capital.

Trust Services: First State Trust Company and Comerica Bank and Trust N.A. ("Comerica")
 offer trust services, including but not limited to Personal, Revocable, Irrevocable, Charitable, &
 Special Needs Trusts. Both First State Trust Company and Comerica charge a fee for these
 services and Brinker does not receive any direct or indirect revenue from eitherfirm. Business
 Valuation: BizEquity LLC provides business valuation analysis for Brinker's business owner
 clients. BizEquity charges Brinker a licensing fee for use of its online business valuation
 application and Brinker includes the cost of this service within the fee it charges its client.
 Brinker does not receive any direct or indirect revenue from BizEquity.

## **OTHER SERVICES**

From time to time, Brinker also offers *Core Guided* portfolios on platforms of unaffiliated managers or platform sponsors. In these offerings, Brinker may serve as a sub-adviser to the sponsor or as a portfolio manager (usually through management of a model portfolio) available to the clients utilizing such platforms. The fees charged and minimum account size to use these platforms or Brinker's services on these platforms are established by the platform sponsor (and set forth in the sponsor's brochure).

Brinker has entered into an agreement with MML Investor Services, LLC ("MMLIS"), to provide its Wealth Advisory, Core Asset Manager and Destinations programs to MMLIS advisory clients, pursuant to a tri- party agreement among Brinker, MMLIS and the client (the "MMLIS Brinker co-advisory program"). MMLIS is the introducing broker and National Financial Services LLC serves as the clearing firm and custodian for the MMLIS Brinker co-advisory program. The fees charged, the minimum account size and each firm's roles and responsibilities are described in the MMLIS Brochure for the MMLIS Brinker co- advisory program.

## **GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF FEES**

Brinker clients pay an "all-inclusive" investment advisory fee (wrap fee), which covers the investment advisory services provided by Brinker and the portfolio manager(s), all custodial services and brokerage commissions (unless a client chooses a per trade ticket charge option on certain municipal securities, mutual fund and ETF trades as described below). Brinker may also pay a portion of the investment advisory fee to solicitors who act as the liaison between the client and Brinker. The investment advisory fee does not cover any fees charged by the SEC or U.S. or foreign stock exchanges based on the sale of a security, any special account fees imposed by the custodian (such as IRA maintenance fees), markups or markdowns on municipal securities, wire transfer fees, costs associated with temporary investment of client funds in a money market account, transfers of assets upon termination of the account or any internal management or operating fees (including potential redemption fees) or expenses imposed or incurred by a mutual fund or ETF in which the client's account may be invested or any special requests by the client.

The investment advisory fee is billed quarterly in advance. The initial fee is based on the market value of the client's account assets when the account is opened and prorated for the number of days remaining in the calendar quarter. Thereafter, the quarterly fee is due on the first business day of each quarter and is based on the market value of the client's account assets on the last business day of the immediately preceding quarter. Generally, Brinker's fee is deducted from the client's account, based on the weighted average of the managed account market values. However, upon request of the client, Brinker will bill the client separately instead of deducting the fees. Fees may be discounted or negotiated at Brinker's discretion. From time to time Brinker offers program-wide fee discounts and reduced account minimums as part of its marketing and promotional programs. Such programs may be initiated or discontinued at Brinker's discretion.

Account liquidations are done at no additional charge by Brinker. A termination charge may be imposed by the custodian. The client will be entitled to a prorated refund of any pre-paid quarterly fee based upon the number of days remaining in the quarter after the termination date.

Brinker's "all-inclusive" fee covers the cost of executing and clearing equity trades for the client's account that are effected through the client's designated custodian and clearing broker, which, for clients in the Core Asset Manager and Wealth Advisory programs, is either National Financial Services, LLC ("NFS") or Schwab & Company, Inc. ("SchwabThird-party portfolio managers participating in Brinker's programs have the authority to effect transactions through broker-dealers other than the custodian for the account, when the portfolio manager reasonably believes that another broker-dealer may effect such transactions at a price, including any commissions or dealer mark-up or mark-down, that is more favorable to the account than would be the case if transacted through the custodian. In addition, even if the price is not more favorable, for the selection of such broker-dealer, the portfolio manager may consider all relevant factors, including execution capabilities, speed, efficiency, confidentiality, familiarity with potential purchasers or sellers, or any other relevant matters. Brinker refers to trades in which the custodian is not the executing broker as "step-out trade(s)." If a portfolio manager trades with another firm, the account may be assessed other trading related costs (mark-ups, mark-downs and commissions) by the other broker-dealer. In addition, Schwab (but not NFS) charges the client a flat dollar amount as a "prime broker" or "trade away" fee for each trade that Brinker or an investment manager has executed by a different broker-dealer but where the securities bought or the funds from the securities sold are deposited (settled) into the client's Brinker account. These fees are in addition to the commissions or other compensation the client pays the executing broker-dealer. The costs of the executing broker and any trade away fees imposed by the custodian are in addition to the program fees applicable to Brinker's third-party manager programs. For this reason, a portfolio manager may find that placing trades with the custodian is often the most favorable trading option for a client.

For Brinker's third-party portfolio manager programs, it is expected that most transactions will be traded through the custodian. However, fixed income transactions are typically placed with other broker-dealers (unless Brinker or a portfolio manager determines the custodian can provide best execution) and certain portfolio managers (including, but not limited to, managers offering international equity strategies that use ADRs) have historically directed most, if not all, their trades to outside broker-dealers. Since the fees paid

to the custodian for their clearing and custody services only cover transactions effected through the custodian, transactions through any other broker-dealer would normally include an add-on cost of the commission or the dealer mark-up or mark-down and these additional trading costs may increase a client's overall costs. In addition to fees paid to Brinker, clients may be responsible for other types of fees and expenses such as mutual fund expenses.

Brinker takes into account the fact that transaction costs on trades effected through brokers other than the designated custodian (NFS or Schwab) are not included in Brinker's fee in evaluating whether the custodian is providing best execution. The fees charged by Brinker will not necessarily be as favorable as those which might be obtained through another investment adviser that authorizes a portfolio manager to select brokerage firms and that bills the client separately for execution, clearing and custody services and investment advisory services.

Fees for customized investment strategies developed for a client are negotiated on a case-by-case basis. Brinker may or may not charge a fee for management of accounts established by Brinker employees, family members and a limited number of clients to invest in new investment management strategies under development by Brinker. Such fees are disclosed and agreed upon with the client at the time the account is established.

Clients may be able to find comparable services from other sources for fees lower or higher than those charged by Brinker. In particular, if the account has relatively low turnover rates, the wrap or all-inclusive fee may be more costly for the client.

In the event the client enters into a tri-party investment advisory agreement with Brinker and another investment advisory firm responsible for recommending and/or selecting the investment strategy, the fee paid to the investment advisory firm is in addition to Brinker's fee, but Brinker does not include a solicitor's fee. The investment advisory firm's fee is established by the investment advisory firm, not Brinker. The investment advisory firm's role and its fees are described in that firm's Form ADV, Part 2A.

Certain existing clients may be billed under fee schedules that are not described in this Brochure. The applicable fee schedule is set forth in the client's investment advisory agreement with Brinker and may be changed by Brinker on 30 days' prior notice. Brinker may modify its fee schedule at any time, either generally for a class of accounts or on a case-by case basis.

#### **FEE SCHEDULE**

The client's total fee is based upon the combined fees for each of the following service components: (i) a fee for Brinker's management or advisory services (the "Brinker Fee Component"); (ii) the fees paid by Brinker to any portfolio managers with respect to a client's account (the "Manager Fee Component"); (iii) the custodian's charges for custody and clearing services (the "Custody and Clearing Component"); and,

(iv) if the client has been referred to Brinker by a soliciting firm (as described below under "REFERRAL ARRANGEMENTS"), the fee paid to a solicitor (the "Solicitor Fee Component"), determined in accordance with Brinker's annual fee schedule as the same may be amended from time to time. Brinker may amend its fee schedule including, without limitation, the Brinker Fee Component, upon at least 30 days' prior written notice. The client's total fee will vary based upon the allocation of an account among portfolio managers, specific portfolio manager selection and the number of portfolio managers versus funds included in an account. Fee schedules for portfolio managers (which determine the Manager Fee Component) and for the Custody and Clearing Fee Component, as they may be amended from time to time, are posted on Brinker's website (<a href="www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com">www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com</a>). The current annual fee schedule for each component is set forth below.

#### **Brinker Fee Component**

**Brinker's Standard Fee Schedule.** The annual fee schedule for the Brinker Fee Component (other than Wealth Advisory clients) is "tiered", meaning that the portion of the account assets within each asset tier is charged the fee indicated for such asset tier. The Brinker Fee Component will not change based upon

the allocation of assets in the account among portfolio managers and/or funds.

Asset Tier	Brinker Fee		
Up to \$100,000	0.64%		
\$100,000 to \$1 million	0.50%		
Next \$1 million	0.45%		
Next \$1 million	0.40%		
Next \$2 million	0.35%		
Over \$5 million	Negotiable		

Because the standard fee schedule is "tiered", the actual Brinker Fee Component will vary based upon changes in the total value of the client's account (resulting from appreciation, depreciation, liquidations or additional contributions).

**Wealth Advisory Fee Schedule.** The annual Brinker Fee Component for Wealth Advisory accounts is a maximum of 0.65% of account value, provided that the fee may vary on a case-by-case basis, based on the account value and services provided.

**Brinker Fund Fee Offset**: Advisory fees paid to Brinker or a Brinker affiliate by any fund advised by Brinker or a Brinker affiliate, with respect to a client's investment in such fund are credited to, or offset and reduce, dollar-for-dollar the Brinker Fee Component otherwise payable to Brinker. The Brinker Fee in the above table is gross of such offset. Currently, the Brinker Fund Fee Offset for assets invested in Destinations Funds is 0.39%. The advisory fee paid by Destinations Funds may change in the future and, accordingly, the amount of such offset may increase or decrease. If the Brinker Fund Fee Offset exceeds the Brinker Fee Component calculated under the foregoing fee schedule, Brinker will reduce the total fee by such excess amount.

#### **Manager Fee Component**

Portfolio manager fees generally range from 0.20% to 0.50% of account value for portfolio managers providing individual separate account management, depending on the portfolio manager selected (with certain managers potentially charging a higher fee). The specific manager and manager fee will be set forth on a schedule to the client's investment advisory agreement. Changes to the total fee due to changes in the Manager Fee Component are effective immediately. Portfolio manager fee schedules, as in effect from time to time, are available on Brinker's website (www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com). A client's quarterly custodial account statement includes the total fee charged on the account for the quarter.

Assets in an account may be allocated to funds as well as portfolio managers. Because Brinker does not pay a management fee with respect to assets invested in funds, the Manager Fee Component will be less if the account has a higher allocation to funds. However, funds in which the account is invested incur management fees and other operating fees and expenses as disclosed in the prospectus for each such fund, which fees and expenses are in addition to the total fee.

For all of its investment programs other than its non-discretionary Core Asset Manager and Wealth Advisory programs, Brinker has discretion to select portfolio managers and funds for a client's account and to determine the allocation of assets in an account among portfolio managers and funds. The Manager Fee Component of the total fee is determined by the fees Brinker pays to unaffiliated portfolio managers of a client's account (which are passed through directly to the client without mark-up) and the percentage of the account that is invested in funds. The fees of portfolio managers may vary based upon such portfolio

manager's investment style and asset class. Accordingly, the amount of the Manager Fee Component (and thus the total fee) will increase or decrease based upon the allocation among portfolio managers and funds and the specific portfolio managers selected for the account. For example, the Manager Fee Component (and thus the total fee) would increase if the allocation to portfolio managers (versus funds) increases, whether due to superior performance of one or more portfolio managers or because Brinker increases the overall allocation to portfolio managers or allocates assets to a portfolio manager who charges a higher fee. Conversely, if the allocation to funds or to portfolio managers with lower fees increases, the Manager Fee Component (and thus the total fee) would decrease.

#### **Custody and Clearing Fee Component**

The Custody and Clearing Fee Component is "tiered," meaning that the portion of the account assets within each asset tier is charged the fee indicated for such asset tier. Below is the Clearing and Custody Fee Schedule in effect as of the date of this Brochure.

Program / Style	Wealth Advisory Single Account and Core Guided	Core Equity SMA	Core Fixed Income SMA	Core Guided Completion Strategies
First \$250,000	0.10%	0.19%	0.09%	0.09%
Next \$250,000	0.09%	0.10%	0.07%	0.07%
Next \$500,000	0.08%	0.06%	0.05%	0.05%
Next \$1,000,000	0.05%	0.03%	0.03%	0.03%
Next \$3,000,000	0.05%	0.03%	0.03%	0.03%
Remainder	0.03%	0.03%	0.03%	0.03%

The following Asset Class Strategies (ACS), which are no longer marketed, utilize the same Custody and Clearing Fee schedule as Core Equity SMAs: ACS Domestic Equity Enhanced Passive, ACS International, and ACS International Equity Enhanced Passive. ACS Fixed Income Qualified utilizes the same clearing schedule as Core Fixed Income SMA. The *Core Guided Completion Strategies* clearing schedule applies to ACS International ETF accounts. A per ticket clearing schedule is used by ACS Fixed Income Qualified Enhanced Passive. The current ticket charge is \$30.00 per trade, which may be changed from time to time.

Brinker offers two Custody and Clearing fee structures for actively managed municipal securities portfolios. Clients may elect to be charged a separate ticket charge on each trade in the account or an asset-based fee. The current ticket charge is \$30.00 per trade for fixed income and mutual funds and \$8 per trade for equities and ETF's, which may be changed from time to time. No separate ticket charge is imposed on transactions when the client has selected the asset-based fee, which utilizes the Core Fixed Income custody and clearing fee schedule.

Brinker offers two Custody and Clearing fee structures for individual ETF or mutual fund holdings in Core Asset Manager accounts. Clients may elect to be charged a separate ticket charge on each trade in the account or an asset-based fee. The current ticket charge is \$8 per trade for ETFs and \$30 per trade for mutual fund holdings (other than trades of non-transaction fee (NTF) mutual fund shares). The ETF and mutual fund per trade ticket charge may be changed from time to time. No separate ticket charge is imposed on transactions when the client has selected the asset-based custody and clearing schedule, which utilizes the Core Equity custody and clearing fee schedule.

Whether the per trade or the asset-based option is more suitable for a client invested in actively managed municipal securities portfolios or individual ETFs or mutual funds will depend on the size of the account and the level of actual trading in the account. The per ticket charge will generally be more suitable for larger accounts without regular distribution programs, where the added ticket charge will usually be less than the

additional management fee, while the asset-based fee will generally be more suitable for smaller accounts or accounts that have above average transaction volume due to frequent additions or liquidations.

The Clearing and Custody Fee Schedule in effect from time to time is available to clients on Brinker's website (<a href="www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com">www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com</a>).

#### **Solicitor Fee Component**

The solicitor fee is equal to a percentage of the net asset value of the client's account, as determined by the solicitor and disclosed to the client. Although the solicitor determines the amount of the solicitor fee, it generally ranges from 0.20% to 1.50% of the account net asset value, but the fee could be more or less. The client pays a single fee to Brinker and Brinker pays the solicitor's fee to the solicitor.

In the event the client enters into a tri-party investment advisory agreement with Brinker and another investment advisory firm responsible for recommending and/or selecting the investment strategy, the fee paid to the investment advisory firm is in addition to Brinker's fee, but Brinker's fee does not include a Solicitor Fee Component. The investment advisory firm's fee is established by the investment advisory firm, not Brinker. The investment advisory firm's role and its fees are described in that firm's Form ADV, Part 2A.

#### **OTHER FEES**

# **Unsupervised Asset Fees**

As an accommodation to a client, Brinker may permit a client to deposit cash or other securities ("Unsupervised Assets") in the client's account or, alternatively, at the client's discretion, in a separate account established with the custodian, for which Brinker does <u>not</u> provide asset allocation, portfolio management or performance monitoring services. For custody of Unsupervised Assets, Brinker charges an additional annual fee, payable in four equal installments with the quarterly fee payments. The current fee for custody and administration of Unsupervised Assets is \$275, which may be changed upon thirty (30) day's prior written notice to the client. The client will also be charged any clearing fees or transaction charges imposed by the custodian or brokerage firm in accordance with its fee schedule in effect from time to time, which fees and charges will be deducted from the client's account at the time of the transaction giving rise to the charge.

#### **BILLING METHOD**

Advisory fees are typically deducted directly from your account, or in some circumstances, you may be billed directly for such fees. Advisory fees billed in advance are based on the market value of all your assets under management on the last trading day of each advisory fee period, unless otherwise specified. If your advisory fees are billed in advance, you may also be billed for additional monies added to your account during the advisory fee period. No adjustments to your advisory fee will be made for monies withdrawn during the advisory fee period. Upon termination, Brinker will issue you a prorated refund of all unearned advisory fees that were paid in advance.

Advisory fees billed in arrears will generally be determined based on your account balance on a daily basis unless otherwise specified. Please refer to your Investment Advisory Agreement, including attached addendums and schedules, to determine the manner your advisory fees will be calculated and billed. In any partial advisory fee cycle, your advisory fee will be pro-rated based on the number of days your assets are under management for the applicable period.

The advisory fees paid to us represent fees for management of your account and are separate from any other fees and expenses charged by other parties, including brokerage, custodian, and other transaction costs; therefore, the advisory fees shown in this Form ADV represent only the fees paid to us and do not reflect operating expenses and other costs charged by the mutual funds, variable annuities or other products you will be invested in and it is important you understand that these expenses and costs are ultimately borne by you, as the shareholder. A complete description of all fees and expenses of the securities in which

you are invested are contained in the relevant prospectuses. We also advise you to carefully review your custody agreement with your custodian as there may be custodial fees, transaction fees and other service fees charged to you by your custodian.

The advisory fee schedules listed above are our standard rates. Actual fees, and/or the portion of the advisory fee retained by Brinker and your Financial Advisor, may vary. Please refer to your Investment Advisory Agreement, including attached addendums and schedules, to determine your advisory fee. The standard fee schedules listed above and minimum account sizes for our strategies described in more detail in Item 4. Fees may be discounted or negotiated at Brinker's discretion and fees for customized investment strategies developed for a client are negotiated on a case by case basis. Furthermore, from time to time Brinker offers program-wide fee discounts and reduced account minimums as part of its marketing and promotional programs. Such programs may be initiated or discontinued at Brinker's discretion. Based on this certain Financial Advisor we offer some or all of their clients discounted fees based on the amount of assets an individual client or the Financial Advisor has with Brinker, the efficiencies gained by managing multiple clients for the same Financial Advisor, and our relationship with the Financial Advisor. As a result, clients with similar assets may have differing fee schedules and pay different fees. You can request that related accounts be combined in order to meet fee break points and reduce the advisory fee charged. We reserve the right to waive or reduce the advisory fee for certain accounts such as employee accounts and personal accounts of Financial Advisors who refer business to us. Clients who negotiate a flat fee schedule may or may not pay a higher fee than those who pay under a tiered schedule, depending on asset levels. Accounts that fall under a legacy fee schedule are grandfathered into our prior billing arrangements but can be transitioned to our current standard fee schedule at any time by contacting Brinker to transition your account to the bill structure described above. Additionally, upon our discontinuing the strategy you are invested in or a significant decrease in your account size and your inability to meet our account minimum for your current strategy, we reserve the right to re-assign your account, upon notice to you, to a more suitable Brinker strategy provided that your account is still managed pursuant to your financial objectives, goals and risk tolerance.

The same or similar investment advisory services may be available from other investment advisers for a lower fee.

#### TERMINATION OF ADVISORY AGREEMENT

We can terminate our Investment Advisory Agreement with you at any time by providing you with written notice. Likewise, you can terminate the Investment Advisory Agreement at any time by providing us with written notice. If your Investment Advisory Agreement is terminated within (5) five business days from the date of inception, all fees paid by you in advance will be promptly refunded to you and you will not be charged a termination fee. Should your Investment Advisory Agreement be terminated at any other time, you will receive a pro-rata refund of any prepaid fees. To cover administrative costs associated with terminating an account, Brinker, may imposes an administrative fee of \$75 at the time of termination. The termination fee will be deducted from any advisory fee refunds owed by Brinker to you. If your refund is less than \$75, Brinker will deduct the remaining portion of the termination fee from your account. Brinker reserves the right to waive the administrative fee, or any portion thereof, at its discretion. If you are billed in arrears for our services, any outstanding amounts owed to us for the period of time your assets were under our management shall become immediately due and payable upon termination. As of the effective date of termination of our investment management services, we will have no obligation or authority to recommend or take any action with regard to your previously managed assets. You will bear the sole responsibility to work with your custodian for proper liquidation and/or management of your assets upon termination. Upon termination, we advise you to immediately contact your custodian to ensure your account is allocated according to your wishes.

#### REFERRAL ARRANGEMENTS

Brinker remits a portion of the fee it receives to solicitors, which include broker-dealers and investment advisory firms and to the registered representatives of such firms and to other individuals or entities which may provide services to Brinker in connection with the development of potential clients. Brinker's referral agreement is in compliance with the federal regulations as set forth in 17 CFR Section 275.206 (4)-3. Each client is made aware of the referral agreement prior to or at the time of entering into an advisory contract and signs a written acknowledgement of receipt of Brinker's current Form ADV, Part 2A as required by 17 CFR Section 275.204-3 and the solicitor's written disclosure document required by 17 CFR Section 275.206(4)-3(b). The amount of the solicitor's fee is determined by the solicitor and differs, depending on the size of the account and the type (equity versus fixed income) of the account. The solicitor may be able to charge a higher fee than what it might receive for referring clients to another investment management program, which may create a financial incentive to refer clients to Brinker.

Brinker may also pay certain broker-dealer/investment advisers an administrative or marketing fee (either a percentage of the referred clients' assets under management or a fixed annual fee) to compensate the soliciting firm for certain administrative and marketing services and/or to support or participate in educational conferences and events and training programs sponsored or co-sponsored by such firms.

Such compensation arrangements may be ongoing or in connection with limited promotional programs and are disclosed as required under 17 CFR Section 275.206(4)-3(b). From time to time, Brinker may also participate as a sponsor of conferences and educational and promotional events organized by solicitor firms. Fees paid by Brinker for such sponsorship opportunities help defray expenses associated with such events.

Such administrative or marketing fees or sponsorships are paid by Brinker from its own assets and do not result in any differential in the management fee charged by Brinker for accounts with respect to which Brinker pays such fees and those with respect to which it does not pay such fees. Since the compensation paid to the client's solicitor, particularly during any promotional programs, may be more than what the solicitor would receive if the client participated in investment programs sponsored by other investment advisers, the solicitor may have a financial incentive to recommend the Brinker programs over other programs or services.

# Item 5 - Account Requirements and Types of Clients

Minimum account size requirements and applicable fee schedules are disclosed for each respective strategy described in the Custodian Guide in Item 4. Exceptions to these minimums may be made in certain cases in our discretion. We provide investment advice to individuals, high net worth individuals, investment companies (including mutual funds), pension, retirement, 529 educational saving and profit sharing plans (other than plan participants), endowments, other pooled investment vehicles, trusts, estates, charitable organizations, corporations or other business entities, and state or municipal government entities. We may also provide advice to other persons or entities including other investment advisers and broker/dealers.

Inasmuch as the investment advisory agreement for the Core Asset Manager and Wealth Advisory programs designates NFS or Schwab as the client's custodian and clearing broker, portfolio managers generally lack authority to select broker-dealers to execute trades in equity securities in the client's account. Accordingly, portfolio managers are not authorized to negotiate commissions and the client's account may not be able to participate in block trades effected by a portfolio manager for its other accounts. As a result, from time to time, a client's accounts may not obtain best execution on a particular trade. However, Brinker will authorize a portfolio manager for a Core Asset Manager or Wealth Advisory account to effect trades of equity securities through another broker-dealer, if it determines that the designated custodian cannot provide best execution for the account. For a discussion regarding "step-out trades" see Item 4 of this Wrap Fee Brochure under the heading "GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF FEES".

While Brinker requires its clients to use NFS or Schwab as their custodian and broker, Brinker's clients will decide whether to do so and open an account with NFS or Schwab (as applicable) by entering into an account agreement directly with such firm. Brinker does not open the account for the client. Generally, if a prospective client does not wish to place the client's assets with NFS or Schwab, then Brinker cannot manage the client's account. (From time to time, very large accounts participating in the Core Asset Manager program may use a firm other than NFS or Schwab as their custodian.) Not all advisers require their clients to use a particular broker-dealer or other custodian selected by the adviser. Even though client accounts are maintained at NFS or Schwab, Brinker and investment managers retained by Brinker to manage client accounts can still use other brokers to execute trades for the client's account, as described in the preceding paragraphs.

# Item 6 - Portfolio Manager Selection and Evaluation

#### INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SEARCH AND SELECTION

Portfolio managers are chosen to participate in Brinker's Programs through a combination of comprehensive objective and subjective research and analysis. Brinker screens the portfolio managers, mutual funds, ETFs and other investment products using both quantitative and qualitative evaluation criteria to identify those with superior investment characteristics as compared to other portfolio managers and funds with a comparable objective. These criteria include style analysis, long-term performance against appropriate benchmarks and peer groups, portfolio manager tenure, expense ratios and assets under management.

Portfolio managers and funds chosen to participate in Brinker's programs must complete a detailed questionnaire providing a wide variety of information, including firm history, personnel, investment philosophies and processes and typical portfolio characteristics. In addition, an authorized person of Brinker will conduct an extensive due diligence review prior to inclusion of the portfolio manager in such programs. Brinker conducts ongoing reviews of the portfolio managers, funds and alternative investments included in its programs through written and oral conversations, with both the managers themselves as well as industry consultants. This review focuses on a manager's personnel turnover, the quality of their investment process and any new investment strategies and the consistency of their performance history. Brinker's quarterly monitoring process also includes a review of the capital markets and current asset allocation strategies.

Although most of the portfolio managers in Brinker's Programs calculate performance in accordance with Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS®) guidelines, some portfolio managers may use different methodologies in calculating performance information supplied to Brinker. Where GIPS® guidelines are not used, performance information may not be calculated on a uniform and consistent basis throughout the period reported. Brinker does not independently verify historical performance data. However, detailed analyses of historical performance and trends are supplied by independent third parties. Performance is analyzed, not only from a total return perspective, but also with heavy emphasis on risk measures, style trends and comparisons to universes of managers with similar investment philosophies and processes.

Selecting the best combination of strategies is critical to the long-term success of the investment policy the client has chosen to follow. Brinker matches the client's requirements with those portfolio managers or funds who have been approved to work in Brinker Programs and whose style and characteristics, based upon information provided in the client questionnaire and in consultation with the client or the client's advisers, best match the investment objectives of the client. Specific portfolio managers are recommended to clients choosing non-discretionary services in the Core Asset Manager and Wealth Advisory programs based upon the client's investment goals, needs and risk tolerance. Portfolio managers or funds with management styles, investment processes and historical risk parameters that match the needs of the client are recommended or suggested through the use of "investment strategy proposals". The rationale behind the recommendation is explained individually to prospective clients through their solicitor or advisor. Brinker will recommend the replacement of a portfolio manager or fund for any one of a variety of reasons including, but not limited to, a change in the client's investment objectives or needs, a change in the investment style or process employed by the portfolio manager or fund, a change in the manager's personnel, and/or under performance as compared to applicable benchmark indices and peer managers with comparable investment styles.

For clients participating in the discretionary programs, Brinker recommends a specific investment strategy based upon the client's investment goals, needs and risk tolerance. Once the client selects an investment strategy, Brinker has full discretion to

allocate assets in the client's account among various strategies, hire and fire the portfolio managers or funds, to allocate assets to one or more portfolio managers or funds and purchase and sell fund shares, in each case, consistent with the client's investment strategy and any reasonable restrictions imposed on the account by the client.

Clients participating in the non-discretionary program approve the retention of portfolio managers and funds for the client's account, provided that Brinker has authority, to be exercised consistent with the client's goals

and objectives, to substitute a portfolio manager or fund based upon Brinker's evaluation of the manager. Brinker has complete discretion to select, hire and fire portfolio managers or funds managing assets of clients in the discretionary programs, as well as to select, purchase and sell funds for client's participating in such programs and invested in such strategies, to be exercised consistent with the approved investment strategy.

For each client, Brinker will construct an asset and portfolio allocation that reflects any specific information pertaining to the client's account including investment guidelines that have been determined through the client's investment strategy questionnaire and any explicit instructions and will communicate such information to the portfolio manager as necessary in connection with the management of the client's account.

The portfolio managers that have been approved for use in the Brinker programs are directly accessible to our clients through the coordination of Brinker's home office. Conference calls with the managers on various subjects ranging from changing market conditions to particular stock selections in the client's portfolio are available.

Brinker organizes educational seminars for solicitors and advisors that may be sponsored or co-sponsored by various portfolio managers and funds that participate in the Brinker Capital Partners program. Portfolio managers or funds who participate in this program pay a fee which is used to defray expenses associated with such events. A portfolio manager's or fund's participation in the program is voluntary. Brinker does not consider a portfolio manager's or fund's participation in the Brinker Capital Partners program in making investment recommendations to clients.

#### **CONFLICTS OF INTEREST**

From time to time, the Brinker investment team and/or Investment Committee members may have a conflict of interest when making an investment recommendation, including any benefits such individuals or Brinker receives from a third party. When a particular investment recommendation creates a conflict of interest, a Brinker investment team member or an Investment Committee member will (i) ensure the nature and extent of his or her interest is fully disclosed prior to the transaction, including disclosure of any direct or indirect compensation the investment team member, Investment Committee member or Brinker receives in connection with the transaction and (ii) make the recommendation only if he or she has a reasonable belief that the transaction is in the client's best interest.

We do not serve as the custodian for your managed assets; however, we do have an affiliated custodian, Constellation Trust Company ("CTC"). In order to facilitate our management services, we have entered into an agreement with CTC to waive some of their customary charges; however, you are under no obligation to select CTC as your custodian and you are free to select any of the custodians we are able to work with.

#### **Brinker Acting as Portfolio Manager**

Under its current fee schedule, the Brinker Fee Component does not change based upon the allocation of assets in the account among portfolio managers and/or funds, which Brinker believes eliminates any incentive or conflict with respect to the allocation of assets in a client's account. Brinker's Investment Committee reviews the recommended allocations on a quarterly basis to ensure that the investment recommendations are in the client's best interest.

#### Performance-Based Fees and Side-By-Side Management

Brinker charges certain clients a performance fee, which is based upon a share of capital gains or capital appreciation of the assets of such client. Performance-based fees will only be charged in accordance with the provisions of Rule 205-3 of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 and/or applicable state regulations. In addition, it is Brinker's policy not to retain any performance-based fees charged and to pass through any collected performance-based fees to third parties that provide investment research and/or advisory services to Brinker in connection with our management of a client's account, as directed by the client. In order for

Brinker to be eligible for a performance-based fee, the account's performance must exceed a designated benchmark. If the account outperforms the designated benchmark, Brinker receives a performance fee of up to 20% of the return in excess of the benchmark. The complete terms of Brinker's advisory fee are disclosed in the Investment Advisory Agreement between you and Brinker. The performance fees charged by Brinker may be higher than the performance fees charged by other investment advisers for the same or similar services.

Brinker's portfolio managers are responsible for managing performance-based fee accounts and accounts that are charged another type of fee. There are potential conflicts of interest Brinker faces by managing performance based accounts at the same time as managing asset based, non-performance based accounts. For example, the nature of a performance fee poses an opportunity for Brinker to earn more compensation than under a stand-alone asset based fee. Consequently, Brinker may favor performance fee accounts over those accounts where we receive only an asset based fee. One way Brinker may favor performance fee accounts is that we could devote more time and attention to performance fee accounts than to accounts under an asset based fee arrangement. Additionally, performance-based fees create an incentive for an adviser such as Brinker to recommend investments which may be riskier or more speculative than those which would be recommended under a different fee arrangement.

#### INVESTMENT STRATEGY DEVELOPMENT

Critical to the success of any investment plan is a sharply focused, well-defined strategy that accounts for risk tolerances, time horizons, rate of return targets and liquidity needs. Brinker uses an investment strategy questionnaire to assist in developing a recommended or suggested investment strategy for each client.

## **Investment Strategy Questionnaire**

Each Brinker client completes an investment strategy questionnaire which identifies the client's objectives, assets, risk tolerance, personal situation and investment experience. Brinker utilizes proposal system to analyze the investment strategy questionnaire and recommends an appropriate investment strategy based on the result of such analysis. Brinker's investment team is responsible for maintaining the proposal systems logic, which includes maintaining the investment strategy questionnaire. If a client requires a more custom analysis, the investment strategy questionnaire will be reviewed by an appropriate member of Brinker's investment strategy team. When creating an investment strategy profile, Brinker considers various factors, including, but not limited to, the client's risk aversion, investment time horizon, liquidity needs, tax bracket and account type. Brinker also considers the client's level of investable assets and desired level of investment discretion in recommending whether the allocation will be created in the Core Asset Manager or Wealth Advisory programs.

#### **Asset Allocation Process**

Once Brinker has created an investment strategy profile, it creates an asset allocation that aligns the client's objectives with investment strategies using investment disciplines that are suitable for achieving the client's stated goals. Brinker's Asset Allocation Committee meets regularly to determine forward- looking portfolio positioning and key investment themes. Each member of Brinker's investment team is responsible for ensuring that the decisions of the Asset Allocation Committee are executed in their respective portfolios. In following its asset allocation process, Brinker strives to (i) achieve the client's return objectives given the client's risk tolerance and (ii) establish permissible concentration levels for assets in specific asset classes. For discretionary portfolios, each program will be managed within the stated ranges for each major asset class. With respect to any investment recommendation, none of Brinker and/or the Asset Allocation Committee or Investment Committee members, favors one client or group of clients at the expense of other clients.

## **Investment Strategy Due Diligence Procedures**

Brinker's Investment Due Diligence Committee oversees the portfolio manager due diligence, selection and monitoring processes across all Brinker strategies. The Investment Due Diligence Committee reviews manager performance and addresses potential concerns, collaborates on new manager searches, and

#### discusses

recent and future onsite manager visits. The Brinker Investment Due Diligence Committee utilizes various evaluation factors to determine whether an unaffiliated portfolio manager should be terminated. Such determinations are documented and communicated to appropriate parties within Brinker. In the event a decision is made to terminate an unaffiliated portfolio manager, the investment team will determine an appropriate replacement unaffiliated portfolio manager. Brinker does not employ the same due diligence procedures that it applies to other fund managers and portfolio managers in evaluating itself.

New investment strategies, including, but not limited to, separate accounts managed by unaffiliated portfolio managers, and funds, may be evaluated and selected based upon several factors, such as style analysis, performance, information obtained through a meeting with appropriate manager personnel and investment strategy questionnaire responses. The Investment Due Diligence Committee makes determinations with respect to any new investment strategies using their professional judgment and experience while taking these factors into consideration.

#### **SUMMARY OF PROXY VOTING**

We vote proxies for certain client accounts. Please refer to your Investment Advisory Agreement for details regarding proxy authority. For clients that grant Brinker proxy voting authority, the client authorizes Brinker to appoint the various money managers to vote proxies for securities held in the client's account with such manager. Brinker will vote proxies in accordance with the instructions of the money manager(s) for securities held in the client's account with the manager or under such money manager's model, provided that the instructions are timely received by Brinker. If the money manager's instructions are not timely received, Brinker shall vote the proxies for these securities, as well as proxies for any other securities held in the client's account, in accordance with the recommendations provided by an independent proxy voting advisory service (a "Proxy Voter").

Brinker retains the right to vote proxies for fund shares. Generally, Brinker votes such proxies in accordance with recommendations provided by a Proxy Voter. However, Brinker retains the right to vote the proxies without a recommendation from a Proxy Voter if Brinker client accounts own in the aggregate one percent (1%) or more of the outstanding shares of the issuer as of the record date, provided that all such decisions are made in accordance with Brinker's Proxy Voting Policy and Procedures (the "Voting Policy"). In the event Brinker is voting such proxies without a recommendation from a Proxy Voter, the guiding principle by which Brinker votes on all matters submitted to security holders is the maximization of the ultimate economic value of Brinker's clients' holdings (the "Guidelines"). Brinker is mindful that for ERISA and other covered person benefit plans, the focus on the realization of economic value is solely for the benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries.

The Investment Committee has the responsibility to monitor proxy voting decisions for any conflicts of interests, regardless of whether they are actual or perceived. If at any time any supervised person becomes aware of any potential, actual or perceived conflict of interest, the supervised person is required to contact the Chair of the Investment Committee or the Chief Compliance Officer immediately and prior to the vote being cast, if possible.

The Investment Committee may cause any of the following actions to be taken in that regard:

Vote the proxy in accordance with the vote indicated by the Guidelines;

Vote the relevant proxy contrary to the vote that would be indicated by the Guidelines, provided that the reasons behind the voting decision are in the best interest of the client, are reasonably documented and are approved by the Chief Compliance Officer; or

Direct the Proxy Voter to vote in accordance with its independent assessment of the matter.

If any potential conflict is either determined not to exist, or is resolved, the relevant portfolio manager, will determine the appropriate vote. The portfolio manager will retain all documents prepared by him/her

(or at his/her direction) that were material to making a decision on how to vote or that memorializes the

basis for the decision.

All investment managers in the Core Asset Manager and Wealth Advisory programs have adopted and implemented written policies and procedures. Brinker will provide these policies and procedures to each client using their investment management services in compliance with current regulations. A copy of Brinker's Voting Policy is available, upon request, by contacting Brinker's Chief Compliance Officer at 610-407-5500 ext. 1127.

Absent any legal or regulatory requirement to the contrary, it is generally Brinker's policy to maintain the confidentiality of the particular votes that it casts on behalf of its clients; however, Brinker will obtain and make available to the client the voting record of each investment manager with respect to the client's account upon receipt of a written request from such client. Any client may obtain details of how Brinker voted the securities in its account by contacting a Brinker Client Services representative at 800-333-4573 or at clientservice@brinkercapital.com. The Proxy Voter posts information regarding that vote on its secure web site.

#### **Trade Error Policy**

We have internal controls for the prevention of trade or model portfolio allocation errors, however, on occasion, errors may occur. We recommend that you regularly review your custodial statements. In the event you identify an error, you have 45 days from your statement date to notify us of its existence. Upon notification, we will perform an analysis of the reported discrepancy. If Brinker is responsible for the error, we will seek to correct the error in a way that returns your account to where it would have been had the error not occurred. In the event an error results in a gain, Brinker or your custodian will retain such gains. If you notify us of a potential error more than 45 days after your statement date and Brinker is responsible for the error, Brinker will reimburse you for any damage caused to your account from the date of the error through 45 days after your statement date.

We maintain a record of identified errors, including details of the original transaction and the corrective actions.

#### Item 7 – Client Information Provided to Portfolio Managers

For each client, Brinker will construct an asset and portfolio allocation that reflects any specific information pertaining to the client's account including investment guidelines that have been determined through the client's investment strategy questionnaire and any explicit instructions and will communicate such information to the portfolio manager as necessary in connection with the management of the client's account.

Portfolio managers may provide management of a client's account by maintaining with Brinker a model that contains the manager's instructions or recommendations as to the securities to be purchased, held or sold for the client's account and the position weightings thereof, which are implemented by Brinker, subject to any reasonable investment restrictions or limitations imposed by the client and communicated in writing to Brinker. Brinker is responsible for implementing the model manager's instructions with respect to client accounts invested in the model. However, Brinker does not review or make any independent determination with respect to the merits of the manager's investment instructions. The discretionary authority of each portfolio manager providing a model is limited to making decisions with respect to the specific securities and portfolio weightings of such securities held in the manager's model portfolio. The model manager is not responsible for determining the suitability of the model for any client or implementing any client-specific restrictions or limitations.

When a client account is first opened with a portfolio manager who is providing direct management of the client's account (rather than providing management through a model), Brinker provides the portfolio manager with client information and investment objectives, restrictions, dollar amounts, and whether client is subject to alternative minimum tax, if applicable. This may be provided when a client first selects the portfolio manager at the time the account is opened or when a new portfolio manager is added to an allocation as part of a portfolio manager rebalance or substitution. Brinker also provides client data to these portfolio managers when a client informs Brinker of a material change to his or her account, such as a name change, a change in investment objectives and/or a change to the restrictions associated with the client's account. Portfolio managers can also request updated information from time to time in connection with an account.

Information communicated to portfolio managers (other than model managers) is generally name, address, social security number, dollar amount, restrictions, investment objectives, whether subject to alternative minimum tax and whether there are any systematic investments or distributions on an account. Such portfolio managers may request a copy of the client investment advisory agreement. Brinker does not provide any client specific information to portfolio managers that provide Brinker a model portfolio.

Your Financial Advisor has agreed to make periodic contact with you, at least annually. Together, you and your Financial Advisor determine whether a change in your objectives warrants a change in the criteria used to manage your assets. We also make quarterly performance evaluations available to you that describe your current personal and investment information. We use this information as the primary reference for managing your account. If any information has changed, you are instructed to promptly advise us of any changes. If the information is current, no further action is required. You also have access to your account information at all times via our web site where you can view your investment objectives, investment policy statement and other important information regarding the management of your account.

## Item 8 - Client Contact with Portfolio Managers

Certain portfolio managers that have been approved for use in the programs are directly accessible to our clients through the coordination of our home office. Conference calls with the managers on various subjects ranging from changing market conditions to particular stock selections in the client's portfolio are generally available.

#### Item 9 - Additional Information

#### DISCIPLINARY INFORMATION

Registered investment advisers are required to disclose all material facts regarding any legal or disciplinary events that would be material to client's evaluation of Brinker or the integrity of Brinker's management. Brinker has no information applicable to this Item 9.

#### OTHER FINANCIAL INDUSTRY ACTIVITIES AND AFFILIATIONS

#### **Broker-Dealer Registrations**

Brinker Capital Securities, LLC. is a registered broker-dealer and an affiliate of Brinker. Brinker Capital Securities, LLC. acts as introducing broker under a clearing agreement with National Financial Services, LLC ("NFS") for all accounts custodied at NFS other than those introduced by Fidelity Brokerage Services, LLC, an NFS affiliated broker-dealer, or clients in the MMLIS Brinker co-advisory program for whom MMLIS serves as the introducing broker.

#### Orion Portfolio Solutions. LLC ("OPS")

OPS is an investment advisor registered with the SEC. OPS provides a fee-based investment platform that allows investment advisors the ability to develop their own model portfolios or utilize models provided by institutional portfolio strategists. Brinker makes certain strategies and model portfolios available through OPS. Brinker's services are available through other fee-based platforms, so you are not obligated to utilized OPS to access Brinker's investment management. Additionally, certain operational services for your account, such as trading and fee billing, are performed by employees of OPS. A portion of your advisory fee is used to compensate OPS for these services; you are not charged a separate fee by OPS.

#### **Constellation Trust Company ("CTC")**

CTC is a Nebraska chartered trust company and an affiliate of ours. Some of our executive officers also serve as officers and directors of CTC. CTC's custodial services facilitate clients who desire a third-party investment adviser such as us to manage their account(s). We recommend CTC, among other custodians, to our clients. CTC has established electronic interfaces and capabilities necessary to maintain and aggregate custodial records and reporting for clients invested across various investment platforms. We have entered into an arrangement with CTC to waive the annual custodial fee for our clients. All other custodial fees and charges of CTC are set forth in the CTC custodial agreement. Trades for client accounts custodied at CTC are affected via the National Securities Clearing Corporation through arrangements with third parties including Matrix Settlement and Clearance Services, LLC ("Matrix") and TD Ameritrade, Inc. The Affiliated Funds and other mutual funds held by our clients with assets custodied at CTC pay shareholder servicing fees to CTC for distribution and/or shareholder servicing related assistance associated with making a client's investments in such funds. As discussed above in Item 5, when selecting share classes for accounts held at CTC or any other custodian, Brinker selects the most appropriate share class for you and does not take into consideration any fees paid by the mutual fund to CTC or any other custodian.

<u>Orion Advisor Technology, LLC ("OAT").</u> Advizr Inc., and Orion Risk Intelligence (formerly HiddenLevers)

We utilize the back-office system provided by OAT for trade processing, account management, and performance reporting. We also make available to you financial planning tools from Advizr and risk analytics tolls from Orion Risk Intelligence. Brinker believes that the utilization of OAT, Advizr and Orion Risk Intelligence do not create a conflict of interest.

### **Focus Orion Solutions**

Focus Orion Solutions, LLC is a joint venture between OAT and Focus Financial Partners Inc., which offers an array of cash and credit solutions and related services developed by Focus Client Solutions ("FCS") through the OAT WealthTech platform. OAT will receive a fee for referring clients to FCS. Financial advisors that utilize Brinker have access to FCS's financial institution partners that offer the lending- and deposit-related products listed below (collectively, the "Financial Products"). In each case, access to the Financial Products is made available to a financial advisor so that the financial advisor may identify one or more selected banking institutions that can offer to financial advisor's clients certain Financial Products desired by those clients. Such Financial Products currently consist of the following:

- a. **Mortgage Loans**—Loans relating to residential purchases, refinancing, HELOC, and construction loans:
- b. **Working Capital**—Corporate, commercial, and business working capital, expansion and acquisition lines of credit and loans;
- c. **Commercial Real Estate**—Commercial real estate, multifamily and other owned occupied properties;
- d. **Securities Backed Lines of Credit (SBLOC)**—Automated and highly competitively priced non-purpose securities backed lines along with lines secured by selective private and alternative investments;
- e. Specialty Lending—Premium financing, fund call and operating lines of credit, along with others;
- f. Watercraft and Aircraft Lending—New and used watercraft and/or aircraft purchases and refinancing; and
- g. **FDIC Insured Deposit Program**—In-portfolio cash balances, held away debit/transactional cash and outside client cash savings with \$2 to \$100 million of insurance per tax ID.

#### **Orion Compliance**

Orion Compliance (formerly BasisCode) is an end-to-end compliance management solution owned by Orion, built upon an always audit-ready reporting infrastructure. The cloud-based software platform provides core compliance functions and personal trading and insider trading solutions for firms with mobile accessibility. Orion Compliance combines the core data available through Orion with the analytics available through Orion Compliance and Orion Risk Intelligence (formerly HiddenLevers), to help new tools for the advisor communities.

## Other Registrations

Neither Brinker nor any of its management persons are registered or have applications pending to register, as a futures commission merchant, commodity pool operator, a commodity trading advisor or an associated person of the foregoing entities.

#### **Relationships with Related Persons**

As stated above, Brinker Capital Securities, LLC. acts as introducing broker under the clearing agreement with NFS for all accounts custodied at NFS other than those introduced by Fidelity Brokerage Services, LLC. Brinker Capital Securities, LLC. receives no commissions in connection with securities transactions in wrap fee accounts for which it acts as introducing broker.

#### **Material Conflicts of Interest**

In the Core Asset Manager and Wealth Advisory programs Brinker has the choice of using either non-transaction fee ("NTF") funds or transaction fee funds. While transaction fee funds generally have a lower

expense ratio to the client than an NTF fund, the clearing and custody costs paid by Brinker are higher for transaction fee funds than for NTF funds. For clients with fee schedules in effect prior to April 1, 2017, this may create a conflict by giving Brinker the incentive to select NTF funds in order to reduce the clearing and custody fees for its clients' accounts, instead of selecting transaction fee funds that may have a lower expense ratio to the client. In order to address this potential conflict, Brinker pays the custodian an asset-based fee for clearing and custody, which Brinker took into account when establishing its fee schedule(s) for these programs. Under its current fee schedule, the clearing and custody fees are passed through to the client without mark-up, which eliminates any potential conflict with respect to the selection of fund investments for client accounts.

Brinker organizes educational seminars for solicitors that may be sponsored or co-sponsored by various money managers and mutual fund managers that participate in the Brinker Capital Partners program. Portfolio managers who participate in this program pay a fee which is used to defray expenses associated with such events. A portfolio manager's participation in the program is voluntary. Brinker does not consider a portfolio manager's participation in the Brinker Capital Partners program in making manager recommendations to clients.

Brinker receives certain economic benefits from NFS and Schwab in the form of support products and services these firms make available to Brinker. This may create an incentive to require clients to maintain their accounts with NFS or Schwab based on the benefits Brinker receives rather than the client's interest in receiving the most favorable execution of transactions, which is a potential conflict of interest. Brinker believes, however, that the selection of these firms as custodian and broker is in the best interest of its clients. It is primarily supported by the scope, quality and price of their services (based upon the factors discussed above) and not on those services that benefit only Brinker.

Furthermore, under its current fee schedule for accounts established on or after April 1, 2017, clearing and custody fees are passed through to the client without mark-up. Brinker believes that its clients therefore directly benefit from the favorable pricing associated with this directed brokerage.

Brinker has adopted and implemented policies and procedures it believes are reasonably designed to manage these conflicts of interest and to prevent violations of applicable law.

# CODE OF ETHICS, PARTICIPATION OR INTEREST IN CLIENT TRANSACTIONS AND PERSONAL TRADING

Brinker has adopted a Code of Ethics (the "Code") which meets the requirements of Rule 204A-1 promulgated under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. The Code sets forth a standard of business conduct required of all of its employees (which includes all of Brinker's officers, directors and employees as well as any other person who provides advice on behalf of Brinker and is subject to Brinker's supervision and control). Brinker effectively treats each employee (and thus, each employee) as an "access person" (as defined in Rule 204A-1). Brinker's employees do not include employees of unaffiliated investment managers, each of whom is required to adopt its own code of ethics applicable to these individuals.

The Code is based, in part, upon the principle that employees owe a fiduciary duty to Brinker's clients. Each employee must act in a manner as to avoid (1) serving his/her own personal interests ahead of Brinker's clients; (ii) taking inappropriate advantage of his/her position with Brinker; and (iii) any actual or potential conflicts of interest or any abuse of his/her position of trust and responsibility.

The Code provides that employees and members of their households may not:

- trade in any security while in possession of material nonpublic information about the issuer of a security;
- communicate material nonpublic information about any publicly traded issuer of any securities to anyone else except in the ordinary course of his/her employment-related duties;

- disclose to other persons the securities activities engaged in or contemplated for Brinker's client portfolios; or
- disclose the holdings in a client's portfolios (except, in the case of any employee of Brinker or any
  of its affiliates, as required to carry out his or her employment-related duties to Brinker's clients or
  as required by applicable securities laws).

In addition, each employee must:

- conduct all of his/her business activities in accordance with the requirements of the Code and consistent with Brinker's fiduciary duties to its clients;
- comply with all applicable federal securities laws;
- promptly report any violations of the Code to Brinker's Chief Compliance Officer or Compliance Manager; and
- annually certify that he/she has received, read and understands the Code, has complied with all requirements of the Code and disclosed all personal securities transactions required pursuant to the Code.

Each employee has already furnished to the Compliance Department a list of all securities required to be reported under the Rule in which either such employee or members of his/her household own a beneficial interest ("Reportable Securities"), which list must be updated annually. In addition, by the tenth day following each calendar quarter, each employee must provide the Compliance Department with reports of all Reportable Securities transactions during such quarter.

Brinker has no direct or indirect control over the investment decision-making process of unaffiliated portfolio managers. Accordingly, since Brinker's employees are generally not aware of investment decisions of unaffiliated portfolio managers, Brinker's employees may buy or sell for their personal accounts securities which are recommended by portfolio managers for client accounts. However, if Brinker receives confidential information regarding an issuer from a portfolio manager, it may establish a restricted list for such securities. Employees are prohibited from personally, or on behalf of a household member, purchasing any securities on a restricted list. In the event that an employee owns a security that was purchased prior to being placed on the restricted list, the employee must obtain approval (pre-clearance) from the Chief Compliance Officer prior to entering any securities transaction in their personal accounts for the sale of that security.

In addition, each employee must receive prior approval from Brinker's President or designee for (i) any purchase of securities in an initial public offering or a limited offering for the benefit of such employee or member of his/her household or (ii) serving on the boards of directors of any public corporation.

Employees are also subject to restrictions on giving gifts to, or receiving gifts from, certain persons and in dollar amounts that exceed a certain *de minimis* amount.

A copy of the Code is available, upon request, by contacting Brinker's Chief Compliance Officer at 610-407-5500 ext. 1127.

#### **REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS**

Based on information provided by the client to Brinker on Brinker's investment strategy questionnaire concerning the client's objectives, assets, risk tolerance, time horizon, personal situation and investment experience, Brinker will recommend an asset allocation involving various asset classifications and investment styles and will identify for the client suitable portfolio managers or other investments to implement the investment disciplines included in the agreed upon investment strategy. Thereafter, Brinker monitors the performance of each investment discipline. Brinker provides the client with written quarterly performance reports on the performance of the client's total account compared to standard industry indices.

Brinker does not review specific investments made by unaffiliated portfolio managers or funds. Brinker does not rebalance or change the asset allocation in a client's non-discretionary Core Asset Manager or Wealth Advisory account unless the client requests Brinker to review the agreed upon investment strategy. Brinker does rebalance and actively change the asset allocation of discretionary accounts, as warranted. Brinker does not change the investment strategy for a client accounts unless the client requests Brinker to review the agreed upon investment strategy.

Before Brinker includes a portfolio manager's investment discipline or fund in Brinker's investment programs, Brinker conducts a review of the investment management firm as well as the specific investment discipline or fund. Investment management firms and specific investment disciplines and funds are reviewed and selected based on such criteria as their proven investment management expertise, the soundness of their investment process, the quality of their professionals, and the consistency of their performance. Managers' investment disciplines for separately managed accounts, mutual funds and Private Funds are reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure that they continue to meet Brinker's requirements. These reviews may include reviews of performance, style, consistency, due diligence questionnaires, as well as personal meetings with portfolio managers and other representatives from investment management firms.

#### **ECONOMIC BENEFITS**

Brinker organizes educational seminars for solicitors and other advisors who recommend Brinker investment programs to their clients that may be sponsored or co-sponsored by various money managers and mutual fund managers that participate in the Brinker Capital Partners program. Portfolio managers who participate in this program pay a fee which is used to defray expenses associated with such events. A portfolio manager's participation in the program is voluntary. Brinker does not consider a portfolio manager's participation in the Brinker Capital Partners program in making manager recommendations to clients.

At the client's request Brinker may facilitate lending arrangements between the client and a bank using the securities in the client's account as collateral. Brinker does not provide advice in connection with such lending arrangements.

For a discussion regarding fees in connection with client referrals see Item 4 of this Wrap Fee Brochure under the heading "REFERRAL ARRANGEMENTS".

Brinker receives economic benefits from NFS and Schwab in the form of the support products and services these firms make available to Brinker and other independent investment advisers that have their clients maintain accounts at these broker-dealer firms. These products and services, how they benefit Brinker, and the related conflicts of interest are described in Item 12 of Part 2A of Brinker's Form ADV under the heading "Products and Services Available to Brinker from NFS and Schwab". The availability to Brinker of these products and services is not based on Brinker giving particular investment advice, such as buying particular securities for Brinker clients. FINANCIAL INFORMATION APPLICABLE TO WRAP FEE CLIENTS

#### **Audited Balance Sheet**

The requirement to provide an audited balance sheet is not applicable to Brinker as it does not require clients to prepay fees six months or more in advance.

## **Financial Condition Disclosures**

Registered investment advisers are required in this Item to provide you with certain financial information or disclosures about Brinker's financial condition. Brinker has no financial commitment that impairs its ability to meet contractual and fiduciary commitments to clients and has not been the subject of a bankruptcy proceeding.



Rev. Mar. 2022

FACTS	WHAT DOES BRINKER C WITH YOUR PERSONAL		S, LLC ("BRINKER") DO
Why?	gives consumers the right to li us to tell you how we collect	Financial companies choose how they share your personal information. Federal law gives consumers the right to limit some but not all sharing. Federal law also requires us to tell you how we collect, share and protect your personal information. Please read this notice carefully to understand what we do.	
What?	The types of personal information we collect and share depend on the product or service you have with us. This information can include:  Social Security number employment information account balances risk tolerance account transactions assets and income investment experience transaction history and wire transfer instructions When you are no longer our customer, we continue to share your information as described in this notice.		
	All financial companies need everyday business. In the sect share their customers' persona whether you can limit this shan SHARE YOUR PERSONAL	tion below, we list the reasons Elinformation; the reasons Euring.  DOES BRINKER	ons financial companies can brinker chooses to share; and CAN YOU LIMIT THIS
	FORMATION	SHARE?	SHARING?
such as to process your account(s), respond to c investigations or report	transactions, maintain your court orders and legal	Yes	No
For our marketing pu to offer our products an		Yes	No
For joint marketing with other financial companies		Yes	No
For our affiliates' ever information about your experiences	ryday business purposes – transactions and	Yes	No
For our affiliates' ever information about your	ryday business purposes – creditworthiness	No	We do not share
For our affiliates to market to you		No	We do not share
For non-affiliates to market to you		No	We do not share
Who We Are			
Who is providing this	notice? Brinker Capital Inve	stments, LLC	



What We Do	
How does Brinker protect my personal information?	To protect your personal information from unauthorized access and use, we use security measures that comply with federal law. These measures include computer safeguards and secured files and buildings.
How does Brinker collect my personal information?	We collect your personal information, for example, when you:  open an account  provide account information  give us your income information  give us your contact information  provide employment information  enter into an investment advisory contract  tell us about your investments or retirement portfolio  seek advice about your investments
Why can't I limit all sharing?	Federal law gives you the right to limit only:  • sharing for affiliates' everyday business purposes — information about your creditworthiness  • affiliates from using your information to market to you • sharing for non-affiliates to market to you State laws and individual companies may give you additional rights to limit sharing.
Definitions	
Affiliates	Companies related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and nonfinancial companies.  Our affiliates include financial companies such as Brinker Capital Securities, LLC and Orion Portfolio Solutions, LLC. Non-financial company affiliates include Orion Advisor Technology, LLC and others.
Nonaffiliates	Companies not related by common ownership or control. They can be financial and nonfinancial companies.  • Brinker does not share with nonaffiliates so they can market to you.
Joint Marketing	A formal agreement between non affiliated financial companies that together market financial products or services to you.
	Our joint marketing partners include financial institutions.
Other Important Information	
Questions?	Call (888) 455-4244 or go to www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

## **Business Continuity Plan**

Brinker Capital's Business Continuity Plan documents and outlines how we will respond to events that significantly disrupt our business location, the city where we are located, or the whole region. Since the timing and impact of disasters and disruptions is unpredictable, we will have to be flexible in responding to actual events as they occur. With that in mind, we are providing you with this information on our business continuity plan.

If after a significant business disruption you cannot contact us as you usually do, you should go to our web site at <a href="www.BrinkerCapital.com">www.BrinkerCapital.com</a>. Our website will provide you with alternate telephone numbers or e-mail addresses for you to contact. If you cannot access us through these means, our clearing firms will be notified of business disruptions and will be available to customers if needed for trading, withdrawals, deposits, and inquiries.

We plan to quickly recover and resume business operations after a significant business disruption and respond by safeguarding our employees and property, making a financial and operation assessment, protecting the firm's books and records, and allowing our customers to transact business. In short, our business continuity plan is designed to permit our firm to resume operations as quickly as possible, given the scope and severity of the significant business disruption.

Our business continuity plan addresses: data backup and recovery, all mission critical systems; financial and operational assessments; alternative communications with customers, employees, and regulators; alternate physical location of employees; critical supplier, contractor, and bank impact; regulatory reporting; and assuring our customers prompt access to their funds and securities if we are unable to continue our business.

Our clearing firms back up our important records in geographically separate areas. While every emergency situation poses unique problems based on external factors, such as time of day and the severity of the disruption, our clearing firms have advised us that their objective is to restore their own operations and be able to complete existing transactions and accept new transactions and payments promptly.

At a minimum, the business continuity plan is reviewed, updated and tested on an annual basis. Additionally, our primary internal and external application providers periodically conduct testing of their own back-up capabilities to ensure that, in the event of an emergency or significant business disruption, they will be able to provide us with the critical information and applications we need to continue or promptly resume our business.

Making sure that any type of disruption does not unduly impact our clients and their advisors is extremely important to us, and our business continuity plan is designed to allow us to continue to provide the quality service you have come to expect from Brinker Capital. If you have questions about our business continuity planning, you can contact us at 800-333-4573.



## **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

## **Supervised Person**

Name:	Edward Kelly
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Edward Kelly that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Edward Kelly

Year of Birth: 1968

Formal Education after high school:

Villanova University (B.A. in Philosophy)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

EVP Wealth Management Sales, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present)

Executive Vice President of TAMP Sales, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (10/20-12/21)

Chief Sales Officer, Brinker Capital (07/19-09/20)

Executive Vice President of National Sales, Brinker Capital (10/15-06/19)

National Sales Director, Brinker Capital (01/14-10/15)

Midwest Regional Director, Brinker Capital (06/12-01/14)

Sr. Regional Consultant, Genworth (05/10-06/12)

Regional VP, CM Securities (02/09-01/10)

Vice President, Atlantic Trust (06/07-02/09)

### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

#### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

In addition to his salary, Mr. Kelly also receives a bonus based on the total amount of new assets under management in, and net revenue generated by, all of Brinker's programs.

#### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client

account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Edward Kelly is supervised by Steve DeAngelis, Chief Revenue Officer (402) 896-7643. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



## **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: March 2022

#### **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address.	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

#### **Supervised Person**

Name:	Avery C. Cook
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Avery C. Cook that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Avery C. Cook CIMA®

Year of Birth: 1975

Formal Education after high school: Hamilton College (B.A. in Economics and Computer Science)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Retirement Plan Consultant, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (05/17-Present)

SVP, Managed Products and Solutions, Brinker Capital (12/14-04/17)

VP, Strategic Planning, Brinker Capital (01/11-12/14)

Professional designation: Certified Investment Management Analysts (CIMA®)

The CIMA designation is professional certification for individuals who are investment consultants with at least three years of professional experience. The Investment Management Consultants Association offers the CIMA courses. Individuals who hold CIMA designations are required to prove their expertise through continual recertification, which requires CIMA designees to complete at least 40 hours of continuing education every two years.

### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

#### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

#### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer

to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Avery C. Cook is supervised by Thomas K.R. Wilson, Senior VP, Head of Wealth Advisory (610) 407-5508. Mr. Wilson supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the Retirement Plan Sales professionals.



## **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

#### **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

## **Supervised Person**

Name:	Bruce D. Bischoff
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Bruce D. Bischoff that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Bruce D. Bischoff

Year of Birth: 1969

Formal Education after high school:

Utah State University (B.A. in Marketing)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

Divisional Vice President of Sales, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present) Senior Regional Vice President, Orion Portfolio Solutions (1/20-12/21) Executive Vice President of Sales, CLS Investments (3/13-12/20)

## **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

#### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

#### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Bruce D. Bischoff is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



## **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

#### **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

## **Supervised Person**

Name:	Chris Bosse
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Chris Bosse that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Chris Bosse

Year of Birth: 1985

Formal Education after high school:

Thomas More University (Bachelors in Business Finance and Associates in Economics Finance)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present) Regional VP at Orion Portfolio Solutions (10/19-12/21) Regional VP at FTJ FundChoice (1/13-10/19)

#### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

#### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Chris Bosse is supervised by Ryan LeStrange, Divisional Vice President of Sales (312) 833-9076. Mr. LeStrange is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



## **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address.	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

## **Supervised Person**

Name:	Patrick Ferrer
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Patrick Ferrer that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Patrick Ferrer

Year of Birth: 1959

Formal Education after high school:

Rutgers University (B.A. in Marketing)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information: VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present) Regional Vice President Southeast, Orion Portfolio Solutions (03/11-12/21)

## **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

## **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Patrick Ferrer is supervised by Ryan LeStrange, Divisional Vice President of Sales (312) 833-9076. Mr. LeStrange is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



## **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

#### **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

## **Supervised Person**

Name:	Michael F. Frascone
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Michael F. Frascone that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Michael F. Frascone, CIMA®

Year of Birth: 1974

Formal Education after high school:

Pennsylvania State University, (BS in Finance)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present)

Regional Vice President, Brinker Capital (01/14-12/21)

Regional Director, Brinker Capital (10/02-01/14)

Internal Investment Consultant, Brinker Capital (06/01-09/02)

Investment Strategy Analyst, Brinker Capital (05/00-05/01)

Registered Representative, New England Securities (09/98-05/00)

Professional designation: Certified Investment Management Analysts (CIMA®)

The CIMA designation is professional certification for individuals who are investment consultants with at least three years of professional experience. The Investment Management Consultants Association offers the CIMA courses. Individuals who hold CIMA designations are required to prove their expertise through continual recertification, which requires CIMA designees to complete at least 40 hours of continuing education every two years.

### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

#### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

#### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Michael F. Frascone is supervised by Ryan LeStrange, Divisional Vice President of Sales (312) 833-9076. Mr. LeStrange is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



## **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

## **Supervised Person**

Name:	Anthony Gonzales
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Anthony Gonzales that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Anthony Gonzales

Year of Birth: 1976

Formal Education after high school:

Kansas State University (BS, Human Resource Management)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present)

Regional Vice President, Brinker Capital (01/18-12/21)

Regional Business Consultant, Global Financial Private Capital (03/17-12/17)

Regional Consultant, Assetmark (09/15-12/16)

Regional Business Consultant, Curian Capital (01/03-09/15)

#### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

#### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Anthony Gonzales is supervised by Bruce Bischoff, Divisional Vice President of Sales (402) 980-1182. Mr. Bischoff is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



## **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

## **Supervised Person**

Name:	Erik M. Hardin
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Erik M. Hardin that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Erik M. Hardin

Year of Birth: 1985

Formal Education after high school:

Fort Lewis College (B.S. in Finance)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present)

Regional Vice President, Orion Portfolio Solutions (12/14-12/21)

### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

#### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order

management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Erik M. Hardin is supervised by Bruce Bischoff, Divisional Vice President of Sales (402) 980-1182. Mr. Bischoff is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



## **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

#### **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address.	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

## **Supervised Person**

Name:	Chris Horan
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Chris Horan that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Chris Horan

Year of Birth: 1981

Formal Education after high school:

Virginia Wesleyan College (B.A. in Business Management/Accounting) The College of William & Mary Mason School of Business (M.B.A)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information: VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present) Regional Vice President, Orion Portfolio Solutions (02/08-12/21)

## **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

#### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Chris Horan is supervised by Ryan LeStrange, Divisional Vice President of Sales (312) 833-9076. Mr. LeStrange is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

# <u>Adviser</u>

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address.	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Brett Leach
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Brett Leach that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Brett Leach

Year of Birth: 1969

Formal Education after high school:

Illinois State University (B.S. Social Science)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information: VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present) Regional Vice President, Orion Portfolio Solutions (06/12-12/21)

# **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

# **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Brett Leach is supervised by Ryan LeStrange, Divisional Vice President of Sales (312) 833-9076. Mr. LeStrange is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

# **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Ryan P. LeStrange
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Ryan P. LeStrange that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Ryan P. LeStrange

Year of Birth: 1982

Formal Education after high school:

Saint Joseph's University, (BS in Labor and Industrial Relations)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

Divisional Vice President of Sales, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present)

Regional Vice President, Brinker Capital (03/14-12/21) Investment Consultant, Brinker Capital (01/13-03/14) Client Service Representative, Brinker Capital (03/12-12/12)

Regional Vice President, Coventry (01/09-03/11)

### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

## **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Ryan P. LeStrange is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Thomas J. McNeil
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Thomas J. McNeil that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Thomas J. McNeil, CIMA®

Year of Birth: 1980

Formal Education after high school:

University of Glasgow (B.S. in Mathematics) Franklin Pierce College (M.B.A. in Leadership)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (1/22-Present)

Regional Vice President, Brinker Capital (1/15-12/21) Investment Consultant, Brinker Capital (10/11-1/15) Regional Director, Pacer Financial (1/11-10/11)

Professional designation: Certified Investment Management Analysts (CIMA®)

The CIMA designation is professional certification for individuals who are investment consultants with at least three years of professional experience. The Investment Management Consultants Association offers the CIMA courses. Individuals who hold CIMA designations are required to prove their expertise through continual recertification, which requires CIMA designees to complete at least 40 hours of continuing education every two years.

## **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

#### Item 6 Supervision

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Thomas J. McNeil is supervised by Ryan LeStrange, Divisional Vice President of Sales (312) 833-9076. Mr. LeStrange is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Mitchell J. Mellen
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Mitchell J. Mellen that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Mitchell J. Mellen

Year of Birth: 1964

Formal Education after high school:

University of Wisconsin (BS in Psychology and Economics)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present)

Regional Vice President, Brinker Capital (11/12-12/21) Sr. Consultant, Genworth Financial (12/10-11/12)

President, CM Securities & CM Securities Distributors (07/09-02/10)

CEO, American Independence Real Estate I (04/09-03/10)

President, Highlands Ranch (03/07-04/09)

President of Distribution, Cornerstone Ventures, Inc. (09/05-03/07)

## **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

## **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

## **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client

account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Mitchell J. Mellen is supervised by Bruce Bischoff, Divisional Vice President of Sales (402) 980-1182. Mr. Bischoff is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Matthew S. Mileski
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Matthew S. Mileski that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Matthew S. Mileski

Year of Birth: 1987

Formal Education after high school:

Pennsylvania State University (BS in Professional Golf Management)

Texas A&M University (M.B.A.)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present)

Regional Vice President, Brinker Capital (04/18-12/21)

Business Development Consultant, Brinker Capital (6/17-4/18)

Investment Consultant, Brinker Capital (01/15-06/17)

Trading Operations Assistant, Capital Markets Group, Morgan Stanley (09/13-12/14)

Registered Client Associate, Merrill Lynch Wealth Management (11/11-08/13)

## **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

## **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

## **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client

account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Matthew S. Mileski is supervised by Ryan LeStrange, Divisional Vice President of Sales (312) 833-9076. Mr. LeStrange is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Sterling T. Moore
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Sterling T. Moore that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Sterling T. Moore

Year of Birth: 1973

Formal Education after high school:

Southern Methodist University (B.B.A.)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present)

Regional Vice President, Brinker Capital (04/18-12/21) Vice President, MassMutual Pacific (08/17-04/18) Regional Vice President, Global Atlantic (11/15-08/17) Sr. Managing Director, STAT Revenue (04/13-11/15)

# **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

In 2013, FINRA charged Mr. Moore with violating FINRA Rule 2010 and NASD Rules 2110 and 3050, finding that he held a financial interest in a brokerage account at another member firm without giving prompt written notice to his associated member firm that he had such financial interest and without notifying the other brokerage firm of his association with his firm. Mr. Moore, without admitting or denying the findings, consented to a \$5,000 fine and suspension from associating with a FINRA member firm in any capacity for one month.

### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

## **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

## **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Sterling T. Moore is supervised by Bruce Bischoff, Divisional Vice President of Sales (402) 980-1182. Mr. Bischoff is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

# **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address.	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Michael Nixon
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Michael Nixon that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Michael Nixon

Year of Birth: 1974

Formal Education after high school:

University of Nebraska (B.S. Finance)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present) Regional Director, Buckingham Strategic Partners (08/17-12/21)

External Wholesaler, CLS Investments (01/01-08/17)

# **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

# **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order

management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Michael Nixon is supervised by Bruce Bischoff, Divisional Vice President of Sales (402) 980-1182. Mr. Bischoff is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Brian Ragle
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Brian Ragle that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Brian Ragle

Year of Birth: 1952

Formal Education after high school:

Baylor University, Bachelor of Arts

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present) Regional Vice President, Orion Portfolio Solutions (12/18-12/21) Sr Vice President of Regional Sales, CLS Investments, (11/00-12/18)

### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Brian Ragle is supervised by Bruce Bischoff, Divisional Vice President of Sales (402) 980-1182. Mr. Bischoff is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address.	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Richard Zachary Seitz "Zach"
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Richard Zachary Seitz that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Richard Zachary Seitz

Year of Birth: 1977

Formal Education after high school:

Loyola Marymount University – B.S. Business Administration

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital / Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/21-Present) Regional Vice President, Orion Portfolio Solutions (11/19-12/20) Senior Sales Consultant, AssetMark (10/12-11/19)

# **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

# **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order

management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Richard Zachary Seitz is supervised by Bruce Bischoff, Divisional Vice President of Sales (402) 980-1182. Mr. Bischoff is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

# **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Jason M. Shevland
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Jason M. Shevland that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Jason M. Shevland, CIMA®

Year of Birth: 1973

Formal Education after high school:

Boston College (B.A. in Psychology/Pre-Med)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (01/22-Present)

Regional Vice President, Brinker Capital (01/14-12/21)

Regional Director, Brinker Capital (01/00-01/14)

Investment Strategy Coordinator, Brinker Capital (04/98-01/00)

Investment Strategist, The Vanguard Group (10/96-04/98)

Professional designation: Certified Investment Management Analysts (CIMA®)

The CIMA designation is professional certification for individuals who are investment consultants with at least three years of professional experience. The Investment Management Consultants Association offers the CIMA courses. Individuals who hold CIMA designations are required to prove their expertise through continual recertification, which requires CIMA designees to complete at least 40 hours of continuing education every two years.

# **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order

management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Jason M. Shevland is supervised by Ryan LeStrange, Divisional Vice President of Sales (312) 833-9076. Mr. LeStrange is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

# **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Mark A. Soukup
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Mark A. Soukup that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Mark A. Soukup

Year of Birth: 1961

Formal Education after high school:

Iowa State University (BBA)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information: VP, Regional Director, Brinker Capital/Orion Portfolio Solutions (1/22-Present) Senior Vice President of Sales, Orion Portfolio Solutions (12/21-7/95)

# **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

# **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order

management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Mark A. Soukup is supervised by Ryan LeStrange, Divisional Vice President of Sales (312) 833-9076. Mr. LeStrange is supervised by Edward Kelly, EVP Wealth Management Sales (610) 407-5432. Mr. Kelly supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the sales professionals.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: March 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Tim Holland
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Tim Holland that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Tim Holland, CFA®

Year of Birth: 1969

Formal Education after high school:

Drew University, BA Political Science

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

Chief Investment Officer, Brinker Capital (01/21-Present) SVP, Global Investment Strategist, Brinker Capital (03/17-12/20) Co-Head of US Sub-Advisory Pictet Asset Management (08/16-12/16)

Professional designation: Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA®)

The CFA designation is a professional certification offered by the CFA Institute to financial analysts who pass each of three six-hour exams, possess a bachelor's degree or equivalent, and have 48 months of qualified professional work experience. The CFA Institute determines the passing score of the exams each year.

## **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

## **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's investment department professionals do not receive any other financial incentives outside of their base salary and bonus, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary and bonus paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer

to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Tim Holland is supervised by is supervised by Ryan Beach, Chief Operating Officer (402) 990-9516.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: March 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Andrew Goins
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Andrew Goins that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Andrew Goins, CFA®

Year of Birth: 1984

Formal Education after high school:

Ohio State University (B.S. in Business Administration)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

Director SMA & Mutual Fund Due Diligence, Brinker Capital (06/21-Present)

Investment Manager, Brinker Capital (07/15-06/21) Investment Analyst, Brinker Capital (06/10-06/15)

Investment Management Analyst, Budros, Ruhlin, & Roe, Inc. (07/07-06/10)

Financial Planning Intern, Budros, Ruhlin, & Roe, Inc. (02/07-07/07)

Professional designation: Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA®)

The CFA designation is a professional certification offered by the CFA Institute to financial analysts who pass each of three six-hour exams, possess a bachelor's degree or equivalent, and have 48 months of qualified professional work experience. The CFA Institute determines the passing score of the exams each year.

## **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's investment department professionals do not receive any other financial incentives outside of their base salary and bonus, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary and bonus paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

## **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself

and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Andrew Goins is supervised by Tim Holland, Chief Investment Officer (610) 407-8350. Mr. Holland supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the Investment Department Professionals. Mr. Holland is supervised by is supervised by Ryan Beach, Chief Operating Officer (402) 990-9516.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: March 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Christopher P. Hart
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Christopher P. Hart that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Christopher P. Hart

Year of Birth: 1971

Formal Education after high school:

Darden School of Business, University of Virginia, MBA

Trinity College, (B.A. Economics)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

Head of Investment Due Diligence, Brinker Capital (05/21-Present)

Senior Vice President Head of Platform Manager Research, Brinker Capital (04/17-04/21)

Senior Vice President Flead of Platform Hanager Research Senior Vice President, Brinker Capital (04/16-03/17) Core Investment Manager, Brinker Capital (01/14-04/16) Investment Director, RS Investments (05/13-11/13) Investment Officer, Morgan Stanley (11/06-04/13)

#### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

## **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's investment department professionals do not receive any other financial incentives outside of their base salary and bonus, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary and bonus paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

#### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client

account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Christopher P. Hart is supervised by Tim Holland, Chief Investment Officer (610) 407-8350. Mr. Holland supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the Investment Department Professionals. Mr. Holland is supervised by is supervised by Ryan Beach, Chief Operating Officer (402) 990-9516.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: March 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address.	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Thomas K.R. Wilson
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Thomas K.R. Wilson that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Thomas K.R. Wilson, CFA®

Year of Birth: 1969

Formal Education after high school:

James Madison University (B.S. in Economics)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

SVP, Head of Wealth Advisory, Brinker Capital (11/05-Present)

Portfolio Manager and Vice President, Davidson Capital Management (12/01-11-05)

Analyst, Davidson Capital Management (3/01-12/01)

Vice President of the Investment Management Group, Brinker Capital (1/97-2/01)

Assistant Operations Manager, Brinker Capital (1/96-1/97)

Account Manager, Shaw Data Securities (8/93-1/96)

Professional designation: Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA®)

The CFA designation is a professional certification offered by the CFA Institute to financial analysts who pass each of three six-hour exams, possess a bachelor's degree or equivalent, and have 48 months of qualified professional work experience. The CFA Institute determines the passing score of the exams each year.

#### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

#### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's Wealth Advisory professionals do not receive any other financial incentives outside of their base salary and bonus, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary and bonus paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

# **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself

and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Thomas K.R. Wilson is supervised by is supervised by Ryan Beach, Chief Operating Officer (402) 990-9516.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: March 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

#### **Supervised Person**

Name:	Anurag "Ron" Ahluwalia
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Anurag "Ron" Ahluwalia that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Anurag "Ron" Ahluwalia CFA®, CAIA®, FRM®

Year of Birth: 1974

Formal Education after high school:

Temple University (BBA in Risk Management and Actuarial Science)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Sr Portfolio Manager, Brinker Capital (04/19-Present)

AVP, Head of Investment Support, Lincoln Financial (03/16-03/19) Director, Associate Portfolio Manager, Lincoln Financial (07/10-02/16)

## Professional designations:

Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA®)

The CFA designation is a professional certification offered by the CFA Institute to financial analysts who pass each of three six-hour exams, possess a bachelor's degree or equivalent, and have 48 months of qualified professional work experience. The CFA Institute determines the passing score of the exams each year.

## Chartered Alternative Investment Analyst (CAIA®)

The CAIA designation is a professional designation offered by the CAIA Association to investment professionals who complete a course of study and pass two examinations. The "alternative investments" industry is characterized as dealing with asset classes and investments other than standard equity or fixed income products. Alternative investments can include hedge funds, private equity, real assets, commodities, and structured products. The CAIA curriculum is designed to provide finance professionals with a broad base of knowledge in alternative investments.

## Certified Financial Risk Manager Program (FRM®)

The FRM is a professional designation issued by The Global Association of Risk Professionals (GARP). Successful candidates take an average of two years to earn their FRM Certification. This accreditation is globally recognized for professionals in assessing risk in financial markets.

#### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

#### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's Wealth Advisory professionals do not receive any other financial incentives outside of their base salary and bonus, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary and bonus paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

## **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are

material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Anurag "Ron" Ahluwalia is supervised by Thomas K.R. Wilson, Senior VP, Head of Wealth Advisory (610) 407-5508. Mr. Wilson supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the Wealth Advisory Group. Mr. Wilson is supervised by Ryan Beach, Chief Operating Officer (402) 990-9516.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: March 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Lara S. Coviello
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Lara S. Coviello that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Lara S. Coviello, CFA®

Year of Birth: 1979

Formal Education after high school:

Harvard Business School (Executive Education; Venture Capital and Private Equity)

Columbia University (MA in Statistics)

Pennsylvania State University (BS in Psychology Minor; Statistics)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Sr Portfolio Manager, Brinker Capital (04/19-Present)

Executive Director, Sr. Portfolio Specialist, FS Investments (08/15-04/19)

Managing Director, Auctus Wealth Management (01/13-08/15)

Professional designation: Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA®)

The CFA designation is a professional certification offered by the CFA Institute to financial analysts who pass each of three six-hour exams, possess a bachelor's degree or equivalent, and have 48 months of qualified professional work experience. The CFA Institute determines the passing score of the exams each year.

#### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

#### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's Wealth Advisory professionals do not receive any other financial incentives outside of their base salary and bonus, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary and bonus paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

# **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself

and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Lara S. Coviello is supervised by Thomas K.R. Wilson, Senior VP, Head of Wealth Advisory (610) 407-5508. Mr. Wilson supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the Wealth Advisory Group. Mr. Wilson is supervised by Ryan Beach, Chief Operating Officer (402) 990-9516.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: March 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Libin J. Jacob
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Libin J. Jacob that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Libin J. Jacob, CFA®

Year of Birth: 1990

Formal Education after high school:

Villanova University (BBA in Finance)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

Portfolio Manager, Brinker Capital (07/20 – Present) Account Executive, Brinker Capital (04/19 – 07/20) Investment Strategist, Brinker Capital (12/15 – 03/19) Portfolio Analyst, Lockwood Advisors (10/13 – 11/15)

Professional designation: Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA®)

The CFA designation is a professional certification offered by the CFA Institute to financial analysts who pass each of three six-hour exams, possess a bachelor's degree or equivalent, and have 48 months of qualified professional work experience. The CFA Institute determines the passing score of the exams each year.

## **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

## **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's Wealth Advisory professionals do not receive any other financial incentives outside of their base salary and bonus, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary and bonus paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

## **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer

to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Libin J. Jacob is supervised by Thomas K.R. Wilson, Senior VP, Head of Wealth Advisory (610) 407-5508. Mr. Wilson supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the Wealth Advisory Group. Mr. Wilson is supervised by Ryan Beach, Chief Operating Officer (402) 990-9516.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: March 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Michael (Mitch) Kerr
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Michael (Mitch) Kerr that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Michael (Mitch) Kerr, CFA®

Year of Birth: 1979

Formal Education after high school:

University of Notre Dame (BBA Finance)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Associate Head of Wealth Advisory, Brinker Capital (12/21-Present)

VP, Senior Portfolio Manager, Brinker Capital (05/18-11/21)

Senior Investment Advisor, TD Private Client Wealth, NA, (07/15-04/18)

Senior Investment Strategist, Well Fargo Private Bank (05/12-07/15)

Senior Analyst, Gardner Lewis Asset Management (07/02-11/11)

Professional designation: Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA®)

The CFA designation is a professional certification offered by the CFA Institute to financial analysts who pass each of three six-hour exams, possess a bachelor's degree or equivalent, and have 48 months of qualified professional work experience. The CFA Institute determines the passing score of the exams each year.

# **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

## **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's Wealth Advisory professionals do not receive any other financial incentives outside of their base salary and bonus, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary and bonus paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

## **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in

conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Michael (Mitch) Kerr is supervised by Thomas K.R. Wilson, Senior VP, Head of Wealth Advisory (610) 407-5508. Mr. Wilson supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the Wealth Advisory Group. Mr. Wilson is supervised by Ryan Beach, Chief Operating Officer (402) 990-9516.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: March 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Nicole Kramer
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Nicole Kramer that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Nicole Kramer, CFA®, CAIA®

Year of Birth: 1980

Formal Education after high school:

Boston University (MA in Economics, Magna Cum Laude)

Boston University (BA in Economics and Mathematics, Magna Cum Laude)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

Sr Portfolio Manager, Brinker Capital (07/21-Present)

Principal, Sr. Investment Consultant, Mercer Investments (02/15-11/18; 6/19-06/21)

Professional designation: Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA®)

The CFA designation is a professional certification offered by the CFA Institute to financial analysts who pass each of three six-hour exams, possess a bachelor's degree or equivalent, and have 48 months of qualified professional work experience. The CFA Institute determines the passing score of the exams each year.

Chartered Alternative Investment Analyst (CAIA®)

The CAIA designation is a professional designation offered by the CAIA Association to investment professionals who complete a course of study and pass two examinations. The "alternative investments" industry is characterized as dealing with asset classes and investments other than standard equity or fixed income products. Alternative investments can include hedge funds, private equity, real assets, commodities, and structured products. The CAIA curriculum is designed to provide finance professionals with a broad base of knowledge in alternative investments.

#### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

# **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's Wealth Advisory professionals do not receive any other financial incentives outside of their base salary and bonus, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary and bonus paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

#### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Nicole Kramer is supervised by Thomas K.R. Wilson, Senior VP, Head of Wealth Advisory (610) 407-5508. Mr. Wilson supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the Wealth Advisory Group. Mr. Wilson is supervised by Ryan Beach, Chief Operating Officer (402) 990-9516.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

## **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Brian D. Libby
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Brian D. Libby that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Brian D. Libby, CFA®

Year of Birth: 1984

Formal Education after high school:

Eastern University (BS in Marketing)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Wealth Advisory Portfolio Consultant, Brinker Capital (03/19-Present)

ETF Product Manager, OppenheimerFunds (05/16-03/19)

Asset Strategist, Nationwide Investment Management Group (06/15-05/16)

Trading / Portfolio, Clark Capital Management (05/10-06/15)

Professional designation: Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA®)

The CFA designation is a professional certification offered by the CFA Institute to financial analysts who pass each of three six-hour exams, possess a bachelor's degree or equivalent, and have 48 months of qualified professional work experience. The CFA Institute determines the passing score of the exams each year.

#### **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

#### **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

## **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The

Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Brian D. Libby is supervised by Thomas K.R. Wilson, Senior VP, Head of Wealth Advisory (610) 407-5508. Mr. Wilson supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the Wealth Advisory Group.



# **Brochure Supplement**

Dated as of: January 2022

# **Adviser**

Name of Investment Adviser.	Brinker Capital Investments, LLC
Business Address.	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312
Contact Information:	(610) 407-5500
Website Address:	www.brinkercapitalinvestments.com

# **Supervised Person**

Name:	Denis J. McCartan
Business Address:	1055 Westlakes Drive, Suite 250 Berwyn, Pennsylvania, 19312

This brochure supplement provides information about Denis J. McCartan that supplements Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure. You should have received a copy of that brochure. Please contact <a href="mailto:clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com">clientservice@BrinkerCapital.com</a> or via 610-407-5500 if you did not receive Brinker Capital Investments, LLC's brochure or if you have any questions about the contents of this brochure supplement.

Name: Denis J. McCartan

Year of Birth: 1971

Formal Education after high school:

Queens University, Belfast (BA Geosciences)

Business background for preceding five years and selected additional information:

VP, Wealth Advisory Portfolio Consultant, Brinker Capital (01/18 - Present) Wealth Advisory Relationship Manager, Brinker Capital (01/16 - 12/17)

Sr. Portfolio Strategist, Brinker Capital (05/12-12/16)

## **Item 3 Disciplinary Information**

There are no reportable legal or disciplinary events for the supervised person.

#### **Item 4 Other Business Activities**

The supervised person is not actively engaged in any investment-related business or occupation other than as described herein.

# **Item 5 Additional Compensation**

The firm's employees are subject to certain limitations regarding the receipt of gifts and other benefits in the form of entertainment, including meals, golfing and tickets to cultural and sporting events from parties with whom the firm does business. See Form ADV, Part 2A, Items 11 and 14.

Brinker's sales professionals receive a portion of the investment management fee that is paid by the clients they are associated with. In addition to receiving a portion of the investment management fees, sales professionals also receive a base salary, which is paid by Brinker. The base salary paid by Brinker is not based on the number or amount of sales, client referrals or new accounts.

#### **Item 6 Supervision**

Brinker maintains its compliance policies and procedures in its Compliance Manual and Written Supervisory Procedure Manual. These manuals are delivered to all employees upon hire, if there are material changes and annually thereafter. Each employee attests to the fact that they have read, understand and will abide by the policy and procedure manuals.

Brinker, an affiliate of Orion Advisor Solutions, Inc., has adopted a Code of Ethics which covers all supervised persons. The Code of Ethics requires high standards of business conduct, compliance with federal securities laws, reporting and recordkeeping of personal securities transactions and holdings, reviews and sanctions.

Brinker maintains a system of supervisory control policies and procedures that test and verify that Brinker's supervisory procedures are reasonably designed to comply with applicable securities laws. The Chief Compliance Officer maintains the supervisory control procedures and carries out supervision himself and through other designated qualified principals of Brinker. The President of Brinker works in conjunction with the Chief Revenue Officer, EVP Wealth Management Sales and Chief Compliance Officer to ensure that Brinker's supervisory control procedures are reasonably designed to supervise client account activity. Orion's Code represents a strong internal control with supervisory reviews to detect and prevent possible insider trading, conflicts of interest and potential regulatory violations.

Brinker monitors compliance with clients' investment policies, objectives and regulatory requirements through the order management system. All trades for client accounts are processed through the order

management system and downloaded to the accounting system nightly. The investment department professionals as well as their supervisors are able to view up-to-date account holding information daily.

Denis J. McCartan is supervised by Thomas K.R. Wilson, Senior VP, Head of Wealth Advisory (610) 407-5508. Mr. Wilson supervises and monitors the advisory services provided to clients by the Wealth Advisory Group.